CHLC R IGEEG]
ANNUAL REPORT
2014 - 2015

Fas-i Y L] Ia:..'--'.t I oat I'l; 4 'f-:* ] |-'|-!'1 :}L _j:‘-:'_'- NLECT | :‘!L ‘.'-'f,:‘ BN :‘]—;‘ ‘: '_I'-.:'!
as s ol |’l;fi] ANl A i \.,;:I' Lii\ 3 :._\'_.a;:lixl:lr \d ["-"_1_-.'.'!"'"'“ \4 QAT
NS e B L = L R 237 citnm
¢ AFETy sppeuid Yy :.5-'.1 tamens i) = =1 o f) 1‘.:\‘ e - J"J ‘r “ ol )
135 & 5nala & onals &) Fitids & ritcs ) ritdls
e s =F = Al =

1---1‘-" Ih‘lll'-

- y '-'-. i
.ﬁlu";i--ﬁrd'iclnv.iatn ¥ ey gl
e oty i g o -

SIDBI

YR g ST fIp< &

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA



SeotE-1g @27 / Highlights

GIEKINESICTRd

Portfolio Size

TIRIS

?Cmé

70000~
61271

60000- 53785 06060 55343
50000-
40000-
30000-
20000-
100004 5177
o I : : :

1991 2012 2013 2014 2015

1 31 ATe
As at March 31

M TP R

Income & Profit

TIRIS

?Cm@

6000- 5401 5808 5741

5000- 4607

10001 425 567 B 837

1991 2012 2013 2014 2015

®Income mProfit

31 9Tl &) FHTT 9§ F R

During the year ended March 31

frae Sufar
Net Worth
TS
< Crore
10000+ 9126

9000+ 7991
e 7046
7000- 6399
6000-
5000-
4000-
3000-
2000-
1000 480
0. - - :

1991 2012 2013 2014 2015

71 31 919
As at March 31

foraer |uf~y g v vy
Standard Assets & Net NPAs

gferera

Percent

99.66 99.47 99.55 99.22

2012 2013 2014 2015
m Standard Assets ® Net NPAs

o 31 91
As at March 31



Annual Report 2014-15

AR oY SaNT faeht@ deh

Small Industries Development Bank of India

T o S fashr S erfufEm, 1989 @t emT
30(5) o STIER 31 AIE 2015 ! AT a9 o §a §
fagerr Usa & U 28 SO, 2015 H FE WHR
Cageissil

Report of the Board of Directors for the year
ended March 31, 2015 submitted to the Central
Government on July 28, 2015 in terms of Section
30 (5) of the Small Industries Development Bank
of India Act, 1989.
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TJ-T ST AY-F1 W TT Fehel FaTe feramor
(@ftfere - 1)

Audited Balance Sheet along with Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement of SIDBI (Appendix - I).

Consolidated Balance Sheet along with Profit and Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement of SIDBI including
its associates and subsidiaries (Appendix — II)

.
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Letter of Transmittal

28 JaE, 2015

i

for Hamera
IR FHR
3 foeett

i wee,

faeat o faxig a¥ 2014-15 & HH-hT Gaet o
TG T ey Hee &t foard

IR oY SN fasere S rfufEm 1989 T wRT
30(5) &% UEYET & o ER # ffafed TwmEw
TACERT ST T & §-

(1) 31 W& 2015 S GAQ 99 o [T WRAT oY
ST fahTg S & arfier oRg w1 o

2) 31 W& 2015 H TAC T & fAU IRAE Y
I fTHTY S &F HH-H1S & oo § -
HEa i Ruid =t afq

a3y,

(ST, ermfa forarsh, smgugy)

3Ty Ud yaY TR
Geren: JUMT

July 28, 2015

The Secretary,
Ministry of Finance,
Government of India,
New Delhi.

Dear Sir,

Annual Accounts and Report of the Board on
the working of SIDBI — FY 2014-15

In accordance with the Provisions of Section
30 (5) of the Small Industries Development
Bank of India Act, 1989, I forward herewith the
following documents:

(I) Copy of Annual Accounts of Small

Industries Development Bank of India for
the year ended March 31, 2015 and

(2) A copy of the Report of the Board on the
working of Small Industries Development
Bank of India during the year ended March
31, 2015.

Yours faithfully,

g

(Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, IAS)
Chairman & Managing Director

Encl.: as above
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fagdt 1 fa9TeR WeeT (AT 31 W 2015)
Board of Directors of SIDBI (As on March 31, 2015)

SR ELIGRMCIE st aTeiter TUST st wa. R . siframas
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji Shri Alok Tandon Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

it aTF—m SrETe sft wearg s it ST, T
Shri Anil Agrawal Shri Satyananda Mishra Shri R. Ramachandran
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frevTeRt =ht Tiufaat (IAT 31 W= 2015)

Committees of Directors (As on March 31, 2015)

HTAUTeTeR |iufa

ot . TEIEA
4t wg. e

gt sIfe sEETe
4t g fag

wET-udtern afafa

At AT AT, T
gt 3Teew IS

ot Tq. . diftare
4t wg. e

&t . THA=A

FfEw yaeerT |fafa

At 3. THA=A, 3T
it & ). AT
. T

T fasiar fm weagror afufa

&t a1fe sEETe
ot o &t T

4t g fagr
it AR, T

o T ol er@TerSt sht FRRHT 9 favi wfifa

At ST TUS
ot Tq o &, fifarT
gt S TEIEH

Executive Committee

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Shri S. Hariharan

Shri Anil Agrawal

Shri Satyananda Mishra

Audit Committee

Shri Anil Agrawal, Chairman
Shri Alok Tandon

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri S. Hariharan

Shri R. Ramachandran

Risk Management Committee

Shri R. Ramachandran, Chairman
Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan
Shri J. Chandrasekaran

Committee for supervision of SFCs

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Anil Agrawal

Shri K.C. Gupta

Shri Satyananda Mishra

Shri R. Ramachandran

Special Committee to Monitor Large Value Frauds

Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
Shri Alok Tandon

Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

Shri J. Chandrasekaran
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frevTent ot wfufaat (I 31 Wr=r 2015)

Committees of Directors (As on March 31, 2015)

AT UrEfTeRt T afafa Information Technology Strategy Committee
o} AT AT, eI Shri Anil Agrawal, Chairman

ot Gt U3 (@ favm) Shri Sudhir Seth (External Expert)
UTeeh W4T qfafa Customer Service Committee

7. gufq frarsh, sty Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
. T Shri J. Chandrasekaran

i ©g. TR Shri S. Hariharan

ot 31fe SETe Shri Anil Agrawal

ot & 5. e Shri K.C. Gupta

R IECK I E R LI E R ) HR Steering Committee

. gl fyrarstt, o1eae Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
oY AR 0T Shri Alok Tandon

ot &, TEIEH Shri J. Chandrasekaran

St T s Shri Satyananda Mishra

SR CEIRERCIBREHLER)) Dr. Chitra Rao (External Expert)
YT qHte |futa Recovery Review Committee

1. geufq fyrarsht, 3Temer Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman
o 3T T0eT Shri Alok Tandon

ft T . difrereT Shri S.K.V. Srinivasan

ot 3. THI=A Shri R. Ramachandran

uresifaes afufa Remuneration Committee

Y AT 0T Shri Alok Tandon

i ©g. TRET Shri S. Hariharan

ft g g Shri Satyananda Mishra

N
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Ty

Mission

TR & o #0T-yae ™ 9 ggg a9 1o facilitate and strengthen credit
IR TIETEE TieT % A ue e flow to MSME and address both

: - financial and developmental gaps in
ST TR 6 1 9w the MSME eco-system.

AT Ueh g8 o

Progress at Glance

R &g / Crore)

79T 31 919 / As on March 31 1991 2012 2013 2014 2015

FHTIT GITHTT / Outstanding Portfolio 5,176.8 | 53,785.1 | 56,059.8 | 61,270.7 | 55,342.6
sft / Capital - 3 / Authorised 500.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0 | 1,000.0
- 9w / Paid-up 450.0 | 450.0 | 4500 | 4500 | 450.0

sTefift we fafimt / Reserves and Funds 449 | 6,327.9 | 7,0533 | 80423 | 9,329.6
T A (FUE-791) / Total Income (Net of provisions) 4251 | 38704 | 4557.6 | 5186.0 | 59385
fireret @1 / Net Profit 356 | 5669 | 8374 | 1,1183 | 1,417.1
IR & ai¥r / Dividend to Shareholders 5.0 112.5 112.5 112.5 112.5
I::ﬁe-{zrari? EEZW Oqztmrig)Portfolio (%) 07 22 23 27 28
ZEETEEE z mig i::j :Ending vortfolio 100 | 9966 | 9947 | 9955 | 99.22
gpjthRTAzetSﬁE&) o) 139 | 289 | 281 | 3075 | 3669
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TUR U-USYTeh (TATIAT § oIhT 2015 )
Our Leaders (Since inception till 2015)

=, ot T9 g SHI (37e7E) At TR TF ETe (e FeTeR)
(et 02, 1990 - faaw=R 18, 1993) (3T 02, 1990 - AT 03, 1995)
Late Shri S S Nadkarni (Chairman) Shri R S Agrawal (Managing Director)
(April 02, 1990 - September 18, 1993) (April 02, 1990 — March 03, 1995)

f T T @ (37ee) 4t & T foeet ey frewren) <. Sors TR (e feeTen)

(fegwT 02, 1993 - ST 30, 1998) ("Tlif 08, 1995 - ﬂ?ﬂ'sﬁ 20, 1995) (3TT=T 03, 1995 - W 31, 2000)
Shri S H Khan (Chairman) Shri K R Pillai (Managing Director) Dr. Sailendra Narain (Managing Director)
(December 02, 1993 — June 30, 1998) (March 08, 1995 — July 20, 1995) (August 03, 1995 - July 31, 2000)

=

of St oF T (3Tee) A 79 TH wiec (3T T& T F1e3Teh)
(T 01, 1998 — A= 26, 2000) (37T 01, 2000 — SHaET 30, 2001)
Shri G P Gupta (Chairman) Shri S S Kohli (Chairman & Managing Director)
(July 01, 1998 — March 26, 2000) (August 01, 2000 — January 30, 2001)
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TUR T-USYTeh (TATIAT H oIhT 2015 TH)
Our Leaders (Since inception till 2015)

ot Ot o FraTereRt (372 Ud Fe fRETeR) ot ot o <ITST (3TeAE T ye feETeR)
(STeRT 31, 2001 - ®TEL 28, 2003) (S 16, 2003 - fET=R 08, 2004)
Shri P B Nimbalkar (Chairman & Managing Director) Shri V K Chopra (Chairman & Managing Director)
(January 31, 2001 — February 28, 2003) (July 16, 2003 — December 08, 2004)

.

ot T ICTEHTA (T T Ya fewTen) At 3T TH Heell (Tee Td Fey feeren) ot el FAR e (reef T o faereh)
(feemT 30, 2004 - fFa=R 30, 2006) (ST 11, 2007 - T8 08, 2010) (37T 04, 2011 - T 08, 2013)
Shri N Balasubramanian Shri R. M. Malla Shri Sushil Kumar Muhnot
(Chairman & Managing Director) (Chairman & Managing Director) (Chairman & Managing Director)
(December 30, 2004 — September 30, 2006) (July 11, 2007 — Jully 08, 2010) (April 04, 2011 — November 08, 2013)

- - P wm r

ot TereT TR (3T T FegTen) ot T & B (3T e Frdvren) <. &t ReTSh (37eae T yay Fevmen)

(3T 23, 2006 -ﬁlz, 2007) (T 22, 2013 - A9 11, 2014) (AT 02, 2015 § TTa)
26, 2010 - 03, 2011) Shri N. K. Maini (Deputy Managing Director) Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji (Chairman & Managing
Shri Rakesh Rewari (Deputy Managing Director) (November 22, 2013 - March 11, 2014) Director) (March 02, 2015 - till date)

(October 23, 2006 - July 12, 2007)
(July 26, 2010 - April 03, 2011)
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3T TS U~ f39Teh ot ahed
Chairman and Managing Director’s Statement

i TR,

foxia af 2014-15 & fau s =7 aifies RO wqa
T T WUsd 3R FeH <o % foiw TRG T
fawg ®1 99 7% gfod & gC o7 wY © W §
S ¥ 7ot iRyt AEr % 25 A @ A fo § &l
T Y AU FAT-TerT BT TN ST Y, THTE-
3MHTRT T5d o ATeAH § THUHUAS TR o F0T T
O STRTA T I 6T ohT 4T T e 7 |

9 & SR T 53,083 S HT Glaawor feman @) 31
T 2015 T Sk T TR WU T 55,343 S
o

TAUHTAE <9 ot el & Yo Weers §1 9
106 fafem ¥ eifuss =fmal &1 g-we TSR <
g1 TSR & Al § I8 HfT o a1C qo 97 &7 ¢ |
faf-mioTeral THUEERE @1 <91 & fafmior saed # 45
gfereTe T € | Wohet TR IS H THUHUAS T AMTEH
AT 37.5%

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors and the Management
Team of SIDBI are privileged to present the
Bank’s Annual Report for the Financial Year
2014-15. It gives me great pleasure to inform
that, the Bank has completed 25 years of its
illustrious journey and has endeavored to
address various credit and non-credit gaps
in the MSME eco-system through Credit plus
approach and impact based outreach.

The disbursements made during the year was
X 53,083 crore and the Bank’s outstanding portfolio
as on March 31, 2015 stood at ¥ 55,343 crore.

MSMEs are the veritable backbone of the

country’s economy, providing
employment to more than 106 million people, the
largest chunk after agriculture. Manufacturing

MSMEs account for 45 percent of the country’s

gainful

manufacturing output. MSMEs’ contribution to
GDP is around 37.5%.
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IO § YA | SeorEd SHEiferehd gig 8 & 8
I AT Mg AT ST HT - S R
1 T R 2020 TF YR AT BT Tk gar
S ST TET €, SRt ofea ong 29 o gt ST saH
i T 28% HE-vIfh e M| S ARAT ATl
SH-TIH T ¥ROT A o fow fafmior & o1 weaget
vt frrt =l

fafmior &5 9 faX § o7 o o 3evT § TWHR A
T AT ST 9ok | 39T A& fafmioT &5 &1 ey
HTF Y IRA &1 NIk Tgfg 1 qA 8 S 7|
Hfer THTHTRE e qe- EensT BT weEq e ¥,
3 IR T G ¢ R T WER F e 3 sfeAr”
A H Hewoyot YfHeRT U |

THUEEHE @i, foers i wHua: et g o
ET T W FROT 9 frdt off Tw § Sew oHenie
raTeReT fAfid T | Heg I &1 I &F SAMFT IR
eI T o fashra & o drereTer o1 m
HIAT T | THTAURE &7 WX o AT GHISTOw T
T T SMIR-TH 7 |

Ife I & STEfTE Ired, fratd, ISR wd i
YR o T # 379 AMTeE #t 3fF § THegund yRa
1 TfATEN % Hew@qUl U €, T 3T THUHUAS,
3R GHHT Teelt el & Safar & JgaE! fam i
TYgg o fAw ST Gufe 9T 9 ATiesiT U Aol
TR

fagst & T W T IR SaAfFEr 1 oy e €,
3% WIRE AT ¢ 3R 3% Wl &1 GER wA H
weg &1 €, Y = F Yol Wit & e < A1 gRenfud
T g T | faget 3T gu aumEt o forn gwfia g
21 39 T ST UG fafay JeR o THTETE & fou

T

India is presently experiencing significant
demographic growth and a disproportionate
expansion in the working age population.
India is poised to become the world’s youngest
country by 2020, with an average age of 29
years and account for around 28% of the
world’s workforce. To absorb labour force of
this magnitude, the manufacturing sector would

need to play an important role.

To revitalize manufacturing sector, the
Government has triggered the “Make in India”
campaign to boost manufacturing sector, aiming
to redesign manufacturing sector as a key
engine for India’s economic growth. As MSMEs
are important part of several value chains, it is
expected that they will play an important role in

the Government’s ‘Make in India’ drive.

MSMEs are the vehicles for faster, sustainable
and overall inclusive growth and hence help in
building a better socio-economic environment
in any nation. This sector acts as the nursery
for the entrepreneurship development and
technological innovations. In India, the MSME
sector is the founding pillar of its robust socio-
economic fabric.

MSMEs
segment of Indian economy in terms of

Since constitute ~an  important

their contributions to country’s industrial
production, exports, employment and creation
of entrepreneurial base, proper nurturing and
handholding to these MSMEs is one of the key
elements for their overall development and
promotion, particularly the first generation

entrepreneurs.

At SIDBI,
and helped shape the Indian entrepreneur’s

we have nurtured, empowered
dream right from the first generation to the
well established ones. SIDBI, an institution
devoted for growth of budding businesses,



T faxitar I €1 fast 7 St e wiargat
Y SgaT/Aare At & fagamer & faw ot
SfEw ISt ATSHTT & AT ¥ Ueh 9Hiid TG ohi
yftreht fumg ® 3K o FEfeR! qen TeteRofa St
I gC et wafs wifde & &1 s 13w
f@ar 81 TPE TEHAGG SEET (RTETET) fage
& g H GeIfera GedTIer SHEhH B | SHehT Sev
T H TEfg e % f 9EEamenRy e
95T o ®, A W TaAfar o7 % 9 9oh |
T FEE § w3 TP W SN e faedt & e
TEERT T TF

fagst =t omeriem € fF < w1 UHUHUWE &
TR U6 G f | TE GaH SeH! hi TRl
3R T ITH F G HT W@ Id g Tdfs IR
foerma w1 agmar o % fau waffa 21 faedt 7 59 &
% AU FUT-Ta1® ¥ TG A o HII-9TY 39 &F Hl
W foxiia sTavasharsti & STRIAr H U % faAw o
% SUE T §1 0 ¥ T9 ¢ THIUUHS Feareshiiar
YA, THTHUAE 1 Sol/faxiia geemest ¥ w07 o o
TG o Ie¥d § BT GHIATHT0T/THET AT, TG
BT dHt @ T SF, EHRT Sh) T eHar-
foem, g9 Som §oH, =X fao™, I @@
o191l ferehTer, TETHYaT Td SUIS0T el S 371 |

TIUHUTS & i IqE foaxiias §%r & §7 § 1990 ¥
319 % I T 25 I T AT § fGget Sga-9 ve
IR fory @ 3T e Sifaae T 81 feedt G feer
fafie JopR &t Haseie U faehm gerar off ueH
AT THE AT ST T ST GeAwi/TEER
TEersTl & wrem § foset tiuguns &7 & fafay R
T AT AT 7, S FOT TR, 3T ST, G- feior,
JrefreR! fAeam qem X e enfert &1 snfw-
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has innovative financial products for the
benefit of the wide spectrum of MSMEs. SIDBI
has played a pioneering and dedicated role
in financing of entrepreneurs having capital
constraints/innovative entrepreneurs through
its risk capital schemes and has strived towards
achieving sustainable growth while adopting
clean technology and renewable energy. The
National Innovation Finance Programme (NIFP)
is a collaborative programme led by SIDBI for
creating an enabling environment for innovation
financing in the country to help India become
an innovation hub. Several national institutions
and bodies are partners with SIDBI in the

programme.

SIDBI envisions a vibrant and robust MSME
sector in the country. It is dedicated to promote
growth and development by providing support
to existing enterprises and encourage creation
of new enterprises. Besides enhancing credit
flow to the sector, SIDBI has taken a number of
steps in filling the gaps in non-financial needs
of the sector. These include MSME advisory
services, loan facilitation/syndication services to
MSMEs to help them avail credit from banks/
Fls, capacity building of smaller banks [Regional
Rural Banks (RRBs), Co-operative banks], micro
enterprises  creation, cluster development,
entrepreneurship and skill development,
promoting innovation and incubation, etc.

The 25 year journey of SIDBI, since 1990 as the
Principal Financing Institution of the MSME
sector, has achieved many milestones and
set several landmarks. SIDBI has emerged
as a responsible financing institution and a
conglomerate offering direct credit,
finance, risk capital, promotional
and developmental support, etc. Through its
associates/subsidiaries, SIDBI offers a bouquet
of services, such as, credit guarantee, venture

micro-
various
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qAfmiT | fogat st Hereh ST o ®9 H T Ageh!
Iy STATHe TS e i (g%) 9 T
3T TSI ITAH B | GRT HT ST 3T fow Tt qen
3w fag W ey fameraredt &1 g Je e 2
YT T S © R TE T 5.77 HAS AT AGHE-
THIEAT T SRS o & qER F o W, A
ITeht FOT Garelt STELA bl T foha ST T |

foedt off TOF ¥ o EEE-THET @R
SHIAT AT M T@T T, AMH THIHUHE &F HT AR
T TE STEATAhATST R el T ertaet o
ST k| THUEUEE o oY o fou fogdt wwiE @
AW TSIGAT o HIY 30 WG T BT ST
AT TET T IS U a9 I Irafy H 9Re aref-
ST % IRGYT H FARGRT IRadd 3T ot Fre
T T Tora®y &% &6 ¥ 9 Seie-HY gl gEH
THUES o et ® | faeet 3 uRadHr & ofa afea
T wfafRamiicr W SR THfE w THIETE %
T o/aET &% ®9 § T M| THT W K0T T ST
FOR AT I TeEar & SR fEdt s
gfga e W fF TieauAs &9 &1 97 fae @,
M I8 &F Tofa 9 Gierd o1 T SN FaWET TR
ot fcrerert & <ot 7o a1 ' |

(gt —

(ST. ermfa fyrarsh, smEugy)
3TeAe T Ty FeeTeR

xii

capital, credit rating, technology matching and
assets reconstruction of NPAs in the MSME
sector. Creation of Micro Units Development
and Refinancing Agency (MUDRA), an agency
to refinance micro finance institutions and other
last mile financiers, as a subsidiary of SIDBI is a
new feather in the cap of SIDBI The agency is
expected to help about 5.77 crore small business
units by bringing them within the formal
financial sector for their credit needs.

SIDBI has been proactively devising its business
strategy to match the constantly evolving
needs and challenges of the MSME sector and
leveraging its rich partnerships with national
and international agencies to cater to the
MSMEs. The next five year period is likely
to bring metamorphic transformation in the
Indian economic landscape. This would bring
in paradigm shift in many spheres including
MSMEs. SIDBI shall be proactive and responsive
to these changes and convert the challenges into
opportunities for MSMEs. It would continue to
endeavour to ensure the holistic development
of the MSME sector, through timely credit
and appropriate non-credit capacity building
support, so that the MSME sector remains
strong,
competitiveness on a sustained basis.

g

(Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, IAS)
Chairman & Managing Director

vibrant and achieves international
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frRyTeRt =hY feald fa=itsr o 2014-15

Directors” Report FY 2014-15

ek T FIeTTeh-AUES 31 HIE 2015 &1 GAG faxi o
¥ foau do & U™ U9 A & gy § 31O
frird T g Y W R

3Tk Sk T T 1990 § 9 RT MR stferfarm
% TEd & TE| I8 YRT & TeH, Y T "W A
(CCETE) &7 % G, i T e 2
yog foxiia g €1 Siuife wde ®, 9% & WReAE
areforawen w1 faehra-se & Jq@ FreFehd e €|
fafmior-saares, wog g aur fEfd § oW oy off
TEHT ST o # 39t J&F feerdt 71 59 R
IIT I GHT TESIIE T H SHHT SeargHg ANEH
2|

TS % TNE Y orafifed qAfEr 81 T %7 &Y
T e G Fao ©F ST Saeh WEF § TR
@A R

et THGEER 9 % S & Ay, i o
foertg B9 T sq@ foea ween €)1 9% wHTHORE
ST T EM W % §gEn 9 ge, R &
et T W f9emm arlt 96 Tg o] Gaanmav 99s
o BT T § ANE S o o ufdes € | 39en fom
Tg Jont, o Teeme, oteq famr TR qe TRTAdT-
A o=y qerafEl & wem ¥ e O

Hel4dl A endl %l

The Board of Directors of the Bank takes
pleasure in presenting its Report on the business
and operations of your Bank for the financial
year ended March 31, 2015.

Your Bank was set up in 1990 under an Act
of the Parliament as the principal financial
institution for the promotion, financing and
development of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise (MSME) sector in India. As is well
known, the sector has been a key contributor to
the growth story of the Indian economy. It has
a major share in manufacturing output, national
income, exports and above all, employment
generation, thus contributing to the overall
socio-economic growth of the country.

There are inherent challenges faced by MSMEs.
These relate to availability of credit, technology,
skill  development,  adequate  industrial
infrastructure and issues around marketing and

procurement.

SIDBI, which is the financial

institution for the promotion, financing and

principal

development of industry in the MSME sector,
is committed to contribute towards the national
goal of attaining inclusive growth by promoting
the great spirit of MSME entrepreneurship as
well as reaching out to those at the bottom-
of-the-pyramid by extending developmental
and financial support through the network of
Banks, Financial Institutions (FIs), Micro Finance
Institutions (MFIs) and other support worthy
intermediaries.

I xiii I
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Business Performance

Your Bank’s total disbursement increased from
T 52,191 crore in FY 2013-14 to ¥ 53,083 crore
in FY 2014-15. Outstanding portfolio of the
Bank was X 55,343 crore as on March 31, 2015
and Y 61,271 crore as on March 31, 2014. The
cumulative disbursements as on March 31, 2015
stood at X 3.90 lakh crore, benefiting more than
346 lakh persons.

The total income of the Bank during the year
was at X 5,741 crore as compared to X 5,808
crore during the previous year. The total
expenditure during the corresponding period
was at X 3,823 crore as compared to X 3,646
crore during the previous year. The Profit before
Tax for the year was X 2,115 crore, compared to
X 1,539 crore in the previous year. The net profit
after tax and Deferred Tax Adjustment for the
year was X 1,417 crore as against X 1,118 crore
in the previous year. Your Bank has declared a
dividend of 25% for the year and continues its
uninterrupted dividend payment record since
inception.

In the external sector, persistent uncertainty
in global outlook caused by crisis in Euro area
and general slowdown in global economy
compounded by structural constraints and
inflationary pressures in domestic economy
protracted
slowdown percolated to the MSME sector
resulting in the lower credit off-take from banks
and FIs. However, with improved sentiments,
the outlook for
scenario is showing signs of improvement.

resulted in slowdown. The

domestic macroeconomic

Business initiatives

Some of the niche
addressed by your Bank are risk capital/equity
assistance,
finance, services sector financing, etc. These

financial gaps being

sustainable finance, receivable
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are the requirements of MSMEs which are not
generally catered to by the banking system.
Simultaneously, your Bank acts as a nursery for
new financial products, which can eventually
get mainstreamed in the banking industry.

Refinance :

SIDBI,
institution has been according greater thrust
on augmenting the resource base of Primary
Lending Institutions (PLIs) like banks, SFCs,
NBFCs. MFIs, etc., so that higher credit flows to
the MSME Sector. Refinance constituted around
80% of the Bank’s portfolio as on March 31, 2015.
Under Refinance, support is extended for setting
up new projects and technology upgradation/
modernization, diversification,
rehabilitation, energy efficiency, adoption of
clean production technologies etc. of existing
MSMEs, service sector entities as well as for
infrastructure development and upgradation.

being primarily a Refinancing

expansion,

The Government of India, through Budget
for FY 2013-14 had increased the refinancing
capability of the Bank by way of enhancement
of the refinancing limit from X 5,000 crore to
% 10,000 crore per year. Accordingly, a corpus
of ¥ 10,000 crore was allocated to SIDBI under
the MSE (Refinance) Fund in FY 2014. Out of
the corpus of X 10,000 crore allocated, SIDBI
disbursed 3,047 crore to micro and small
enterprises through banks which had lent to
MSEs at base-rate.

Risk Capital: Risk capital/equity assistance
is provided to MSMEs directly using various
mezzanine structures as well as through Fund
of Funds operation (i.e. through VCFs). The
risk capital assistance is offered on the backing
of future cash-flows and prospects of the unit
assisted rather than asset coverage/collaterals.
The assistance has supported
requirements of a number of MSMEs including

the growth

T
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leveraging of senior loans, funding intangible
requirements like expenditure for R & D,
marketing/brand building, technical knowhow,
energy efficiency, quality control, WC margin,
etc. where bank loans are generally not available
as such investments are non-asset creating.

Innovation driven entrepreneurship has started
to play an important role in the country by
finding solutions to India’s myriad requirements
in areas like education, affordable healthcare,
biotechnology,  energy  solutions,
management, financial inclusion,
market access, defence, etc.

waste
logistics,

SIDBI provides corpus support to several
Venture Capital Funds (VCFs) which invest
in the equity of small start-up and early stage
businesses. SIDBI has also piloted a scheme
to assist start ups and early stage ventures,
selectively, operating in innovative/technology
space, including those being incubated at
technology incubators.

Sustainable Finance: Your Bank is extending
direct credit under focused Lines of Credit (LoCs)
from international/bilateral agencies for providing
assistance to MSMEs for financing Energy Efficiency
(EE) and Cleaner Production (CP) projects.

The objective of these LoCs is to promote
energy saving in Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises in India, by providing financial
assistance to MSMEs, by way of direct
assistance through the branch network of SIDBI
as well as through refinance to Primary Lending
Institutions (PLIs) and Non Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs), and by providing technical
assistance to these financial institutions, thereby
contributing to environmental improvement
and economic development in the country
and control of climate change on the earth.
Further, it also aims to reduce the emission of
greenhouse gases, especially Carbon Dioxide
(CO,) and thus to contribute towards climate
change mitigation.
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SIDBI has launched the End to End Energy
Efficiency Solutions (4E solutions) Product
on June 05, 2014, “World Environment Day”.
The 4E solution launched by SIDBI would
provide technical support to its MSME clients
to improve their energy savings by availing the
services of Energy Services Companies (ESCOs)
at a reasonable cost with assurance on the
quality of services.

SIDBI has signed agreement with World Bank
for “Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy
Efficiency (PRSF) Projects” with a total outlay
of USD 43 million, consisting of a Guarantee
fund of USD 37 million and technical assistance
of a total of USD 6 million. The objective of
the project is to support the Gol’s efforts to
transform the energy efficiency (EE) market
in India by promoting increased level of EE
investments, particularly through energy service
performance contracting (ESPC)
through Energy Service Companies (ESCOs).

delivered

Receivable Finance: Receivable Finance Scheme
(RFS) launched in the year 1991 is one of the
pioneer schemes of the Bank.

During the FY 2013-14, a new refinance facility
of ¥ 5,000 crore was extended by the Reserve
Bank of India effective from November 14,
2013 for a period of one year. The facility
aimed at providing liquidity support against
the receivables of MSMEs directly and through
select intermediaries like Banks, Non Banking
Finance Companies (NBFCs) and State Financial
Corporations (SFCs), was implemented with
effect from December 2013. In a short span from
the implementation, the Bank fully utilized and
drew the facility amount of ¥ 5,000 crore from
the RBI. Cumulative disbursements aggregating
% 20,119 crore covering around 15,000 MSMEs
were made upto September 30, 2014 under the

scheme.
I xvii I
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Trade Finance (Raw Materials) scheme, which
facilitates purchase of raw materials by SMEs
from large suppliers was formally launched
during the year under review. RBI has since
released final guidelines for setting up and
operating the Trade Receivable Discounting
System (TReDS), an institutional mechanism
for facilitating the financing of trade receivables
of MSMEs through multiple financiers.
SIDBI, along with NSE Strategic Investment
Corporation Limited, a subsidiary of NSE, have
jointly filed an application with RBI for setting
up and operating of TReDS platform.

Service Sector Financing: In view of the growing
role of service sector in contribution to national
employment and entrepreneurial
opportunities, SIDBI in the last couple of years
has been focussing on service sector as one of
its niche areas in business. In 2013-14, certain
existing products were modified and a few new
products were introduced suited to the needs
of the sector. With the intention of reaching
out to new business models like franchising, a
study was completed on “Credit Gaps, potential
and financing of Franchisees in India” through
leading consultants. In 2014-15, SIDBI negotiated
new lines of credit for service sector with
international funding agencies like World Bank
and Japanese International Co-operation Agency.

income,

Micro Finance: Micro finance, which promotes
inclusive growth, has been a thrust area of your
Bank. The cumulative assistance including loans,
equity and quasi-equity, sanctioned under SIDBI's
micro finance initiatives upto March 31, 2015
aggregated X 10,719 crore, while cumulative
disbursements aggregated < 9,366 crore. The
outstanding micro credit portfolio of the Bank
stood at T 2,436 crore, as on March 31, 2015.
The assistance through SIDBI has cumulatively
benefited around 332 lakh disadvantaged
persons, most of them being women.
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Addressing Non-financial Gaps

Your Bank has also taken strategic initiatives
for addressing various non-financial gaps for
capacity building of the MSME sector, as well as
for bankers.

Information Dissemination: With a view
to address the information gap by ensuring
availability of relevant information to MSMEs,
your Bank set up a website www.smallB.in to
handhold and guide new entrepreneurs on how
to set up a business, access to finance, avail
benefits under government schemes, etc. The
website has been bestowed with International
ADFIAP Awards 2014 under ‘Technology

Development’ category.

MSME Advisory Centres: SIDBI has set
up MSME Advisory Centres (MACs) for
guiding new/existing entrepreneurs regarding
availability of schemes of commercial banks,
government subsidies/benefits, provide
borrowers with debt counselling, answering
queries raised by banks etc. The MACs
have been servicing MSME clusters across
the country in partnership with Industry
Associations. For manning the MACs, SIDBI has
appointed Knowledge Partners (KPs) who are
retired bank officials, with vast experience of
MSME sector. The KPs have also been suitably
trained for the purpose. So far more than 10,000
MSMEs have benefited through MACs. The
number of clusters covered is being increased
by nomination of KPs in more centers.

Common  Credit Delivery = Mechanism:
Presently, each rating agency has its own
model and approaches for rating of MSMEs.
A need is therefore felt for a Common Rating
Model (CRM) to facilitate standardisation of
forms, grading of units, sharing of knowledge
among stake holders, creating a compatible
database across the country, thus expediting the
diligence process/credit delivery to MSMEs. At
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the instance of SIDBI, Department of Financial
Services, Government of India has constituted a
Task Force for development of CRM for MSMEs
across the financial system. The Task Force
comprises CMD/DMD SIDBI, Joint Secretary (IF)
DFS, Joint Secretary (MSME) Ministry of MSME,
CGM RBI, CEO CARE, CMD/CEO NSIC, CEO
IBA and an industry association representative.

Poorest State Inclusive Growth (PSIG): The
Bank has been implementing the Poorest States
Inclusive Growth Programme (PSIG) supported
by the UKAid from the Department for
International Development (DFID), since April
2012. The seven year programme (2012-2019)
aims at expanding access to a range of financial
services (savings, credit, micro insurance, micro
pension etc.) for poor in the 4 low income states
(Bihar, Odisha, Madhya Pradesh and Uttar
Pradesh). The programme has three outputs
viz. Policy and institutional environment that
encourages provision of financial services to
poor people in a responsible manner facilitated;
Institutions providing diverse financial services
promoted; and Women’s capacities to tackle
financial and gender issues enhanced. The
Programme has a budget of about GBP 27
million. PSIG is expected to leverage private
sector financial and technical resources to reach
up to 12 million direct and indirect beneficiaries.

Entrepreneurship Development: In
its endeavour towards promotion and
development of the MSME sector, SIDBI adopts
a twin approach of creation of enterprises and
strengthening of existing enterprises. The Bank
has also reoriented its promotional activities
towards entrepreneurship development, rural
industrialisation, skill upgradation, cluster
development, which have benefitted the MSME
sector by way of setting up of new enterprises,
generation of employment and income in rural
areas for lower strata of the society.
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Resources Management

Your Bank raised resources aggregating
% 22,664 crore (X 21,149 crore from domestic
and X 1,515 crore from foreign sources) during
FY 2014-15 as against ¥ 32,281 crore during FY
2013-14.

During FY 2014-15, Credit Analysis and
Research Ltd. (CARE) retained ‘CARE AAA’
(Triple A) rating in respect of outstanding debt
issues of SIDBI, the Fixed Deposit Programme
of X 3,000 crore and ‘CARE A1+ (A One Plus)
rating for the CP/CD Programme of X 7,000
crore. Similarly, CRISIL also retained ‘CRISIL
AAA/Stable’ rating in respect of outstanding
bonds and ‘FAAA/stable’ rating for the Fixed
Deposit Programme. During the year, SIDBI
had raised X 3,907 crore by way of bonds using
the above ratings assigned by CRISIL/CARE.
Instruments carrying the above ratings are
considered to be of the best quality, carrying
negligible investment risk.

Human Resources

As on March 31, 2015, your Bank had on its
rolls 1,055 active full time staff comprising 892
officers, 99 class III staff and 64 subordinate
staff. The
was 232. Training of employees has always
been pivotal for upgrading the quality of
manpower and to cope with the changing
business environment. During the year under
review, your Bank made 1,344 nominations
for various inland, in-house and international
training programmes, organized in-house or by
renowned training/academic institutions.

strength of women employees

Associates and Subsidiaries

Your Bank has been constantly working on
building various institutional mechanisms to
cater to the emerging needs of the MSME sector
and has set up various subsidiaries/associates.

xx1
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The operations of your Bank’s subsidiaries and
associates have been satisfactory during the year
under review.

Venture Capital Support:

SIDBI Limited (SVCL)
was established in 1999 as an Investment

Venture  Capital
Management Company for managing Venture
Capital Funds (VCFs)/Alternative Investment
Funds (AIFs). Over the years, SVCL has evolved
into one of the leading institutional investment
management companies in India having focus on
the small and medium sector companies in India.

Since inception, SVCL has continued to be a
source of growth capital to high-quality, growth-
oriented, primarily micro, small and medium
sized companies (MSMEs) across diversified
sectors.

SVCL, at present, is acting as the Investment
Manager for National Venture Fund for Software
and Information Technology Industry (NFSIT),
SME Growth Fund (SGF) [first unit scheme of
SIDBI SME Venture Fund], India Opportunities
Fund (IOF) [second unit scheme of SIDBI SME
Venture Fund], Samridhi Fund (SF) [unit scheme
of SIDBI Social Venture Trust] and TEX Fund
(TF) [a unit scheme of Laghu Vikas Trust].

SVCL has so far invested in 80 early and growth

stage companies from diversified sectors
such as IT/ITES, services, retail, pharma, auto
components, biofuels, textile & garments,
logistics etc and sustainable social enterprises
in sectors such as healthcare, financial services,
water, dairy, agri and allied services etc. It has
fully or partially divested its investments in 43
of 56 companies of its first 2 VCFs viz., NFSIT

and SGF.
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Credit Guarantee:

SIDBI, along with Govt. of India, set up Credit
Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro and Small
Enterprises (CGTMSE) in year 2000 to provide
credit guarantee coverage to collateral free/
third-party guarantee free loans up to X 100
lakh extended by banks/FIs to micro and small
enterprises. Under Credit Gurantee Scheme
(CGS), cumulatively, as on March 31, 2015,
18.17 lakh guarantees (97% for loans below X 25
lakh) for an amount of ¥ 90,446 crore have been
approved.

MSME Ratings:

SIDBI, along with few public sector banks
and Dun & Bradstreet (D&B), set up SMERA
Ratings Limited in August 2005 — an MSME
dedicated third party rating agency to provide
comprehensive, transparent and reliable ratings
and risk profiling. Cumulatively as on March
31, 2015, SMERA has assigned ratings to more
than 34,385 MSME units, out of which MSEs
constituted 99%.

Asset Reconstruction:

SIDBI has also set up India SME Asset
Reconstruction Company Ltd. (ISARC), country’s
first MSME focused ARC striving for speedier
resolution of non-performing assets (NPA)
by unlocking the idle NPAs for productive
purposes which would facilitate greater and
easier flow of credit from the banking sector to
the MSMEs. It started operations in April 2009.
As on March 31, 2015, ISARC has assets under
management of around X 378 crore.

Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA]

During Union Budget of FY 2015-16,
Government of India has announced setting

up of Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA] with the objective of

I Xxiii I
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mainstreaming micro/small business units by
way of providing access to institutional finance
to these ‘own account enterprises’. This will
not only help in improving the quality of life
of these entrepreneurs, but will also contribute
significantly to the employment generation
thereby achieving higher GDP growth. The
agency is responsible for regulating and
refinancing all Micro Finance Institutions
(MFIs), which are in the business of lending
to micro/small business entities engaged in
manufacturing, trading and services activities.

To begin with, MUDRA will function as a
subsidiary of SIDBI. The agency has started
with a corpus of X 20,000 crore and credit
guarantee corpus of X 3,000 crore and will
refinance Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs)
through a Pradhan Mantri Mudra Yojana.

Awards

During the year 2014-15, the Bank received the
first best “Vigilance Excellence Award” in the
Banking Sector category instituted by Institute
of Public Enterprises, Hyderabad. The award
came as a recognition of the good work done by
SIDBI in the field of Vigilance Administration,
e-initiative, leveraging technology and above
all, its efforts in spreading Vigilance Awareness.
SIDBI emerged the winner out of a field
comprising top public sector banks of the
country:.

Your Bank won coveted second prize for two
consecutive years i.e. year 2012-13 and 2013-14
under Indira Gandhi Rajbhasha Shield Yojna,
being conducted by the Ministry of Home
Affairs, Rajbhasha Vibhag. The above prizes
were received on September 14, 2014 and
November 13, 2014 from the Honb’le President
of India. The Bank also received consolation
prizes for commendable Hindi implementation
in region ‘C’ & region ‘B’ during the year 2012-
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13 and 2013-14 respectively under the Reserve
Bank of India Rajbhasha Shield Pratiyogita. The
prizes were awarded by the Governor of RBL

International awards are given out each year
by the Association of Development Financial
Institutions in Asia and the Pacific (ADFIAP),
showcasing Development Financial Institutions’
outstanding achievements/initiatives in various
areas. We have the pleasure of informing that
SIDBI has been chosen for 3 ADFIAP Awards
for 2014:

(i) “smallB.in - Promoting Youth
Entrepreneurship”  under  Technology
Development category.

(i) “HR Automation Project” under

Technology Development Category.

(iii) “Poorest States Inclusive Growth (PSIG)
Programme” under ‘Financial Inclusion’
category.

Your Bank was also conferred in the 2nd Annual
Flagship event “MSME Banking Excellence
Awards - 2014” organized by Chamber of
Indian Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises
(CIMSME) in the category - “Special Jury Award
for Serving MSMEs”.

Also, World HRD Congress and ABP News
jointly conferred SIDBI with “SPECIAL AWARD
FOR ENCOURAGING SME” at The BFSI
Awards 2015 on February 14, 2015 at Mumbai.

ACCESS bestowed upon Mr. N. K. Maini,
ex- Deputy Managing Director of the Bank,
the Award for the Lifetime Contribution to
the Micro finance Sector under “Individual
Contribution” category in the Micro finance
India Awards

on the 1st day of the Inclusive Finance India

Presentation Ceremony held
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Summit 2014 on December 8th at New Delhi.
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Global growth in 2014-15 was moderate and
picked up only marginally to 2.6 percent, from
2.5 percent in 2013-14. The global economy
is still struggling to gain momentum as many
high-income countries continue to grapple
with the legacies of the global financial crisis.
With low oil prices and gradual recovery in
high-income countries, developing economies
are expected to witness an increase in growth
from 4.4% in 2013-14 to 4.8% and 5.3% in 2014-
15 and 2015-16, respectively. In case of India,
the growth in GDP is expected to be 7.8%
in FY 2015-16 as against 7.4% estimated for
FY 2014-15. This growth momentum will be
supported by a prudent fiscal policy gearing
to an investment-led growth, low crude prices,
low inflation, progress on stalled projects and
accelerated policy reforms.

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Sector

The MSME sector has been the mainstay of the
Indian economy by providing the second largest
share of employment to Indian population after
agriculture. MSMEs have reduced regional
imbalances by helping the industrialization
of rural and backward areas. MSMEs are
complementary to large industries as ancillary
units and this sector contributes enormously to
the socio-economic development of the country.

The MSME sector contributes greatly to growth
of Indian economy with a vast network of
over 46 million units, creating employment
of over 106 million, manufacturing more
than 6000 products, contributing about 45%
to manufacturing output and about 40% of
exports. This sector even assumes greater
importance now as the country moves
towards a faster and inclusive growth agenda.
MSMEs have also shown higher growth rate.
Moreover, it is the MSME sector which can
help realize the target of proposed National
Manufacturing Policy (NMP) of raising the
share of manufacturing sector in GDP from 16%
at present to 25% by 2022.
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AfASHT 1.1: G&H, oY U HeAT AT ehT Shid-Froame=T
Table 1.1: Performance of MSMEs

R)
- Waﬂﬁ'{frm(w). 3 R mwﬁlﬁmww.(mﬁg)
Year Total Working Enterprise Enpi e RLh) Market Value of Fixed
(In Lakh) Assets (In Crore)

2006-07 361.76t 805.23t 8,68,543.79°
2007-08# 377.37 842.23 9,20,459.84
2008-09# 393.70 881.14 9,77,114.72
2009-10# 410.82 922.19 10,38,546.08
2010-11# 428.77 965.69 11,05,934.09
2011-12# 447.73 1,012.59 11,83,332.00
2012-13# 467.56 1,061.52 12,69,338.02

t o/gen =R, fafu, fran & S aret, ged 9
T, uRaeT T8 9USRUT qUT SERERMAT (Fieg WSl &
2005, X TSR FETT, THUTE Hed ¥ fow )

@ 9T ITH I % MR T ST, ST &eh/Ge &R,
fafy, forem wa wIfSTer Garedl, gled 9 &, IReed
YUERUT AT JIER[AT  (Fes WRS Bl BIEHL)
Tfafafert & o sysierd &7 o T geeur ¥ fow T i
57 =iteft e1fEer WS THUEUAE- 0T, 3Tsfigha & ¥ aTe
T@1 T o

N CRIIE ]

wia: faxig af 2013-14 ) aifver fTUd, TITHTAS T3, IR
THT |

T ugeTeRatuat

frors faom@ & fow YT &t Sgfg-er § tHUHUAS
% TG T HE™ HI W g¥, WRA TR 3R HRAT
festd S 7 THTHTHE % o %v-veTe ¥ gf & sevd
Y %% FeH IIT 2| WHN i {57 Tgtehefmadl ol
YHRTH 3T THTHTHE &7 T IS, 39 T §-

o Ueh o Efear wESHA
T FE%T ¥ 9 U@ T TeoeeHal wiHd €,
S erT 33T w7 # weg AT, TAY T a6

ST, difge GWEl i L& T I guR K
Tt fafmior sTeicemT o1 i s =

t Including activities of wholesale/retail trade, legal,
education & social services, hotel & restaurants,
transports and storage & warehousing (except cold
storage) for which data were extracted Economic
Census 2005, Central Statistics Office, M/o SPI.

* Estimated on the basis of per enterprises value
obtained from sample survey of unregistered
sector for activities wholesale/retail trade, legal,
education & social services, hotel & restaurants,
transports and storage & warehousing(except cold
storage) which were excluded from Fourth All
India Census of MSME, unregistered sector

# Projected

Source: Annual Report FY 2013-14, Ministry of
MSME, Govt. of India

Policy Initiatives

With growing importance of MSMEs in India’s
growth story for sustainable development,
Government of India (Gol) and Reserve Bank of
India (RBI) had taken several steps to increase
credit flow to MSMEs.
initiatives undertaken by the Government, which
will impact the MSME sector positively, are:

The various new

* The Make in India Programme

The
initiatives designed to facilitate investment,
foster protect
property build

manufacturing infrastructure.

programme includes major new

intellectual
best-in-class

innovation,
and

S



N

qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

TR T T 25 &A1 1 TG ST € ST - 3797
g § 9YRA T SIUT S I &HAT T@ € |
3T el H UHUGUEE i SgAdl © | SO SEYd
fafwfor & ot ¥gfg &1 agEr & 3T W &
qohel TR 3TE | 3T feeq ¥ gfg T 7 |

ekl ey Saemie €8 ety T ()
T YIRE AT T T 08 WA 2015 T
fenam | sereht orerfier Sev A o1 SUR <
&, foosr foq erfm B/ w @ 37 fawemrsi
1 faeg 3 [iaxied foear smom, St g @
Y FAUH THFAT HI IUN & T FRIAR 6
T ST H qF § I YHR F IAG B WO
Tt - % 50,000 ¥ T 10 G qF B EI-
STETAHAT AT G&H FehTeAl o foIg, qAfad 3cTe,
TAT I YR e o7 & fAu sveq ford Heema
I T |

I NG, [T U9

3T 1§ °Ter o qeh THUHEAS o Fufi-frerfeor
3R ITH! TERT &1 & 32T T WHR T I
37T, T T HSe AR R B, aifeh e
JIEfTeh! T ST Rd §U Farcp® Tora]
el IS ST ST Teh | I8 JA S [Orer- g7k
fafmir & Ty & ff ST ® WaR & mmE!
3R Wk T 3feA SN F EY T WA
TS o W07 § T S YT ST, I
g9’ a'ﬁ' lond gen( AlH U] foar T %| 9
‘STE IRuger Wied W Y&, @Y 6 HEH ITH
TATCE, STEfTeR M T Haw fadmT qer wRed
AT TR G &9 T HTH T T T

The Government has identified 25 sectors,
which have potential to make India a
leader in their respective fields. These
industries are dominated by MSMEs. The
aim is to boost manufacturing sector’s
growth and increase its share in the
country’s GDP.

Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency

Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA] was launched on
April 08, 2015 by Hon’ble Prime Minister
with the prime objective of funding the
unfunded by way of development and
refinancing the last mile financiers, which
are in the business of lending to micro
and small business entities. To start with,
MUDRA will have two categories of
product, viz., refinance product for the
micro units having loan requirement of
X 50,000 to X 10 lakh and support to MFIs
for onlending, etc.

Zero Defect, Zero Effect

The Government has launched a ‘Zero
Defect, Zero Effect' model to rate and
handhold MSMEs for next three to five
years to deliver top quality products using
clean technology. The move is in line with
the Government’s effort for high quality
local manufacturing and Make in India
campaign. Deriving its name from Hon’ble
Prime Minister’s speech, ‘Zero Defect,
Zero Effect’, the ‘ZED maturity model” is
being jointly worked out by the Ministry
of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises;
the Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion (DIPP) and Quality Council of
India (QCI).
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*  Ease of Doing Business

Taking a major step towards achieving its
aim of improving India’s ranking on “Ease
of Doing Business” index, the Government
has launched an eBiz portal, which is a
Government-to-Business (G2B) portal with
eleven government services. The single-
window portal by the Department of
Industrial Policy and Promotion (DIPP)
provides all business- and investment-
related clearances 24x7 with an integrated
payment gateway:.

* Micro and Small Cluster
Development Programme (MSE - CDP),
an important scheme was
subsuming Industry
Development component to build capacity
and provide support for Infrastructure

Enterprises

re-framed
Infrastructure

Development. In addition, National
Manufacturing & Competitiveness
Programme (NMCP) was initiated to

streamline the manufacturing process.

RBI Policy Measures

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on March 04,
2015 cut down repo rate by 25 basis points to
7.5 percent from 7.75 percent, with immediate
effect. However, RBI has kept the Cash Reserve
Ratio (CRR) unchanged at 4 percent. It is the
second change in rates by 25 basis points since
January 2015. As per the recommendation of
the Internal Working Group of RBI, in addition
to micro and enterprises,
enterprises are included within the ambit of
priority sector lending. However, to ensure that
the micro and small enterprises are not crowded
out, a sub-target of 7.5% for micro enterprises
has been recommended, which is to be achieved
in a phased manner over a period of two years
as 7 percent by March 2016 and 7.5 percent by

small medium

March 2017.
I 5 I
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The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has announced
the guidelines for setting up and operating
the Trade Receivables Discounting System
(TReDS). TReDs is a scheme for setting up and
operating the electronic institutional mechanism
to facilitate the financing of trade receivables
of micro, small and medium enterprises
(MSMESs) from corporate and other buyers,
including government departments and public
sector undertakings (PSUs) through multiple
financiers.

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) being rolled
out from April 2016, will put in place state-of-
art tax system replacing the current VAT system
allowing companies to grow evenly while helping
the government to plug tax leakages. GST is
expected to play a transformative role in the way
our economy functions. It will add buoyancy to
our economy by developing a common Indian
market and reducing the cascading effect on the
cost of goods and services.

For promotion of start-ups and entrepreneurs,
a Self Employment and Talent Ultilization
(SETU) fund with a corpus of X 1,000 crore is
announced. This fund will act as a techno-
financial incubation and facilitation program.

Signning of MOU with Nathional Institute of Bank Management (NIBM), Pune to set up a "MSME Centre of Excellence"

N —
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Technology driven start-ups and budding
entrepreneurs in the sector will now have active
support from the SETU fund allowing them to
compete globally.

The Government of India has launched the
Atal Innovation Mission (AIM), which will be
an Innovation Promotion Platform involving
academics, entrepreneurs and researchers
and draw upon national and international
experiences to foster a culture of innovation,
R & D and scientific research in India. The
platform will also promote a network of world-
class innovation hubs. A sum of ¥ 150 crore has
been earmarked for this purpose.

Union Budget 2015-16

¢ In order to foster a healthy ecosystem of
start-ups in the country and allow greater
access to new technology for their business,
the royalty tax paid by entrepreneurs
slashed from 25% to 10%.

e  The Government also announced reduction
in the corporate tax from 30% to 25% over
the next four years.

IS THUHS T WA T IR
Launching of WORLD SME TRADE CENTRE

N
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e To give a boost to domestic leather
footwear industry, the excise duty on
footwear with leather uppers and having
retail price of more than X 1,000 per pair is
to be reduced to 6%.

MSME Outlook

The Bank is walking with the Govt. of India in
promoting inclusive growth through ‘SABKA
SAATH, SABKA VIKAS'. The thrust of the
business strategy of the Bank for MSME sector
will be to ‘Make in India’. With the prudent
policy initiatives of Govt. of India, the prospects
of the Indian economy and MSMEs remain
positive.



SIDBI @

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

T % Gt et oh ferg it ot doeh
Regional Consultaion Meeting on way forward for MUDRA

I e} YOfereh YgeThe gl
3R g9 9=

Strategic Business Initiatives
and Oveall Operations
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The business domain of SIDBI consists of
micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs),
which contribute significantly to the national
economy in terms of production, employment
and exports. SIDBI supplements the efforts
of existing institutions through its direct
assistance schemes to reach financial assistance
to the ultimate borrowers in the MSME sector.
Some financial gaps addressed by

the Bank are equity/risk capital, receivable

niche

finance, sustainable finance which includes
energy efficiency (EE)/clean production (CP)
technology, services sector financing, factoring
and reverse factoring, etc. Refinancing, bills
rediscounting, lines of credit and resource
support mechanisms have evolved over time to
route SIDBI’s assistance through the network of
other retail institutions in the financial system.
Brief highlights of some of the important
business initiatives are enumerated in the
following paragraphs:

I Business Strategy

i.  Equity/Risk Capital
One of the major problems faced by MSME
entrepreneurs is lack of adequate capital/equity

required for raising funds from banks and
institutions.

e In SIDBI, risk capital/equity assistance is
provided to MSMEs directly using various
mezzanine structures as well as through
Fund of Funds operation (ie. through
VCFs). The risk capital assistance is offered
on the backing of future cash-flows and
prospects of the unit assisted rather than
asset coverage/collaterals.

e SIDBI had started the risk capital
operations in 2009 under the MSME Risk
Capital Fund (MSME-RCF) with a corpus
of ¥ 2,000 crore. An amount of T 1,500
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crore has been drawn out of MSME-RCF
so far. Further, in 2013, India Opportunities
Venture Fund (IOVF) of X 2,000 crore
had been set up. The fund could not be
operationalised due to certain constraints,
which have since been overcome. The fund
is being made operational during FY 2015-16.

SIDBI has also piloted a scheme to
assist start-ups and early stage ventures
selectively,  operating in  innovative/
technology space, including those being
incubated at technology incubators. Such
units could be in pre-commercialisation
stage, pre-profit stage, etc. and find it
difficult to raise finance from the formal
banking system due to high perceived
risk besides absence of tangible security/
collaterals to offer. SIDBI has been
working with incubators and other angel
networks to identify and support deserving
start-ups. SIDBI has also entered into
formal understanding with NASSCOM
and ISPIRT for evaluation of start-up
proposals from technical perspective, USP,
scalability and sustainability. The scheme
was formally rolled out during the year.
So far 49 start-ups have been sanctioned
assistance aggregating X 47 crore under the
Scheme.

Under direct risk capital operations, as on
March 31, 2015, the outstanding under Risk
Capital was X 928 crore. SIDBI also extends
assistance to Venture Capital (VC) Funds.
The cumulative net commitments to VC
Funds as at the end of FY 2014-15 stood at
X 1,713 crore.

Sustainable Finance

Since 2003, SIDBI has been operating focused
lending schemes for promoting investment

T
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in clean production and energy efficient
technologies/production processes under
bilateral lines of credit from international

agencies such as JICA, Japan, AFD, France
and KfW, Germany. These focused schemes
have two pronged approach, i.e. concessional
lending to encourage investment in green
energy efficient investments and information
dissemination to various MSME sectors. SIDBI'’s
strategic partnership with World Bank (WB) and
Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) for financing
energy efficiency in MSMEs has provided an
impetus to EE based investments.

Energy Efficiency Lines of Credit

SIDBI has been operating focused concessional
lending schemes for EE out of Lines of Credit
(LoCs)
agencies, viz. Japan International Cooperation
Agency (JICA) Phase I - JPY 30 billion,
Phase - II — JPY 30 billion, Phase - IIT — JPY 30
billion, Agence Francaise de Développement
(AFD) — EUR 50 million and Kreditanstalt fur
Wiederaufbau (KfW) — EUR 50 million. The
main objectives of these schemes are to reduce
energy consumption, enhance energy efficiency,
reduce CO, emissions and improve the
profitability of the Indian MSMEs in the long
run.

from various multilateral/bilateral

Besides credit, SIDBI is also engaged in the
capacity building of the MSME sector with
various awareness programmes on the benefits
of adopting EE measures, identifying and
documenting EE machineries, disseminating
information on EE technology
awareness on measurement & verification of
implemented measures, financial schemes
for EE etc. SIDBI has reached more than 100
industrial clusters and more than 2,500 MSMEs
and awareness on EE has been created to 4,000
participants from the MSMEs.

transfers,
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Cleaner Production/Environmental
Lines of credit

SIDBI has contracted LoCs aggregating to an
amount of EUR 53.74 million from KfW for
promoting investment in cleaner production
options in the MSME sector. The main objective
of the line is to achieve a reduction or avoidance
of emission and pollution through cleaner
production investments. Investment such as
Common Effluent Treatment Plants (CETPs),
waste treatment, storage & disposal facilities,
waste recycling, etc., benefitting large number
of MSMEs in the industrial clusters are also
eligible under the assistance. Individual MSMEs
going in for investments that will result in the
pollution control, waste reduction, improvement
in raw material productivity etc., are eligible
for coverage under the line. So far, 308 MSMEs
have been assisted with an aggregate term loan
of more than X 389 crore.

WB-GEF Project — Financing Energy
Efficiency in MSMEs

SIDBI along with BEE is executing a Global
Facility (GEF) funded WB
project, viz. “Financing Energy Efficiency at
MSMEs” in five MSME clusters viz., Kolhapur-
foundry, Tirunelveli- Limekilns, Ankleshwar-
chemicals, Pune- forging and Faridabad- mixed
cluster. The objective of the project is to increase
demand for energy efficiency investments in
the target MSME clusters and to build their
capacity to access commercial finance. The key
beneficiaries of the project include participating
MSMEs who will realize the potential benefits
from EE investments/improvements; Banks/FIs
from increased business opportunities; energy
professionals & Local Service Providers (LSPs)
from increased demand for their services and
Industry Associations enabling them to carry
out EE related activities in their clusters. The
main deliverable of the project is to provide

Environmental

B
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technical support to MSMEs resulting in
catalyzing investments for implementing Energy
Conservation Measures by around 500 MSME
units in these 5 clusters. The duration of the

project is till December 2016.

Cluster Profile Reports of all the five clusters
have been developed. More than 1,100 walk-
through audits and 628 detailed energy audits
have been conducted and 599 Investment
Grade Detailed Project Report (IGDPRs)
have been prepared in the five clusters under
the project. Implementation of identified
Energy Conservation Measures has already
been started in the clusters. More than 500
MSMEs have already started implementing
the identified Energy Conservation Measures.
“Integrated Credit Rating Model
with Embedded Green Parameters” has been
developed and pilot tested by SIDBI under its
WB-GEF Project.

A new

With a view to create a demonstration effect of
financing of comprehensive energy efficiency
retrofit (CERI) proposals, a
revolving fund scheme for financing End to End
Energy Efficiency Investments in MSMEs viz.
“4E Financing Scheme” has also been created to
provide loans for energy efficiency projects to
MSMESs at concessional interest rates and soft
terms. The revolving fund shall include GEF
grant of USD 3 million from World Bank and
contribution from SIDBI out of its general funds
in the ratio of (28:72).

investments

Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy
Efficiency (PRSF) Project

SIDBI has signed agreement with World Bank
for “Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy
Efficiency (PRSF) Projects” with a total outlay
of USD 43 million consisting of following
components:
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e Component 1: A guarantee fund (risk
sharing facility) corpus of USD 37 million
to be managed by SIDBI, and

¢ Component 2: Technical Assistance of a
USD 4 million to be implemented by SIDBI
and USD 2 million to be implemented by
Energy Efficiency Services Limited.

The objective of the project is to support the
Gol’s efforts to transform the EE market in India
by promoting increased level of EE investments,
particularly through energy service performance
contracting (ESPC) delivered through ESCOs.
Under the project, the guarantee fund operated
by SIDBI will guarantee the loans given by
Banks/FIs/NBFCs (including SIDBI loans) to
ESCOs
minimize their risk perception and also to
kick-start the ESPC based ESCO market for EE
Projects in India.

and ESCO-implemented projects to

iii Receivable Finance Scheme

Receivable Finance Scheme (RFS), launched in
the year 1991, is one of the pioneer schemes of
the Bank. In order to help the MSMEs in quicker
realization of their receivables, SIDBI fixes limits
to well-performing purchaser companies and
discounts usance bills of MSMEs/eligible service
sector units supplying components, parts, sub-
assemblies, services, etc. so that the MSME/
service sector units realise their sale proceeds
quickly. SIDBI also offers invoice discounting
facilities to the MSME suppliers of purchaser

companies.

Keeping in view the need to increase the
composition of secured portfolio, the norms
under the scheme were strengthened during the
year. Some of the business initiatives taken are
as follows:

T
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* A special refinance facility of ¥ 5,000 crore
was extended by Reserve Bank of India
effective from November 14, 2013 for a
period of one year. The facility aimed at
providing liquidity support against the
receivables of micro, small and medium
enterprises both directly and through select
intermediaries like banks, NBFCs and
SFCs, was implemented with effect from
December 2013. The facility was extended
by way of direct and indirect assistance
through various products, including bills
re-discounting against the MSME bills
discounted by the banks. Cumulative
disbursements aggregating I 20,119 crore
covering around 15,000 MSMEs were made
upto September 30, 2014.

¢ Based on the successful running of pilot
scheme launched by SIDBI during FY 2012-
13, Trade Finance (raw materials) scheme
was formally launched during the year.
This scheme facilitates purchase of raw
materials by MSMEs from large corporates.

iv. Service Sector Financing

The services sector has emerged as the largest
sector in the Indian
contributions  to

and fastest-growing
economy, making higher
the output and employment. Its growth rate
has been higher than that of agriculture and
manufacturing sectors.

In view of the growing role of service sector in
contribution to national income, employment
and entrepreneurial opportunities, SIDBI has
been focussing on service sector as one of its
niche areas in business. Going forward, it is
proposed to focus on introducing appraisal
processes and rating models suited to new
business models like franchisee financing and
cashflow based assistance, among other things
and streamline and improve upon existing
processes for more effective credit delivery.



TEHRT ASIST i et ot o &0 |
faget

fasdt, e, @Y w9 AW SEE B ST FAF IR
ey foritar gerar o wre-wry, 39 fafye st
% FEAET H Ared TSt Ht 9t o fumr 7, S
WRT TR §NT G&, Y TG TEAH T ol Y/
Seiey WEififeEa o & fou Sefed w7 ¥
3% &7 % foau 9o T R €1 A € - w0
et gt wfehel A (Heewias) gan, o
Td HeTH IOH TACE, 9% SN g NN 39
ffer AT (TF) (% HoATer) Tehioh M & ferehry
T (SMESITTITE) (SfoTew 3R SN THeE) @
TEGHTOT SN STl 3o/ S ek e TvT/
fae ST (TRTICH) (@Te TSR0l 3TN HaTerd)
3R STt X ToreaT S9E AT (SFeT) A
(9&H, Y T 7egH IgH HA1erd) |

TriteneiT 9d & IR, fogedt ¥ voe Y T gerEam
709 T g&F TS @Y ITHl % FA T 33.19 FUS H
ISt Tt arat o1 e HuerivaTy & i fear
AT | 3Eh STfaRh, Hears Mrefies FURHT Heems
o Ha § 2,788 Y& T oY I % FHoA T 209.19
FUE & Hieer qa &1 ff faem foar mam) spa
2000 H IF ASHT *T 3R T & a1 § 18,740
THEA o FoA T 1,111.31 FHUS () & G0 wfedret
TEl T MIaE fRar T T YR, T o ST,
fest ¥ yoIed: T Al % fT 494 U o
THRAT oF FA T 9.96 HAUS ok qAT Ao qefien
FUTETHT TS FRT e T T S BT HST FgTH
% FaY H FA T 10.06 FUS & GGt @l (AW
JIegTe Wfegel X Uei/mifsH qfer afsgst, <) o
fIger foram a1 3T 1999 H TWT T YA & a1
YT 702.74 FS F YoTt YIS S =TT HedTeT
fITamE T | T 2005 F ARY §F LS ICTAH F
3T 1,759 THEAT o6 FA T 291.69 HUS oh Fadl

Annual Report 2014-15

SIDBI as Nodal
Government Schemes

Agency for

In addition to its direct and indirect financial
support to MSMES, SIDBI also plays a nodal
agency role in implementation of various
schemes for MSME sector undertaken by the
Government of India (Gol), viz. Credit Linked
Capital Subsidy Scheme (CLCSS) [Ministry
of MSME], Technology Upgradation Fund
Scheme for Textile Industry (TUFS) [Ministry
of Textiles], Integrated Development of
Leather Sector Scheme (IDLSS) [Ministry of
Commerce & Industry], Scheme of Technology
Upgradation/Setting up/Modernization/
Expansion of Food Processing Industries
(FPTUFS) [Ministry of Food Processing
Industries] and Technology and Quality
Upgradation (TEQUP) Scheme [Ministry of
MSME] to encourage MSMEs in adopting
modern/energy efficient technologies.

During the year under review, capital subsidy
claims of 709 eligible Micro and Small
Enterprises (MSEs) directly assisted by SIDBI
aggregating X 33.19 crore were settled under
CLCSS. Further, subsidy claims of 2,788 MSEs
amounting to I 209.19 crore in respect of co-
opted Primary Lending Institutions (PLIs) were
also settled. Since the launch of the Scheme in
October 2000, capital subsidy claims of 18,740
units aggregating I 1,111.31 crore (cumulative)
were settled. Similarly under TUEFS, subsidy
claims (both interest incentive subsidy &
capital/margin money subsidy) of 494 eligible
textile units for SIDBI's directly assisted cases
amounting to I 9.96 crore and subsidy claims
aggregating < 10.06 crore were settled in
respect of the co-opted PLIs for their assistance
to micro & small enterprises. Since the launch
of the TUFS in April 1999, capital subsidy
and interest incentive claims for an amount
of X 702.74 crore have been settled. Under
IDLSS, which was launched in November 2005,

T
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cumulative claims of 1,759 units aggregating
% 291.69 crore were settled including 126 units
amounting to X 39.90 crore during FY 2014-15.
Under FPTUEFS, subsequent to decentralization
of the scheme from April 2007, 58 cases have
been recommended for grant-in-aid amounting
to X 14.03 crore to the Ministry, against which
subsidy aggregating I 10.50 crore has been
released to 49 units, assisted by SIDBI. Under
TEQUP, 27 cases involving X 2.19 crore were
disbursed as eligible subsidy during the year for
the first time.

II. Risk Management

SIDBI has put in place a comprehensive Risk
Management System which is sensitive and
responsive to various risks emanating from its
business and other operations. The framework
for risk management in the Bank encompasses
policies,
and practices for identification, assessment/
measurement, mitigation and monitoring of
various risks of the Bank. The Bank has in place
Enterprise Risk Management [ERM]
which is reviewed annually. The ERM Policy is
an umbrella document that covers the general/
common aspects pertaining to risk management
by the Bank and links to the subsidiary policy
documents, viz.,, Loan Policy, Loan Recovery
Policy, Investment Policy, Asset - Liability
Management [ALM] Policy, Operational Risk
Management [ORM] Policy, Business Continuity
Management [BCM] Policy, IT Security Policy,
Delegation of Powers, etc. Besides the credit,
market

organization structure, system

Policy

and operational risks covered in
various policies, the other risks, viz., residual
credit, credit concentration, interest rate risks
in banking book, legal, reputation, etc., are
addressed in the Internal Capital Adequacy

Assessment Process (ICAAP) Policy.

The risks associated with the Bank’s lending and
treasury operations, including off-balance sheet
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items, are constantly monitored, measured and
managed under the overall supervision and
guidance of the Risk Management Committee
[RiIMC] of the Board. Though not enjoined
upon the Bank, as a proactive measure to
be in preparedness of compliance to Basel II
norms, the Bank has put in place Integrated
[IRMS], which
includes policies and systems for Credit Risk
Management [CRM], Market Risk Management,
ORM and ICAAP. The Bank has implemented
Comprehensive Operational Risk Evaluator
(CORE) system which is used for Loss Data
Capture, Key Risk Indicator (KRI), and Risk
and Control Self Assessment (RCSA). The
Bank has also implemented BCM Policy, which

Risk Management System

is designed to ensure continuity of critical

business operations during disasters. The
intention is to ensure that the Bank is able to
minimize the disruption to critical operations at
a level which is acceptable to Management by
putting in place a robust and resilient business

continuity strategy and framework.

III. NPA Management

In order to improve the overall quality of assets
of the Bank, the priority is to reduce the present
level of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs), prevent
further slippages and to maximise recovery out
of NPAs through appropriate recovery tools. All
accounts showing signs of stress, both under
indirect as well as direct portfolios, are being
closely monitored and appropriate recovery
strategy adopted by the Bank on a case-to-case
basis. As per the directives of Gol, a Board level
‘Recovery Review Committee’ has also been
constituted to review all individual NPA cases
having principal outstanding of I 3 crore and
above. The system of in-house Default Review
Committee (DRC) at the Operating Offices to

T
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monitor the NPA accounts and other accounts
causing concern has become an effective
monitoring tool. The meetings of DRCs at
various operating offices were held regularly to
decide about the strategy for recovery of dues
and resolution of accounts causing concern and/
or categorised as NPA. The level of NPAs under
direct assistance portfolio (after Prudential Write
Off (PWQ)), stood at ¥ 606 crore as at March 31,
2015 which was 1.09% of total net portfolio of

the Bank.

At the same time, the Bank has recovered
% 117 crore from NPA accounts under Direct
Credit portfolio, including ¥ 15.70 crore out of
prudentially written off accounts.

In case of Indirect Assistance portfolio
(including Micro Finance), the level of NPAs
decreased to ¥ 135 crore as on March 31, 2015
as 0.24% of total portfolio of the Bank. The
Bank has been taking a number of initiatives,
including dialogues with the state governments
concerned, to safeguard its interests in respect
of NPA of SFCs. The Gross NPAs as a ratio
of Gross outstanding of the Bank as at end of
March 2015 has improved to 1.33% as compared
to 1.86% as at end March, 2014. The net NPAs as
a ratio of net outstanding of the Bank as at end
of March 2015 stood at 0.78% as compared to

0.45% as at end March, 2014.

IV. Overall Operations

The total MSME outstanding credit of the Bank
stood at ¥ 55,343 crore as on March 31, 2015 as
against X 61,271 crore as on March 31, 2014. The
cumulative disbursement by SIDBI to the MSME
sector since inception stood at over X 3.90 lakh
crore, benefiting more than 346 lakh persons in
the MSME sector. The outstanding details are
given in Table 2.1.
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@ &S / crore)

faawuT / Particulars

fa<irer a9 2013-14 / FY 2013-14

fa<ir a¢ 2014-15 / FY 2014-15

FShTAT T / O/s Amt
(T 31 urer / As on March 31)

FAHTAT YT/ O/s Amt
(T 31 el / As on March 31)

YT KT / Indirect Credit

%. T / a. Refinance 40,383 38,098
. 3T %7/ b. Micro Finance 1,170 1,603
T. 39/ c. Others 7,705 4,054
e AT HRAT 49,258 43,755
Total Indirect Credit

U /0T / Direct Credit

T 0T o ST Ay 0T 9144 9,505
Term Loan under Direct Credit

TS 5T foed 2,869 2,083
MSME Receivable Finance

el U HUT 12,013 11,588
Total Direct Credit

Hehe! I1T / Grand Total 61,271 55,343
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Note: Outstanding figures are net of prudential
write off and NPA provision

IV. Indirect Credit

Indirect credit constitutes 80% of total credit
outstanding of SIDBI. It comprises refinancing
support to banks, State Financial Corporations
(SFCs), Bills Rediscounting support to banks,
assistance to Microfinance Institutions (MFIs)
and resource support to various institutions and
agencies.

1. Micro & Small Enterprises Refinance
Scheme (MSERS - General Fund)

Micro and Small Enterprises Refinance
Scheme (MSERS) is offered to Scheduled
Banks (including State Co-operative Banks,
Urban Co-operative Banks, Private Sector
Banks, Foreign Banks etc.), select Financial
Institutions for the amount equivalent

S
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to the outstanding portfolio relating to
loans and advances to units in MSE sector
against which no financial support has
been sought from any other institution
or refinance from SIDBI. The refinance
is generally extended for six months to
five years. The rate of interest and the
frequency of payment are negotiable,
depending upon market conditions. During
FY 2014-15, a sum of ¥ 35,308 crore was
disbursed to 17 Public/Private Sector Banks.

Refinance Scheme for Micro and Small
Enterprises Sector (RMSE-V)

In order to enhance the refinance capability
of SIDBI, the Government of India, through
Budget for FY 2013-14 had increased the
allocation from a level of ¥ 5,000 crore
to X 10,000 crore per year. Accordingly,
Reserve Bank of India had allocated a
corpus of X 10,000 crore to SIDBI under
the MSE (Refinance) Fund FY 2013-14. Out
of the corpus of X 10,000 crore allocated,
SIDBI disbursed X 3,047.03 crore to micro
and small enterprises through banks which
had lent to MSEs at base rate.

Special Refinance Scheme (SRS)

During the FY 2013-14, Special Refinance
Scheme (SRS) a new refinance facility of
X 5,000 crore was extended by the Reserve
Bank of India effective from November 14,
2013 for a period of one year. The facility
aimed at providing liquidity support
against the receivables of MSEs directly
and through select intermediaries like
banks, NBFCs and SFCs, was implemented
with effect from December 2013. The
availability of refinance under the facility
was restricted to 90 days period reckoned
from the date of utilization and could be
rolled over upto November 13, 2014. The
scheme was fully utilized and there is no
outstanding under the scheme at present.
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2014-15 & 3NM, 5 AFE TF fa<i i o6t
¥ 143.46 FUS H [faW AT ST W TE,
frm, o foxi frm, AegmeeT fasis fm @@
Aferg it ferer fm fafres )

31T faw

fagal oTeafa & ol YR < o GaY § Uk Frauid
THfT 19T TET §, A1 STREH! faaaT Hi agmEn
T T Y GhAET HI BT TITUE T @@ ST G |
TR, 39 &F Hl A & I, e 7 Th aem
AR HT T, S 7= FHHETHCT el Teqfaxy GLemait
T SULFHT TE WA & KU 9 foI@d STy H
21 WY €, fage T STeea Biel Teafar RS
frefie oo e frafor wemear shfves &9 9 597 ©, S
3MEWRIT e o g G faferlt ¥ dfaad w® &
off |

gy &, foedt g guw WA T R 50,000 -
% 10,00,000 3 = o %07 o foqareoT =g o TRTEAT
FeeTet anfe o WA § SUT T T € | BT g A
it o fereaooT @ Tetel U Shumsseq ¥ HOTHATE st

T
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4, Line of Credit to State Financial

Corporation (SFCs)

Under the scheme, SIDBI grants refinance
against term loans sanctioned by the SFCs
to industrial concerns in micro, small
and medium enterprises for setting up of
industrial projects in MSME sector and
also for their expansion, modernisation
and diversification. Based on the annual
Business Plan and Resources Forecast
(BPRF), refinance limits are sanctioned to
SFCs annually. During FY 2014-15, refinance
limit of ¥ 143.46 crore was sanctioned to 5
standard SFCs viz., Andhra Pradesh State
Financial ~ Corporation (APSFC), Delhi
Financial Corporation (DFC), Kerala Financial
Corporation ~ (KFC), =~ Madhya Pradesh
Financial Corporation (MPFC) and Tamilnadu
Industrial Investment Corporation Ltd. (TIIC).

Micro Finance

SIDBI has been following a growth strategy
with regard to lending to microfinance sector
to increase portfolio, while promoting and
ensuring responsible financing at the same time.
Accordingly, in line with the sectoral demand,
SIDBI has introduced a product which offers
longer tenor Loans and Instruments for well-
performing Micro Finance Institutions (MFIs).
It has also gradually enhanced funding and
capacity building support to smaller MFIs,
which have been deprived of the institutional
funding after the Andhra Pradesh problem.

Further, SIDBI has been providing assistance
for financing the Missing Middle Sector (loan
in the range of ¥ 50,000 - ¥ 10,00,000) through
NBFCs/NBFC-MFIs etc. The Lines of credit from
ADB and KfW for financing Missing Middle
enterprises are in operation.

S
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R STedfam & o daerd TReeT T8 ¢ T FarHut
faitar Il #1 gl Sekd o uRueT #, fasat ¥
g TR F FHewi & guar FHr | =am
Ffxd fFar § qu1 AT 90 HeH UH ARG TR F
JufgT gl w1 fafyw omaier wd faceit
TfeTeont ¥ A oA |

fagat & o1eq fag yam™l & ST=hid 31 W™ 2015 Th
Wiehd et Wedr X 10,719 U off, Sefeh el
Tt WA X 9,366 IS TWT| 3T =0T, $fFaat W&
sref-$foret i ©, oy sfrean Mesmrwma et
HUS (ITMEUHRSUH) qAT Fefaam o gurawht gyfg fAfy
(frogemssh) e T €1 9 & 1T HUT T T
Gfgumr 31 WE 2015 &1 T 2,436 S o1 fgser
¥ GeIar-uTe 3T SF & Skl FOT el o7eq faw
eI W W@ 31 W 2015 H 92 off | fagdt &
AT ¥ UCW Werdl § ORI 332 @ Ut ar
T A g ®, S § arfuepex Afead 7)1 faset &
I fam wemar et afEme st Jorree feafa
frfafea e 2.2 | €3E T8 ©-

T

In view of the changing scenario of the Indian
Micro Finance Sector and emerging needs
of new and innovative financial products,
SIDBI has focused on capacity building of
MFI personnel and nominated about 90 mid
and senior level microfinance professionals for

various inland and foreign trainings.

The cumulative assistance (including loans,
equity and quasi equity but excluding India
Micro Finance Equity Fund (IMEF) & Poorest
States Inclusive Growth(PSIG) Fund sanctioned
under SIDBI's micro finance initiatives upto
March 31, 2015 aggregated X 10,719 crore, while
cumulative disbursements aggregated X 9,366
crore. The outstanding micro credit portfolio of
the Bank stood at ¥ 2,436 crore, as on March
31, 2015. The number of MFIs assisted by SIDBI
and having loan outstanding with the Bank as
on March 31, 2015 stood at 92. The assistance
through SIDBI has benefited around 332 lakh
(approx.) disadvantaged people, most of them
being women. The comparative operational
highlights of SIDBI’s Micro Finance Support are
given in the following table 2.2.
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ATMCTERT 2.2 : (T EUT AT T Sfaradl/rel Sfaaedt Weraar o T=ria Hgrar
Table 2.2 : Assistance under Micro Credit Loans and Equity/Quasi Equity Assistance

R =S / crore)
faiter a& 2013-14 / FY 2013-14|fa<i= o€ 2014-15 / FY 2014-15 e

. : . Cumulati
Sr.No. O e Hferaur FhTAT T FAhTAT “D‘_‘ ; e
Disb. Outstanding Disb. Outstanding 152

1 | o T W 581.00 1,276.31 941.97 1,532.09 8,635.55

Term Loans to MFIs

T T ‘BT T TA-T

2 Ferar 33.00 75.29 210.00 267.37 346.14
Missing Middle Assistance
to PFIs/NBFCs

3Teq fomr Teermet bl T
3 FOT 0.00 0.00 92.00 92.00 92.00
Long dated Loans to MFls

F&H 3EH FOT HT& %01
MEL - Direct Lending

0.00 1.42 0.00 0.77 12.25

FUIT FOT (ST /AT
foe ge-ffy weman
5 Transformation Loan 0.00 1.85 0.00 1.85 19.05
(TL)/Corpus support for
transformation

6 | T 0.00 100.00 0.00 100 175.00

Subordinate Debt.

7 E ; 0.00 84.89 0.00 84.89 85.55
Equity Support

faeheqa: aftad=ra gert stfemr=
IR

8 Optlonally Convertible 0.00 275.04 0.00 247.46 0.00

Cumulative Preference
Shares

Stfarea: aREd-a ST ¥R
9 Compulsory Convertible 0.00 109.20 0.00 109.20 0.00

Preference Shares

=T / Total 614.00 1,924.00 1,243.97 2,435.63 9,365.54

re: THAT THS THFA TTH B |

Note: Outstanding figures are on gross basis.

T
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WA 3eu-faw sfaaet fafer
A ST 2011-12 H T TE =T % ST, T 100
HUS 1 TYe MY amelt WA fe-fag sfaadt fafy
(STRUASTE) oh1 WO H 5| IHHT & IeTF
IR BT 3T fax wxemsti &7 gfgadt wg o7d-
3fFadt UgH HLAT O, aIfeh 3! gig eI TE,
ST Y AT TG 3T STk Tt B < o o
HE I T 9ok | 91 ¥, faa a¥ 2013-14 & o1 # 39
T ffYr &1 Tgreht T 300 S T e T4

=fer 39 Y =1 g&7 I3 TR Bt 3] fod
Terrsll o1 IFadt ue erd-3faadt yeM AT §,
g I gig T @ T 3N 3% A Fa9d
Y AT g AT 3T U H <o @ B AeS
faeT 9ok, 310 T TRTAAT o1 WM FLd L 7T ford
Geeell T ST SFIET UK ST Bhe 7, 7 gt
TATCAT SISt T qUT ShRAT TN € qT AT W
3310 BT AR FOT a1, TR & @M, T&am
TGMT T Teh Gy AGHIISR 9 § Fagd GeT
T 70T T B R

31 9 2015 T TEIG W 3H ASHT & T=d b
3 162.25 U I TRT T Afeiergar &t 8| Hiersgar
TERTH G T 112.71 FUS HT AT Gfaalq < & T 2|
(cfeTeRT 2.3)

India Microfinance Equity Fund

Subsequent to the announcement in the Union
Budget 2011-12, the India Microfinance Equity
Fund (IMEF) with a corpus of X 100 crore was
set up by the Govt. of India with the primary
objective of providing equity and quasi-equity
to smaller MFIs to help them maintain growth
and achieve scale and efficiency in their
operations. Subsequently the corpus has been
enhanced to X 300 crore in the budget of FY
2013-14.

The primary emphasis of IMEF being providing
equity and quasi-equity to smaller MFIs to help
them maintain growth and achieve scale and
efficiency in their operations, the assistance is
to be utilized by MFIs to improve their equity
base, meet capital adequacy requirements and
leverage the same for additional debt raising
and scaling-up operations, improve efficiency
and build a long term commercially sustainable
organisation.

As at end of March 2015, the Bank has
committed an amount of I 162.25 crore to 56
MFIs under the Scheme. An amount of ¥ 112.71
crore has been disbursed so far out of the
committed amount. (Table 2.3)

ATfeTeRT 2.3 SMETASTE U=
Table 2.3 IMEF Operations

R =S / crore)
fasiter o 2014 / FY 2014 foretar ot 2015 / FY 2015

FSHT / Scheme T e it e T
Disbursement O/s Amt Disbursement O/s Amt

37T %7 / Sub-Debt 3.00 47.50 3.25 50.75
sferdt / Equity 3.00 11.25 3.46 16.01
3irEdiee / OCPS 13.00 33.50 13.75 45.95
T / Total 19.00 92.25 20.46 112.71

12 B—



o T feUdHve 3% IURANEA SIATIUE, TS
forren WeR gRT wEiia frefaam o= wEERh d@9fg
& ST off eI USM | ASHT i w0 ffe &
3T e T 71.29 AT & FsR TNRT F § 31 7
2015 @& T 65.38 HAUS H1 Giaawor &K fear |
T 31 ATE 2015 T ASMT & F<d I 44.89 FS
FHTAT T |

TEATSAT chi THTT WETIAT

o o frevTer Hed gRT ST AT & oTER, g&,
oY @ AW Il i M % faawor 79 9o 59 &
1 T T AT AR AR fredt A A
ferefter shufrat o farmmaooT shtar Tet €, S e faw
U TN FOT HUAT SHT IMEA 71 AT 31 A,
2015, THT TTT3T hl U TRTEAT o 3T=id SehTa
TRT T 4,054.30 FHUS &

V. Ue THUEUEE T

IR TWHR T i & 3TTET H1d HLT o a9 4,
fagst 7 faxir ok X fa<iar fawrat &1 gfd &t € o
fafers foxita SRl T STEvTenar SMURa foasmmaaes
Yareit T ARY forar B, S o HEmS{l gRT wANA
FY T T Iy HE W &1 faget gR U fa
w1 % fafum fafew fasfar sfavet & wnfeer ® - Sifew
&7 fawiiaT omfc | 39k qe faawor arferet 2.4 & gurs
T 71
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The Bank also extended assistance under
Poorest States Inclusive Growth programme
supported by Department for International
Development (DFID), Govt. of UK. Under debt
fund scheme of the project, out of total sanction
of ¥ 71.29 crore, T 65.38 crore was disbursed
upto March 31, 2015. The outstanding under the
scheme stood at ¥ 44.89 crore as on March 31,
2015.

Resource Support to Institutions

SIDBI has been financing NBFCs, both
Asset Finance Companies (AFCs) and Loan
Companies (LC) for channelizing funds to
MSMEs in accordance with the policy approved
by Bank’s Board and as a part of its mandate to
serve the sector. The outstanding under resource
support to such institutions stood at I 4,054.30
crore as on March 31, 2015.

V. Direct MSME Credit

In order to closely align with the vision of
Government of India, SIDBI has mapped the
gaps, both financial and non-financial and have
ventured into niche financial products and
need based development services which are not
being adequately provided by other institutions.
Various niche financial gaps being addressed
by SIDBI are risk capital/equity assistance,
sustainable finance, receivable finance, services
sector financing, etc. The highlights are given in
Table 2.4.

T
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ATfeTeRT 2.4 : Uy faer ArsTel o it Ggrarar

Table 2.4 : Assistance under Direct Finance Schemes Assistance

@ HS / crore)

faewur / Particulars

fa=ir a& 2013-14 / FY 2013-14

fa=itr 9« 2014-15 / FY 2014-15

FhHTET TWET / O/s Amt
(2T 31 °HTE / As on March 31)

FhHTET T/ O/s Amt
(T 31 °HTE / As on March 31)

SifEw gt / Risk Capital 1,111 1,279
feeptss faxamoT / Sustainable Finance 2,851 2,747
4T &7 / Service Sector 2,191 2,297
e feaoT / Receivable Finance 2,869 2,228
AYT G / Infrastructure 431 326
31 / Others 2,560 2,711
et U &l k0T / Total Direct Credit 12,013 11,588

fewot : 3% o fafvm FrmreTt =g fT U wEu™
TIHRT T |

fve wsa 7 3 T fafee & &1 wedfsa oA
F U WEH & T € () STW ue fafew faxiw
I, FOMT T AHATC (i) THCAURE Heroqe ST
=q frefied qen (i) fowom wfafafeen &g fefem) o
fafers & (hamest fomamwT) & wrieT o fafmior &
F off foreafea foran ST wafaa @1 & ¢ fafyre & foer
T 2015-16 H TRATATIT BT |

ie-fafer smenfia gaen

TR SRt @I & SFeavid e o STarel darsff
& -9, oo fafie A-ffy emenfg e of wem
FAT T, S gRg T (fERER S srcyid, M),
a§ 2014-15 & e IR-ffy ameit orawE &
QST eifereht 2.5 ¥ feam e 7

I3 E—

Note: The figures are as per the Net of Provision of
various schemes.

The Board approved 3 new niche areas for
adoption. These are: (i) Cluster specific financial
products, schemes and processes, (ii) Funding
for MSME Infrastructure and (iii) Funding
for Marketing Activities. It is also proposed to
extend the scope of one niche area (franchisee
financing) to the manufacturing sector also.
These new niche areas shall be operationalised
in FY 2015-16.

Non-Fund Based Facility

The Bank also provides various non-fund
based services like Letters of Credit (both
foreign and inland), Guarantees, services for
appraisal, loan syndication, etc., in addition to
services provided within the traditional banking
framework. Summary of business under
non-fund based facility during FY 2014-15 is
provided in Table 2.5.
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qTfereRT 2.5 : W-fafer swenfa s
Table 2.5 : Non-Fund Based Business

@ &S / crore)
fortar ad 2013-14 / FY 2013-14 fasitr a 2014-15 / FY 2014-15
forarwur / Particulars T PR . e

No. Outstanding No. Outstanding
foaeft wr@-7% / Foreign Letter of Credit 76 272.62 60 81.06
7Y™ ¥@-97 / Inland Letter of Credit 1 1.66 1 0.65
RO AT/ Gurantee Scheme 226 50.55 235 55.42
=T / Total 303 324.83 296 137.13

AR I ER CESE

fodi o 2014-15 & IRE fagt 7 FA T 22,664
FS & TUEA ST, SEfe foxdE 9§ 2013-14 #
3 32,281 HIE I 9| faxia o 2014-15 % IR
AT T HHTEAT o faoT iferent 2.6 # fau M B-

VI. Resources Management

Resources aggregating < 22,664 crore were
raised by SIDBI during FY 2014-15 as against
% 32,281 during FY 2013-14. The
particulars of resources raised during FY 2014-
15 are given in the table 2.6.

crore

ATfeTeRT 2.6 Tagat AT ST T HHTeT
Table 2.6: Resources raised by SIDBI

@ &S / crore)
ot ad 2013-14 | fa<itT ot 2014-15
FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15
e 3UR / Domestic Borrowings
Tegd () ffer / MSE (Refinance) Fund 5,000.00 0.00
TeEeE (e ) fafe / MSME (Risk Capital) Fund 0.00 500.00
W fisre ok gAfET gfaem / RBI Refinance Facility 5,000.00 5,000.00
framel S / Fixed Deposits 247.98 697.95
FforsT-74 / Commercial Paper 16,877.65 11,044.11
Hrafy %7 / Term Loan 1,500.00 0.00
Ty s+ / Unsecured Bonds 2,530.00 3,907.00
SU-A1T / Sub-total 31,155.63 21,149.06
fait 42T SuW / Foreign Currency Borrowings
Sgent VIII # / JICA VIII # 208.79 139.10
SgeT IX # / JICAIX # — 525.09
FHEg V @ /| KIW V @ 198.95 0.00

B




qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

@ &S / crore)

ot ad 2013-14 | faxita a9 2014-15

FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15
Fhesq VI @ / KfW VI @ 75.02 89.34
FuwHes VIII @ / KW VIII @ 11.71 60.64
FTHe X @ / KIW IX @ 15.77 271.18
fag S 11 / World Bank II 108.69 0.00
fag do 111 (sTEeftemet &1 &M / World Bank IIT (IBRD Portion) 32270 403.61
fag S 111 (3T =1 fewam) ~ / World Bank I (IDA Portion) # 0.22 4.19
wwe! * / AfD * 77.55 0.00
YA SgaTHvE S / Asian Development Bank 81.23 18.85
Fgueta/fTafta ToiEt § 3TeE ** / Grant from Multilateral/Bilateral Agency ** 25.05 2.73
3IU-IANT / Sub-total 1,125.69 1,514.74
=T / Total 32,281.32 22,663.80

# ST $ECIES ISR Tt

@ SHiSHTRE FY SSTHATS, STHAT.

A IS STATHUS TR,

* TSt wieTey fe SaamHue, .

** fEUEHTE B LRI SaaHIe, 7.5,

forr o 2014-15 % <R hise Tafew we e
fa. @) I fagdt & T 3,000 I F ARy ST
SHTAGHT Tl Tt ®0T fiET @1 ‘X wiE (frue 1),
qAT T 7,000 FHUS o HA/HEST HEHT & faw ‘Haw
T+ @ o7 @) W 1 T FHR FhEr A0Sl &
gy | forfae 7 ‘forfaa woy/=esr e qur faamwr
ST FEhE o faU TRUU/REA AT wEm @
forfaa/aX g wed ST UM & swAa Hd
T fagat 7 af & < Svel & WRE T 3,907 IS
ST | ITYTH I aTelt @i sl Ja9s orer qem
T FT-SHfEH- gk W ST € |

I3 E—

# Japan International Cooperation Agency.

@ Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau, Germany.
A International Development Association

* Agence Francaise de Developpment, France

** Department For International Development, U.K.

During FY 2014-15, Credit Analysis and
Research Ltd. (CARE) retained ‘CARE AAA’
(Triple A) rating in respect of outstanding debt
issues of SIDBI, the Fixed Deposit Programme
of ¥ 3,000 crore and ‘CARE A1+ (A One Plus)
rating for the CP/CD Programme of X 7,000
crore. Similarly, CRISIL also retained ‘CRISIL
AAA/Stable” rating in respect of outstanding
bonds and ‘FAAA/stable’ rating for the Fixed
Deposit Programme. During the year, SIDBI
had raised X 3,907 crore by way of bonds using
the above ratings assigned by CRISIL/CARE.
Instruments carrying the above ratings are
considered to be of the best quality, carrying
negligible investment risk.



SIDBI @

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

forsr dem & wer guSitaT Fa
MOU with World Bank

IERIRESEICHERE KT S C T

Financial Inclusion and Sustainable Growth




qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

fagedt g1 fafver IR 0T Tl % |e-9TY,
ot T8 WEfy ®OT, < 8 w0 A (eI e
TeF T S @ T fagdes at et
SRt offam H gfe  (CHITHIIRTAEd)’  AHeh
QRIS 3 ST HTHShH T Tl T & STTIR Soh
T fequmeh! gRT & S aTell IR %07 fdfateEr
W AN hizd (@A SR @11 39 IRASHT T T8
FcufaT GEAST H UEw W & kR § @A g
3o wgfaat T I < T T9 fewm #, Srem-ghe
T (SHSTHIT) o wTeaw § STufo Teemadl st %o
3R agel TSl 1 ASEE a0 gU, WRA STAfa
T (STETAUHT) & AW ¥ ITeAfad &F H Jav-%Wri
T GEIST o IEH-TEH H R HLd gU, FOT-Hadl
e onfe o HIeAW ¥ ROmEESl K favent & o
A3l o STEH-UH bl 9¢id 3¢, ot T sw &7 o
IR T ikt BT SR @ 7| faget gRT g
e &9, UM U 37T IaH fSTHehl HUT STavehal
% 50,000 ¥ T 10,00,000 % = 1 BIT €, T HOT
T T @ feem H, fafwe memedt demst, S9-
HUET 3TE & FITHIHIOT Tt &4 hisd fomar ST
WRI

e faauguT o o o fasal o uame

o ot g7 weg & fafus SUET & weEm g oY
AN &7 & fou fafve Al o1 wfia sd g
T 3t yfiert o frafe fomar o B, S e
qeAToh 371 | STReT-faumsoT T € S &t
qrorfache ¥ TeT ® a7 ofedfam &7 ¥ efiemw
H S ORIy SEH § 3T, ITF FHIRT Teed ¥ &
o 7 ITET-famITT ST SR T Tt
&7 HI TEIAHTT THEAT ok e FEIRA A
FH T Y& F e of | Iwer-famamer
fruffca sTeR-Gfedr &1 We A T ST o

I

SIDBI continued to extend funding support,
both in the form of equity & term loan,
alongside taking up various responsible
lending initiatives. Under the World Bank
project ‘Scaling Up Sustainable and Responsible
(SUSRMP), the Bank
continued to focus on responsible lending
practices by the stakeholders as the core of the
programme. The project aimed at strengthening
the fair practices among MFIs with focus on
client protection. In this direction, further
strengthening of the lending and recovery
practices of MFIs through Code of Conduct
(COCA),
information dissemination on microfinance

Microfinance Project’

Assessments improvement  in
penetration levels through India Microfinance
Platform (IMFP), promotion of information
sharing among lenders and investors of MFIs
through Lenders” Forum, etc. continued to
occupy centre stage. SIDBI has also been
focusing on strengthening the
of the intermediaries like Regional Rural
Banks (RRBs), MFIs, Non Banking Financial
Companies (NBFCs), etc. in lending to micro
enterprises in the missing middle segment i.e.,
micro enterprises with loan requirements of
% 50,000 —X 10,00,000.

capacities

SIDBI’s
Financing

Initiatives on Responsible

e SIDBI has always played a pioneering role
in laying down standards for the sector
through measures like concept of capacity
assessment ratings, portfolio audits, code
of conduct assessment, etc. Responsible
Lending has been the Bank’s priority and
the endeavour on spearheading the issue
of responsible finance among the assisted
MFIs was initiated much before the sectoral
setback seen in Andhra Pradesh. Promoting
responsible finance and adherence to a

laid down Code of Conduct is a major
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intervention by SIDBI, with support from
the World Bank.

As part of its responsible finance initiatives,
SIDBI has created a Lenders’” Forum
comprising key lenders of MFI Sector with
a view to promote cooperation among MFI
lenders for leveraging support to MFIs
across the sector. All the major lenders
of MFIs have agreed to work together
to impress upon the MFIs to implement
responsible lending practices through
a common set of loan covenants. Banks
have also agreed to strictly examine and
continuously monitor field level practices
of their assisted MFIs like adherence to
KYC norms etc. Pursuant to initiatives
of SIDBI, regional chapters of ‘Lenders’
Forum” have been set up for better co-
ordination among lenders and closer
interaction with the MFIs. So far, SIDBI has

conducted 9 meetings of Lenders” Forum.

SIDBI, along with the industry associations
for microfinance in India viz., MFIN and
Sa-Dhan, has put in place the unified
Code of Conduct for MFIs in the country.
The code mandates MFIs to provide low
income clients with access to financial
services that are designed to meet their
needs and are delivered in a manner that
is ethical, transparent, and respectful of
client'’s dignity ensuring right to privacy
of information. It is expected that the code
will be instrumental in reinstating the faith
of the stakeholders in the MFIs and give

the sector a much needed stimulus.

T+
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fogdt g1 STER-Tfear qeATRA TEF (o)
®UT i aqel oTfe & foau sreufam deemst =9
JR-TfeaT & Wfedsw U@ &1 G
TR T Tk, Y IR d9R fwmar €1 9
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A Code of Conduct Assessment (COCA)
Tool has been developed by SIDBI, which
applies to providing
recovery of credit, etc., for MFIs to assess
their degree of adherence to the voluntary
microfinance Code of Conduct formulated
by the MFIs. Further, the Bank has issued
guidelines to all the assisted MFIs to
undergo COCA through anyone of the five
empanelled agencies i.e. ACCESS - ASSIST,
ICRA Management Consulting Services
Ltd., Micro Credit Ratings International
Ltd., Prime M2i Consulting Services Ltd.
and SME Rating Agency of India Ltd. Out
of the expenses incurred by the MFIs in
undergoing COCA, the Bank reimburses
75% of the cost of COCA charges subject to
a maximum reimbursement of ¥ 1,50,000/-.
A total of 82 assessments have since been
undertaken and reports of 69 MFIs have
been placed in the public domain. Looking
at the greater significance of the exercise
in the sector, the Bank has taken up a
fresh round of COCA exercise for 16 MFIs
including repeat assessments of 8 MFIs
who had undergone COCA in the first
phase through 5 empanelled agencies of
the Bank.

credit services,

SIDBI has supported the India Micro
Finance Platform (IMFP) developed by
MIX to provide and disseminate various
financial and operational information on
Indian MFIs. It is a global, web-based,
microfinance information platform, a MIX
market tailored for India i.e., the India
Microfinance Platform (IMFP)
to provide
information on the Indian MFIs. The
MFIs are required to submit financial and
operational data, at periodic intervals in a
standardized format, thus enabling higher
degree of transparency/disclosures with

— meant

and disseminate valuable
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ease. The project is to expand the depth
and breadth of publicly available data on
Indian MFIs. The IMFP project has already
resulted in enhanced data coverage for
India’s microfinance sector through growth
in the number of reporting MFIs as well as
development of granular, district-level data
sets.

Initiatives in the underserved States
including North-Eastern Region

Continuing to address the regional growth
asymmetry in the sector and with a view to
upscaling and widening the outreach of the
microfinance operations, the Bank has been
continuously taking several proactive steps
to increase the flow of assistance to hitherto
underserved areas, viz. North Eastern Region
(NER) and in states like Rajasthan, Uttar
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Uttarakhand, Bihar,
West Bengal, Jharkhand, Odisha, Chhattisgarh,
etc. These include development of local MFIs,
inducing larger MFIs from the southern states
to expand outreach in wunderserved areas,
intensifying efforts in identifying suitable MFIs,
who have the potential of becoming long term
partners and providing need based support to
MFIs.

As on March 31, 2015, most of the MFIs having
outstanding loans from SIDBI had a substantial
part of their operations in the underserved
states/areas of the country including NER.

Portfolio Risk Fund

e The Gol has committed support of I 150
crore under Portfolio Risk Fund (PRF)
Scheme, which is being utilised by the
Bank for meeting 7.5% of the term loan
towards security (against  the
normal requirement of 10%) of the MFIs
requirements under Micro Credit Scheme.

cover

B
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The scheme, which was originally extended
to cover the entire country, has since been
made applicable to the underserved states
and underserved pockets/districts in other
states (with emphasis on Scheduled Caste,
Scheduled Tribe, Minority, Other Backward
Class and women beneficiaries) with
effect from July 01, 2008. The PRF corpus
was available for a period of 5 years with
effect from FY 2007 and aimed to cover 50
lakh beneficiaries throughout the country.
During the year, Gol has allowed SIDBI to
redeploy X 57.72 crore available out of full
repayment of loans covered under PRF
earlier.

° Cumulatively, as on March 31, 2015, the
disbursement to eligible MFIs under PRF
stood at X 2,361.37 crore, entailing PRF
requirement of X 177.10 crore (being 7.5%
of eligible loan disbursements).

Human Resources Development for
micro finance sector

ADB-JFPR  Project - Supporting Micro
entrepreneurship for Women’s Empowerment

SIDBI was sanctioned a line of credit of USD
50 million from Asian Development Bank
(ADB) for lending to the missing middle
segment along with a grant of USD 3 million
out of Japan Fund for Poverty Reduction
(JFPR) to facilitate access by poor female micro
entrepreneurs to an appropriate
services that support micro credit in five states,
viz, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Odisha,
Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh. The project
became effective on July 02, 2010 and closed on
December 31, 2014.

range of

International Collaborations

The Bank has
Kreditanstalt fur

signed
Wiederaufbau

agreement with
(KEW),
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Germany for loan support of EUR 85 million
and financial contribution of EUR 1.69 million
for improving access to microfinance products
in India among the poor, particularly women.
The loan component of the support is being
used to provide loans to MFIs for on-lending.
The Technical Assistance (TA) component is
being used to provide training to SIDBI staff
and assisted MFIs, creation of a web based
platform, development of a risk assessment
module, select capacity building interventions
in the area of transfer of industry benchmarks,
best practices to assisted MFIs and for carrying
out of loan portfolio audits/system audits of our
assisted MFIs, as a prudent risk management
measure. KfW has released entire amount of
EUR 85 million under the loan component
and an amount of EUR 0.48 million under TA
component.

The Bank has entered into collaboration with
ADB for loan support of USD 50 million which
would provide SIDBI with long tenor funding
to support the vital “Missing Middle” through
specific financing programs. The scope of
the project covers financial literacy and other
support measures for the low income women.
An amount of USD 28.41 million has been
drawn upto March 31, 2015.

SIDBI has contracted a loan of USD 300
million from the World Bank (WB), including
USD 200 million from International Bank
for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD)
and SDR equivalent of USD 100 million from
International Development Association (IDA)
for upscaling the micro credit portfolio,. The
project titled “Scaling Up Sustainable and
Responsible Micro Finance” aims at scaling up
access to sustainable micro finance services,
particularly to clients in the underserved areas
of the country, through among other things,
introduction of innovative financial products

T
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and fostering transparency and responsible
finance. WB has released a total of USD 178.65
million out of IBRD component and USD 95.30
million out of IDA component under the line of
credit upto March 31, 2015.

The Bank has entered into another agreement
with Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW),
Germany for loan support of EUR 100 million
and financial contribution of EUR 0.50 million
for assistance for ‘Missing Middle’ of the MSME
sector in India. It seeks to finance [through
Primary Financial Institutions (PFIs) which
could be RRBs, UCBs, NBFCs, MFIs etc.] the
‘Missing Middle’ borrower segment and lays
focus on strengthening capacity building and
Business Development Services and market
linkage
with emphasis on women and other socially
excluded entrepreneurs. KfW has released an
amount of EUR 34.91 million under the loan
component and EUR 0.01 million under the
grant component upto March 31, 2015.

programmes for micro-enterprises

Impact Studies conducted

Impact Assessment Study of Assisted Micro
Institutions Under “Scaling Up
Sustainable And Responsible Micro Finance
Project”- Baseline Report.

Finance

The main objective of the impact evaluation
study was to assess and understand programme
outcomes and impact, identification of
the role of MFI partners/SIDBI,
recommendations to improve the quality and
delivery of financial and non-financial products
and services offered by MFIs to their clients
and share the good practices and lessons learnt,
strategies adopted to achieve the objectives of
micro finance.

making

It has been observed from the various studies
conducted by SIDBI that microfinance has
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helped the poor in accessing financial services,
improving the quality of their life through
creation of alternative additional livelihood
opportunities, reducing their dependence on the
exploitative informal sources of credit, increased
participation in family and business decision
making, enhanced knowledge on financial
matters, improved social security, asset status
and improvement in health and education
parameters.

Poorest States Inclusive Growth Programme
(PSIG)

The Bank has been implementing the Poorest
States Inclusive Growth Programme (PSIG)
supported by the UKAid from the Department
for International Development (DFID), since
April 2012. The seven year programme with
a budget of about GBP 27 million aims at
expanding access to a range of financial services
(savings, credit, micro insurance, micro pension
etc.) for poor in the 4 low income states (Bihar,
Odisha, Madhya Pradesh and Uttar Pradesh).
The programme has three major outputs viz.
(i) Policy and institutional environment that
encourages provision of financial services to
poor people in a responsible manner facilitated;
(ii) Institutions providing diverse financial
services promoted; and (iii) Women’s capacities
to tackle financial and gender issues enhanced.
During the year, the following key initiatives
were undertaken in the programme:

Institutions  providing diverse financial

services promoted

Based on Capacity Building Needs Assessment
(CBNA) exercise, the programme provides
capacity building grant assistance to MFIs
operating in PSIG states. The indicative are of
support include enhancing confidence building
measures such as loan portfolio audit, social
performance management assessment, client

T



qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

faerma; SifEd wavd qor AR &1 99 o
3 =T SMfHer foham ST €1 399 319 deh 28 3Teufaw
T3 T X 10.78 HUS 1 TN FeTad HoL ohi
e ®, f ¥ 3 6.78 wiie Sfaaftd fohe ST 9 2 |

sTeafod &F ® fowia Rarar ¥ guR & 7q, fawad
2012-13 % IR T T T oRA-TA (@
% 100 FHre) w1 fUet famad & <M quiwtor gfeaor
foar ST gepr o freaw TS W 9g-UST STfad
el o WeTH ¥ T 165 HUS & HON o Hed H
U T 33 HUS o SGH-HaX St GerEdr IS &t
TE | frefAam Tl H SRRA 9 T Tcufan weeme
T ST S KT T o fAU T 20.50 HUS I GerIl
WS T TS| SE TR, 9 Icufe Hxemeft o1, fafis
§37, SI9- Urifiret, srdfad & § fawr, U Sael
% WA IMfE ¥ o & & faw T 45.79 HAS H
&FT-FHT0T- G- F 0T FETT HSH i TS |

9 & N T 65 FUS H TH g ®O-fAfe-I1
STIAIfET &1 TE| TR ST, T 40 HIS (ST
& K TE-faeR v T 25 SIS quT Wikl
THEYE 7 T 15 HUS) T TIh-1 TAT TR fcdfad
TETall T S 3 FOT N T 3G T 25 FAIS
HTeh-2 M ¢ | 6 ThT, afTTSeeh siehi bl FiaWTT
TR T 20% T STEH HalsT (3Teqfam TLr R
75%) US Y o fau T 30 IS B SifEg-fAfy-11
oft Tofe Y S | 39 99 & IRM, frefvaw T F g
T fIER T o foru, So- sreafer geem St = et o
3icia STeafa TXTeH &7 fgda-afg-TRa W &
% fau T 30 FS F T The-YuEH-TRA fAafy
ot erAfed @1 T fawad 2015-16 % <R ¥ fafuEt
ufenfara gt 36t JeR, frefaaw Tsal ot WEer
rcafeT TRl I WHI-HeTaar JeH q & oy,
STENfiTehT-TaTae-fAfer & S7eia Ueh HeNfTeh! Feaesh R
fepTr ot T off Bt TS 7

T

protection assessment etc; expansion of other
financial technology up-gradation;
human resource development, strengthening
risk management and governance etc. Grant
assistance of X 10.78 crore has been sanctioned
to 28 MFIs out of which X 6.78 crore has been
disbursed.

services;

The Liquidity Fund (approximately X 100 crore)
set up in FY 2012-13, to improve liquidity in the
Microfinance sector was fully disbursed during
the previous year. Risk cover aggregating
X 33 Crore facilitated lending of X 165 crore
largely through multi- state MFIs in the PSIG
states. Onlending support of I 20.50 crore
was extended to 9 smaller MFIs working in
the PSIG states. Further capacity building soft
loan of X 45.79 crore were extended to 9 MFIs
for investments in areas such as technology,
expansion in underserved areas, piloting new
products etc.

Another Debt Fund II of X 65 crore was
approved during the vyear. This comprises
of Component 1 of X 40 crore (for branch
expansion in underserved area X 25 crore
and for technology inclusion: ¥ 15 crore) and
Component 2 of X 25 crore for On-lending
to smaller MFIs. Further, the Risk fund-II of
X 30 crore has also been set up for providing
risk coverage of 20% on portfolio basis (75%
on MFI basis) to commercial banks. A Cash
Collateralized Guarantee Fund of X 30 Crore for
providing second loss guarantee to MFIs under
Bank-MFI BC Channel to expand outreach in
PSIG States has also been approved during the
year. These funds would operationalised day FY
2015-16. Further, a Technology Advisory Body
for providing Advisory Support to Partner MFIs
in PSIG’s Techno- Inclusion Fund has also been
set up.
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Women’s capacities to tackle financial and
gender issues enhanced

The foundation of the aforestated output is built
on an integrated approach of Financial Literacy
with social and gender issues and rights and
entitlements. The gender output has five broad
areas of operations: (1) Demonstration models
with implementing agencies for strengthening
financial capability of poor women; (2)
Mainstreaming gender within institutions (PSIG
and implementing partners); (3) Collaborate
with public institutions (Govt, NRLM, SLRMs)
for promoting equitable access to services; (4)
Research, advocacy and networking and (5)

Adopting and testing innovative approaches.

The major initiatives towards realizing these
goals have been as under:

e A pilot project on providing Financial
Literacy (FL) &Women Empowerment
(WE) training has been started in Uttar
Pradesh and Bihar in partnership with 7
MFIs. The pilot envisages creating a cadre
of 80 Master Trainers (MTs), on FL and
WE and training of about 60,000 women
clients of these 7 MFIs. The intent is to
provide a minimum 30 hours of training
to the
module on financial literacy, legal rights,

clients through an integrated
and women empowerment issues, spread
over a period of one year. The project is
being implemented with the help of a
resource organization and is designed
to be conducted in three phases. The 1st
phase of ToT and refresher training has
been completed. The pilot has adopted a
mobile based open kit technology based
MIS for monitoring and evaluation of the
programme. Two more pilots on similar
lines would be started in the current year
in MP and Odisha, respectively.

T
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In a project aimed to help women MFI
clients understand their legal rights
and address issues of domestic violence
at home, a four months pilot was
implemented by Samhita, a partner MFI in
5 slums of Bhopal. The pilot was successful
in raising awareness of 600 women clients
of the partner MFI. Evaluation of pilot has
also pointed towards change in perception
and knowledge of women clients through
the training. The pilot has also identified
community  resource persons called
Para legal trainers to carry forward the

programime.

5 gender  sensitization = workshops
for senior executives and leaders of
partner MFI's have been organized
which has been attended by 107 senior
representatives from partner MFIs. The
workshop helped in initiating a dialogue
of gender mainstreaming and concluded
with drawing of roadmap for future
integration. As a result, one of the partner
MFIs, viz.,, Annapurna Microfinance
Pvt Limited has constituted an internal
compliance Committee for re-dressal of
Sexual Harassment complaints along with
formation of Women Welfare Committee
and nomination of gender focal person in

their organization.
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PROMOTIONAL &
DEVELOPMENTAL (P & D)
INITIATIVES

In its endeavour towards holistic development
of the MSME sector, SIDBI adopts a ‘Credit
Plus” approach wherein, besides credit, the Bank
also provides grant support for the promotion
and development of the sector to make it strong,
vibrant and competitive. Some salient initiatives
are:

i. MSME Advisory Centres: SIDBI has
set up MSME Advisory Centres (MACs)
for guiding new/existing entrepreneurs
regarding
commercial banks, government subsidies/
benefits, provide borrowers with debt
counselling, answering queries raised by
banks, etc. The MACs have been servicing
MSME clusters across the country in
partnership with Industry Associations. For
manning the MACs, SIDBI has appointed
Knowledge Partners (KPs) who are retired
bank officials, with vast experience of
MSME sector. The KPs have also been
suitably trained for the purpose. So far,
more than 10,000 MSMEs have benefited
through MACs. The number of clusters
covered is being increased by nomination
of KPs in more centres.

availability of schemes of

ii. Promoting youth entrepreneurship -
smallB.in: Website www.smallB.in is a
virtual mentor and handholding forum for
the potential/budding and even existing
entrepreneurs to set up new units and
grow the existing ones. The website is quite
exhaustive, covering various aspects such
as scouting for business opportunities,
understanding various forms of business
organizations, legal  basics,
plan preparation, understanding various
requirements for obtaining credit from

business

T
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Banks/Financial Institutions, knowing

Policies and Regulations, schemes and
incentives offered by the Central and
State governments etc. The website, thus,
mitigates the hesitation of young potential
budding

starting their business and encourages

entrepreneurs/individuals  in

entrepreneurship as an alternative avenue
to job seeking. The website has been chosen
for International ADFIAP Awards 2014
under “Technology Development’ category.

Capacity Building of Regional Rural
Banks (RRBs)/Urban Co-operative Banks
(UCBs): RRBs/Tier-II Banks like RRBs/
UCBs/DCBs play an important role in
providing credit to micro and small
enterprises due to their proximity and
presence in the rural/semi urban and
remote areas. SIDBI initiated a project in
FY 2012-13 focused at capacity building
RRBs/UCBs/DCBs

with an objective to enhance the credit

of Tier-II banks viz.

flow to micro enterprise sector. Under the
project, SIDBI extends capacity building
support to these banks, which includes
SIDBI sharing its methodology/software of
lending to micro enterprises and arranging
for training of staff of these banks in this
area. Besides organising sensitization
programmes on this methodology covering
chairmen of about 27 RRBs and 10 UCBs,
MoUs with 29 RRBs (including MoU with
2 RRBs in FY 2014-15) and 5 UCBs have
been signed. After a detailed training need
analysis with few RRBs, a comprehensive
2-day video based training module has
been developed and pilot tested. Based

on the training module, ‘Training of
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Trainers” programmes have been conducted
benefiting about 400 officials of 42 RRBs/
UCBs.

Micro Enterprise Promotion Programme
(MEPP):
Programme (MEPP) aims at promoting

Micro Enterprise Promotion

viable micro enterprises leading to

employment generation in semi urban/

rural India by providing comprehensive

enterprise  support services through
identified implementing agencies.
The programme helps in identifying,

motivating and guiding the entrepreneurs
in setting up micro enterprises. MEPP has
so far been implemented in 124 districts
in 26 states. Cumulatively, about 41,500
enterprises have been promoted, including
about 700 during the current year. Further,
3 more MEPPs
during FY 2014-15, viz. Varanasi district in

have been sanctioned

U.P, Kamrup/Goalpara districts in Assam
and Jahanabad/Nalanda districts in Bihar.

Entrepreneurship Development
(EDPs): The Bank’s
support to EDPs aims at building and

Programmes

nurturing a reservoir of entrepreneurs,
cadre of motivated
self-
employed ventures capable of generating

while creating a

entrepreneurs and promotion of

employment  opportunities,  especially
in far-flung and rural areas targeting
less privileged sections of the society
like women, minorities and SC/ST.
As on March 31, 2015, a total of 3,097
EDPs had been supported by the Bank,
benefiting more than 77,000 participants
in various target groups. The success rate

of supported EDPs has been in the range

T
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of 50% to 55%. Cumulatively, about 38,000
participants have either set up their own
units or have been gainfully employed in
the sector. During FY 2014-15, 69 EDPs
1900

were supported benefitting over

participants.

Skill Development Programmes (STUPs/
SIMAPs): With a view to strengthening
the technical and managerial capacities
of the MSME
Bank supports

technology institutions to offer certain

entrepreneurs,  the
reputed management/

structured management/skill development
programmes, viz. “Skill- cum- Technology
Upgradation Programme” (STUP) and
“Small Industries Management Assistants
Programme” (SIMAP).

STUP aims at enhancing technology
profile of MSME units by way of 4-6 days
full time programme or 8-12 days part
time programme for owners/managers of
MSMEs. The programme content is tailored
depending upon the participants and/or the
industry groups represented by them. The
focus of the programme is more on specific
aspects or specialised fields rather than on
general management topics, viz. product/
process technology, quality upgradation,
environment management, marketing
management, strategic management,
financial management including working
capital management etc. The programmes
are generally non-residential in nature.
Besides, subject inputs by expert faculty,
case studies, group discussions, practical
demonstrations and field visits to model
units are included to have the desired
impact.

SIMAP targets qualified unemployed as
well as industry-sponsored candidates
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with the overall objective of providing
competent managers to the MSME sector.
It is a 14-week intensive programme with a
mix of class room and on-the-job training.
The topics included essentially cover
information, knowledge and skills pertaining
to the management of MSME units e.g.
financial and operational management,
inventory control, marketing and publicity,
effective business
leadership skills, banking operations, public
relationship, legal aspects, etc. The training
methodology could include case studies,
group discussions, simulation exercises,
visits to institutions and factories, field
assignments, etc.

communication,

Since its inception, SIDBI has supported
1,550 STUPs benefiting about 32,500
participants conducted by specialised
institutions viz., Central Institute of Plastic
Engineering & Technology (CIPET), Central
Institute of Medicinal & Aromatic Plants
(CIMAP) and other reputed technical/
management institutions. Further, 300
SIMAPs have been conducted by top rung
national and state level institutions such
as IITs at Kanpur/Kharagpur/Mumbai/
Chennai, XLRI, Jamshedpur, Manipal
Institute, Bangalore benefiting about 9,000
participants.

Cluster = Development:  SIDBI  has
supported more than 90  Cluster
Development Programmes (CDPs) in
various clusters all over India. The
paradigm shift in the Bank’s CDPs during
the last few years is basically from
technology centric methodology to a
more comprehensive cluster development
approach which includes management
practices, establishment of marketing
linkages, product/design development,

T
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skill upgradation in different technical
trades, etc. About 12,000 MSMEs/artisans/
entrepreneurs have benefitted from these
initiatives.

Minority Group Development: As per the
recommendations of Sachar Committee,
the
cover maximum number of participants
from minority communities under various
P&D activities. Cumulatively, about 7,200
persons from minority community have
been directly benefited
developmental activities so far including

field offices have been advised to

from various

about 1,000 participants out of 51
developmental programmes during FY
2014-15.

Marketing Activities: Having realised the
need to address the marketing problems
of MSME sector and displaying their
products, SIDBI is also engaged in creating
and strengthening marketing initiatives
for the sector. During FY 2014-15, the
Bank supported 38 important exhibitions/
seminars/events benefiting more than
9,000 MSME entrepreneurs. Some of the
important marketing events supported
during the year were India Engineering
Sourcing Show at Mumbai, Smart Cities
Expo-2015 & Seminar on Financing SMEs
for Aerospace and Defence Business at
Bangalore, Rashtriya Udyog Vyapar Mela
at Bilaspur, etc. This included sponsorship
of SIDBI Theme ‘India
Engineering Sourcing Show’ organised by
EEPC India at Mumbai.

Pavilion in

Promoting Innovation and Incubation:
With a
commercialising grassroots innovations all
over the country, the Bank had supported
the National Innovation Foundation,

view to identifying and
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Ahmedabad by way of corpus support
of ¥ 400 lakh and administrative grant
of ¥ 100 lakh to set up Micro Venture
Innovation Fund (MVIF) in 2003. As on
March 31, 2015, the fund has supported
about 194 innovations. Further, with a
view to foster successful entrepreneurs
and develop industry in the knowledge
and technology based areas in the small
enterprises, SIDBI had supported setting
up of SIDBI Innovation and Incubation
Centre (SIIC) at Indian Institute of
Technology, Kanpur in January 2002. SIIC
has so far incubated 52 start-ups in diverse
areas of state of the art technologies out of
which 31 have already graduated. SIDBI
also set up Innovation Centre at Kalinga
Institute of Industrial Technology (KIIT),
Bhubaneswar.

SIDBI's support for North Eastern
Region (NER) : The Bank accords special
and focused attention to the development
of North Eastern Region (NER) in terms

Skill Development Training Programmes by SIDBI

B
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Women Empowerment Programme by SIDBI
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mat  weaving, carpet weaving,
handicrafts, handloom weaving,
pottery, bee keeping, making fish
feed products, etc. These cluster
development initiatives have benefited

around 7,000 artisans.

The Bank has so far conducted about
156 Skill cum Technology Upgradation
Programmes (STUPs) benefiting over
4,800 participants in the entire NER.

Under the Bank’s Micro Enterprises
Promotion Programme (MEPP), 23
districts in NER have been covered
so far including the MEPP launched
at Sonitpur district in Assam in FY
2014-15. These MEPPs have resulted in
promotion of about 2,460 units.

faesit g Sreufe T
Microfinance assistance by SIDBI

R
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An MoU was executed with NEDFi
in March 2012 for providing various
financial and developmental services
including MSME Finance, micro
finance and also for undertaking
various P & D activities in NER.
Under this arrangement, Credit
Counseling Centres/Business
Facilitation Centres (BFCs) were also
opened. Presently, there are 8 (eight)
such centres operational in NER. The
BFCs include Shillong (Meghalaya),
Silchar (Assam), Aizawl (Mizoram),
Gangtok (Sikkim), Agartala (Tripura),
Kohima (Nagaland), Itanagar
(Arunachal Pradesh) and Imphal
(Manipur). Apart from above BFCs, an
Entrepreneurs’ Corner has been set up
in NEDFi Office at Guwahati.
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As an apex institution, SIDBI is playing a very
proactive role in reaching out to MSMEs by
extending financial and developmental support
services to MSMEs. Its economic, social and
environmental impact over a period of 25 years
since its inception in 1990 is highlighted below:

Economic Impact

SIDBI
under both its indirect and direct finance

¢  Cumulative  disbursement of
including niche financing like risk capital,
sustainable finance, energy efficiency and
cleaner production, technology innovation,
receivable financing amounted to X 3.90
lakh crore benefitting about 346 lakh
persons as at end-March 2015.

e To bring balanced regional development,
SIDBI has taken steps to increase credit
flow to relatively less developed industrial
states. Over the years, there is increase
in direct credit flow to many of the
underserved states. During the year, new
initiatives were taken in the North Eastern
states of Assam and Manipur. There has
been 100% credit growth in these states.
Other states such as Odisha, Uttar Pradesh,
Uttarakhand and West Bengal have also
shown good credit growth under the Direct
Finance Schemes.

¢ Similarly, in the case of indirect finance,
there has been increase in credit flow to
less developed states like Odisha and
Uttar Pradesh. This has
towards mitigating imbalances in regional

contributed

development.

¢  Furthermore, SIDBI’'s micro finance support
is mainly in the rural areas with increasing
thrust on unserved and underserved states
mostly being women.
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Environmental Impact

Recognizing the need for environment friendly
development of MSME sector, SIDBI’s business
strategy is to promote energy efficiency [EE]
and cleaner production (CP) in the MSME
of SIDBI'’s
initiatives is mentioned below:

sector. The impact sustainable

e As on March 31, 2015, an aggregate
assistance of approximately X 5,798 crore
has been sanctioned and an amount of
more than ¥ 5,165 crore has been disbursed
to around 6,000 MSMEs for promoting EE
& CP, which have resulted in saving of
1,043 Million Kilo Watt Hour (MkWh) of
electricity and a reduction of 909 kilo tons
(kT) of CO, annually.

¢ Under the World Bank led Global
Environment Facility (GEF) project, more
than 35 training programs were conducted,
under which around 1,100 participants
from banks/FIs/NBFC/SFCs/CAs/financial
professionals, etc. have been sensitized/
trained on Energy Efficiency financing. The
officials from nationalized banks and other
NBFCs, Cooperative Banks representative
have participated in training programs
conducted so far.

e The Partial Risk Sharing Facility for Energy
Effciency (PRSF) project is expected to
provide credit guarantee to more than 500
ESCO implemented EE projects which
would mobilize financing to the tune of
USD 127 million. Further, the project is also
expected to result into significant energy
savings to the tune of 1,000 GWh and
mitigation of CO, emissions reductions to
the tune of 0.734 million tons.

S
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Social Impact

It has been observed from the various studies
conducted by SIDBI that microfinance assistance
from SIDBI has helped the poor in accessing
financial services, improving the quality of their
life through creation of alternative additional
livelihood  opportunities, reducing  their
dependence on the exploitative informal sources
of credit, increased participation in family and
business decision making, enhanced knowledge
on financial matters, improved social security,
asset status and improvement in health and
education parameters.

Under the ADB-JFPR Project of Supporting
Micro entrepreneurship for Women'’s
Empowerment, Insight Development Consulting
Group (IDCG) conducted end-line survey after
training of women micro-entrepreneurs who
reported the following changes:

° 90% of women micro
reported increased family income from
contribution of their businesses;

entrepreneurs

e 80% of them reported increased

participation in family decision making;

e 75% of them reported increased
participation in decisions regarding their

business;

e 75% of them felt improved social security
and asset status;

*  65% reported improved mobility of women
micro entrepreneurs;

° 77% of women could access easier credit of
T 50,000 or more;

* 90% of them could increase their average
monthly sales & business turnover;

*  81% of them attained increased knowledge
on financial matters.
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SIDBI, being the principal financial institution
for the MSME sector, not only imbibes the
corporate responsibility and  good
corporate governance within, but also attempts
to inculcate the same in the MSME sector
and the deals with. SIDBI
has constantly been interacting with all its
stakeholders for attending to the key priorities
and pressing needs/gaps in the MSME eco-
system. The highlights of SIDBI's good corporate
governance system are enumerated in the
following paragraphs.

social

institutions it

Board of Directors/Committees of the
Board

The Small Industries Development Bank
of India Act, 1989 provides for a fifteen-
member Board of Directors. Out of these, eight
Directors are appointed/nominated by the
Central Government comprising Chairman and
Managing Director (CMD), two whole time
Directors, two Government officials and three
experts (including one from State Financial
Corporations) having special knowledge or
professional experience. Out of the remaining
seven Directors, three are nominated by the
three largest shareholding institutions, banks
and insurance companies owned or controlled
by the Central Government, while four are
to be elected by the public shareholders or
alternatively, can be co-opted by the Board until
assumption of charge by the elected Directors.
The Board, as on March 31, 2015, comprised
nine Directors, including CMD.

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section
6(1)(a) of the SIDBI Act, 1989 the Central
Government, vide its dated
February 27, 2015, appointed Dr. Kshatrapati
Shivaji, IAS as CMD of SIDBI. Dr. Kshatrapati
Shivaji, IAS, took charge as CMD on March 2,
2015.

notification
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Shri N.K. Maini, Deputy Managing Director, on
attaining the age of superannuation, demitted
the office at the close of business on February
27, 2015 (February 28th being a holiday).

Shri Amarendra Sinha, nominated by the
Central Government as a Director on the Board
of SIDBI under Section 6(1)(c) of the SIDBI Act,
retired from the directorship with effect from
January 23, 2015 on completion of his tenure of
nomination.

The Central Government, vide its notification
dated September 15, 2014, nominated the
Managing Director (MD), Madhya Pradesh
Financial Corporation (MPFC), as a Director on
the Board of SIDBI, in exercise of the powers
conferred by Section 6(1)(e) of the SIDBI Act,
1989. Presently, Shri K.C. Gupta, IAS, is holding
the additional charge of MD, MPFC.

Consequent upon Shri B. Manivannan
completing two terms of three years as a
Director on the Board of SIDBI, Life Insurance
Corporation of India, vide its communication
dated October 21, 2014, has nominated Shri
S. Hariharan, retired Executive Director, as a
Director on the Board of SIDBI in place of of
Shri Manivannan.

The Board placed on record its high sense of
appreciation of the valuable contributions made
by the Directors who retired from the Board of
SIDBI.

With the objective of giving focussed attention
to various important issues, the Board has
constituted ten Committees viz., Executive
Committee (EC), Audit Committee (AC), Risk
Management Committee (RiMC), Committee for
Supervision of SFCs (CfS), Special Committee
to Monitor Large Value Frauds (SCMLVF),
Information Technology Strategy Committee
(ITSC), Customer Service Committee (CSC),

T
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HR Steering Committee (HRSC),
Review Committee (RRC) and Remuneration
Committee.

Recovery

Sanctions relating to credit proposals above
a threshold limit and other such operational
matters are considered by the EC. The AC,
in addition to overseeing the functioning of
the Audit Vertical and reviewing its major
observations, also provides guidance in matters
relating to finalisation of accounts of the Bank
and observations made in RBI Inspection report.
The RiMC lays down policy and strategy for
Integrated Risk Management of the Bank.
The CfS guides the Bank in respect of all the
policies/matters pertaining to State Financial
Corporations.

With a view to providing focused attention
on monitoring of frauds involving amounts of
rupees one crore and above, SCMLVF has been
constituted in terms of the guidelines of Reserve
Bank of India. The ITSC gives direction to the
Bank’s IT function, especially with regard to
IT vision, policy and strategy so as to align
objectives. In addition, the
Committee also guides the Bank in framing its
long term IT plan and provides oversight of IT
implementation and management.

with business

To enable the Bank to formulate policies and
assess the compliance thereof internally with a
view to strengthening the corporate governance
structure and also to bring about ongoing
improvements in the quality of customer service
provided by the Bank, the Board has constituted
CSC. HRSC has been constituted to guide and
give suggestions/recommendations to the Board
in HR matters. Further, to review all NPPA cases
having principal outstanding of I 3 crore and
above, RRC has been constituted.

The Government of India (Gol) introduced

performance  incentive scheme for the
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Whole Time Directors of the Bank and for
that purpose, as per the directives of Gol,
a “Remuneration Committee” of Board of
Directors has been constituted. The Committee
met once during the year.

Minutes of the meetings of the Committees,
containing decisions taken, are submitted to the
Board.

The Board held six meetings during the year while
the Committees of the Board viz., the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Risk Management
Committee, Committee for Supervision of SFCs,
Special Committee to Monitor Large Value Frauds,
Information = Technology Strategy ~Committee,
HR  Steering
Committee and Recovery Review Committee held
thirteen, eight, five, three, four, four, three, two
and three meetings, respectively.

Customer Service Committee,

Shareholding Pattern

The shares of SIDBI are held by thirty three
institutions/public ~ sector
companies owned or controlled by Central
Government, with IDBI Bank Ltd., State Bank of
India and Life Insurance Corporation of India as
its three largest shareholders.

banks/insurance

Asset Liability Management Committee

In terms of the Asset Liability Management
Policy of the Bank, the Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) is headed
by the Chairman & Managing Director and
comprises Deputy Managing Directors and
other senior executives of the Bank heading
Risk Management, Credit, Resources &
Treasury and Information Technology Verticals
as its members. ALCO, inter alia, reviews
and monitors the liquidity risk and interest
rate risk in the Bank. The ALM system in the
Bank is guided by the extant RBI guidelines
and the ALM Policy of the Bank. The ALM

S
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Policy is reviewed from time to time to bring
in necessary changes in line with extant
regulatory requirements and the changing asset
liability profile of the Bank. During FY 2014-
15, the Committee met on 13 occasions and
deliberated on various issues such as revision
in Prime Lending Rate (PLR) of the Bank,
review of interest rate under various schemes
of assistance, status of resource mobilization,
revision in the interest rate structures of Fixed
Deposits  Scheme, through CPs,
bonds and term loans from banks, movement
in Net Interest Income (NII) and Net Interest
Margin (NIM) of the Bank and hedging of
drawals under foreign lines of credit, etc.

borrowing

Investment Committee

Bank
formulates strategies as well as recommends
various investment options with regard to the
Bank’s investment portfolio within the scope of
the Investment Policy of the Bank and relevant
RBI guidelines issued from time to time. The
Investment Committee met 5 times during FY
2014-15 to, inter alia, deliberate upon various
and divestment proposals, sale
of government securities from Available for
Sale (AFS), shifting of government securities
from Held for Trading (HFT) to AFS, review of
mutual fund exposure limits, review of equity
investments acquired through primary market
and other investment related issues.

The Investment Committee of the

investment

Enterprise Risk Management Committee

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee
(ERMC) is responsible for the development,
overall implementation and
of the risk management framework in the
Bank. ERMC is responsible for providing
recommendations to formulate the Credit and
Operational Risk Management policies and
strategies for the Bank and manage the risks on

supervision
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the asset book. ERMC under the supervision
of Risk Management Committee of the Board
evaluates and manages overall risk composition
in the Bank’s portfolio.

Risk and Information Security Committee
(RISC)

Risk and Information Security Committee
[RISC] is a cross functional committee of
executives, which
Security [IS] and attempts to mitigate various
IS and IT related risks. RISC ensures alignment
of the security programme with organizational
objectives. It is also instrumental in achieving
organisational
that promotes good security practices and
compliance with policies.

looks after Information

change towards a culture

Internal Complaints Committee

As per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Bank has in
place
Chennai, Kolkata, Lucknow, Mumbai and New
Delhi for redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment and for matters connected therewith
or incidental thereto. During the year, no
complaint of sexual harassment was received by
the Committees.

Internal Complaints Committees at

Internal Audit

Internal Audit of the Bank plays a pivotal role
in strengthening Corporate Governance and
complying with Management objectives to
strengthen internal control and improve Risk
Management.

Audit  Vertical has been carrying out
Operational Audit (OA) of Branch Offices (BOs),
Regional Offices (ROs) and select HO Verticals
through various Audit Cells (AC), Management
Audit (MA) of Head Office (HO) Verticals,

7
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Transaction Audit (TA) of Debt Servicing
Activities of Treasury & Funds Management
(TFMV), Information Systems (IS)
Audit, etc. on a regular basis. Besides, Audit

Vertical

Vertical
reviews the monthly Concurrent
Audit reports of TFMV being carried out by an
external audit firm. Concurrent Audit of TEMV
covers the Treasury Operations, viz. Money
Market Operations (MMO) and Dealing Room
Operations (DRO) of TFMV. The Bank is also
undertaking Credit Audit in respect of Accounts
under Direct Credit Schemes where exposure
is above X 300 lakh and in 10% of the cases on
sample basis, where the outstanding is less than
X 300 lakh, through Regional Offices.

The Bank has also introduced Concurrent Audit
mechanism in select 29 BOs through external
CA firms, which together account for more than
90% of the Direct Credit operations of the Bank.

The IS audit was taken up during FY2014-
15 in the areas of (i) Application Software
Audit of some modules of Enterprise System
Architecture (ESA) applications, (ii) IT Control
Review of 32 offices including Data Centre &
Disaster Recovery (DR) Site and (iii) Network &
Security Audit of Data Centre and DR Site.

During the year, 974 audits comprising 126
Operational Audits, 4 Special Audits, 13
Management Audits, 12 Concurrent Audits of
TFEMV, 318 Concurrent Audit of BOs, 12 TAs
of debt servicing activities of TEMV, 457 Credit
audits and 32 IS Audits were completed. Audit
Vertical follows up with ROs for submission
of Monthly Status Report on the status of
compliance of audit observations & ensure time
bound closure of reports/compliance of the
observations.

Audit Vertical also co-ordinates compliance of
observations made by Statutory Auditors and
RBI Inspection Team in close coordination with
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Corporate Accounts Vertical and RBI Inspection
Cell. During an audit activity, inter alia,
compliance to KYC guidelines, verification of
end use of funds, creation of assets, adherence
to policy guidelines, systems & procedures etc.
are given due focus.

of Reserve Bank
accordance with the

As per the directives
of India and in
requirement of Pillar-II of Basel Committee-II
recommendations, Risk Based Audit in respect
of all operating branches is in place. In terms
of the same, the BOs were classified under
Low, Medium, High & Very High Risk etc.
on the basis of operational and compliance
risk areas. In the overall risk assessment and
risk categorisation of BOs, the Credit Risk,
Operational Risk, incidents of fraud cases,
etc. are being factored. The periodicity of
Operational Audits in respect of High Risk BOs
is being stepped up, irrespective of their volume
of operations.

Audit Vertical submits various memoranda
to Audit Committee of the Board (ACB) as a
measure of good Corporate Governance.

Human Resource Development — An Overview

As on March 31, 2015, the Bank had on its
rolls 1,055 active full time staff comprising 892
officers, 99 Class III staff and 64 Subordinate
staff. Of the total staff, 178 belong to Scheduled
Castes (SCs), 75 to Scheduled Tribes (STs) and
168 to Other Backward Classes (OBCs). The staff
strength included 7 ex-servicemen, 16 Persons
with Disabilities (PwD) categories and 1 in both
ex-servicemen and Persons with Disabilities
(PwD) categories. The strength of women
employees is 232.

Training & Career Development

Challenges in banking and expectations from
bankers are leapfrogging day-by-day and it

T



qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

AT T qer 3fua, a3 SevTer ufyrenT
TEH &1 W o 1 R @1 § | AT FHAAMEAL i
SAFBROT SR w1 TG HT M & fow o fomar s @
2l

TR & Wifq, S T I wHenRAr & () o
TITHETE AU OfTemT §EH, Yaiel § HfereeT
ofed oTfafes afvmeor wrfsdl (i) @nfra T
TS FRT T kAR Gerfora/STEfS mfvreor
TASHI / HTATIATS T (jii) STRATT FHEwHA |,
i hich TR0 <A1 STRT T@T | Wi o et
1 AT fomar mr €, qfR 3 T T 5fE
Y Thf=a fFar <1 TF IR WIE &7 AT aguael
faerra gffaa foram ST ook |

g§ % oRM, d% T Tfa-ura g/t
el gRT SEfea fafuw Sreviia, ofafie iR
STRAET IRTE0T FRHH § Fa 1,344 AHHA fHT,
S8 T 209 Tt wfeame off 3T 586 Mt sMfaa
M § Tt o) Sk F 38 AU ol yfuemiar & o
TIYT TR SIS foham AT | YT WK & fdeit
% IR g Sfd/eryfad sHenfa/er e
Tt o Afyeal & fau weEfa 1@ afreer wEwme
ST forar | ShH=Er ot faenra dfenT, Tar
fomr, foopres fom, Sheef, =R ooy 9, faeel ga
anfe fafay &t & yafaa Ao ysfaat @ oftfea
U & IEIT W ook gRT 29 ARGEHRET &1 ST
ufyTeror STEishHT & ArifeRd foam T

foest sifyertial o fow sifem gt aREmemi e
“pUhSRy Ay fou wEmH’ W hfRa g
FHTdehH off SRS T MU & forey oX Suerey fafvme
faemarstl Ta famamoT sTeerl/fashed T SMIE f=m-
fomet w ATiey ISH i o A 3T e foerm

2 —

has become imperative for SIDBI too to keep
its professional workforce skilled and updated
on a continuous basis. The Bank continues its
emphasis to update the skills of its employees
and impart appropriate, relevant and necessary
trainings. This is also being done to increase
motivation and job satisfaction of employees.

As in the past, the Bank continued to impart
training by deputing its employees to (i) in-
house training programmes, including at
SIDBI MSME International Training Institute,
Bhubaneswar (ii) inland training programmes/
workshops conducted/organized by reputed
national institutions within the country and (iii)
international programmes. The training function
has been streamlined to give an organizational
focus to the same and to ensure comprehensive
all-round development of the staff.

Bank has 1,344
nominations for various inland, in-house and

During the year, made
international training programmes organized
by renowned training/academic institutions,
out of which 209 nominees were women and
586 nominees belonged to reserved categories.
An induction programme was organized for
38 newly recruited Officers in the Bank. Pre-
Promotion Training for SC/ST/OBC Officers
was also organized as per Gol directions.
Twenty nine officials were nominated to attend
international programmes in order to familiarize
them with the current international practices
in different areas viz. Development Banking,
Innovation Sustainable  Finance,
Factoring, Trade Receivable Discounting, Forex,
etc.

Finance,

Training programmes were also conducted
for SIDBI officers focused on the risk capital
operations, as well as on the “KfW Innovation
Finance Programme”. Several industry experts
had been called for interactions & providing
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guidance on sector specific features & financing
opportunities/options Three such
programmes were organized during FY 2014-15.

available.

Staff Welfare Activities

During the year FY 2014-15, the Bank continued
its support for multifarious welfare activities
for the staff members and their families. Under
the guidance of Central Welfare Committee,
comprising senior officials of the Bank, funds
were allocated to welfare associations of various
offices of the Bank to organize welfare activities
for staff and their families.

Improvements in Information Technology Set-
P

There have been continuous efforts from the
Bank to leverage information technology for
serving the MSME sector. Emphasis continued
to be given to increase operational efficiency of
applications, building controls and improving
the Management Information System (MIS) in
the Bank. New MIS software was implemented
integrating different business areas of the
Bank to serve internal and external reporting
and information sharing requirements. Bills
Finance System was enhanced to directly
upload encrypted RTGS/NEFT payment details
of customers at IDBI Bank’s I-Cash portal
to expedite Software
was developed for tracking the payments of
statutory dues like TDS, service tax etc. as well
as filing of various returns of TDS, service tax
etc.; to meet statutory requirements. Direct
Finance Software was

customer payments.

further consolidated
and enhanced for better performance and
faster delivery of services. System of risk
mitigation was introduced through critical event
monitoring and alert mechanism. The Bank
upgraded its treasury management solution
integrated with other applications. The software
for grievance management was enhanced to

T
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provide automated alerts for better monitoring
and timely response to customers. Live Disaster
Recovery tests were successfully carried out
twice during the year to test preparedness of
the Bank for untoward incidents. Improvement
in IT infrastructure was taken up to facilitate
better and faster service to users and customers.
Video conferencing facility was strengthened by
adding High Definition end points at different
locations. Video conferencing has become vital
communication channel within the Bank and
also for communicating with customers and
other institutions and agencies ensuring faster
and cost effective communication.

Vigilance

The vigilance set-up in SIDBI is headed by
a full-time Chief Vigilance Officer [CVO],
appointed by the Finance,
Government of India. CVO is assisted by the
Vigilance Team at Head Office and Regional
Vigilance Officers at their respective regions.

Ministry  of

The Vigilance Vertical lays emphasis on the
preventive and proactive vigilance aspects. The
vertical has been taking several initiatives for
strengthening the systems and procedures to
promote efficiency and transparency. Preventive
Vigilance Committees at the Regional/Branch
levels and the Vigilance Committee at Head
Office have been set up to review the preventive
vigilance measures.

An Internal Advisory Committee on Vigilance
scrutinizes all the complaints or cases
arising out of inspections, audit reports, staff
accountability reports, etc. and furnishes its
recommendations to the CVO regarding the
existence or otherwise of the vigilance angle in
the issues examined by it.

Vigilance Vertical also acts as the nodal Vertical
for investigation, monitoring and follow-up
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actions on all cases of frauds perpetrated on
the Bank. Further, the Vertical also acts as the
nodal Vertical for evaluating the role of third
party entities in perpetration of frauds on the
Bank and getting their names included in the
caution list circulated by the Indian Banks’
[IBA], for deficiency observed
in professional service provided to the Bank
by them. As a part of anti fraud sensitization
programme, the various modus operandi of
frauds are shared with the Regions/Branches
from time to time. The CVO, Regional Vigilance
Officers (RVOs) and the vigilance team, in their
periodic meetings with the staff, discuss the
operational ~gaps/compliance
and sensitize the importance of adhering to

Association

various issues

guidelines, systems and processes.

The various Internal Audit reports of the
branches are reviewed by Vigilance and the
key compliance related issues are escalated
for immediate rectification. The Vigilance
Vertical also suggests measures to improve and
strengthen the existing systems and processes
in various forums like vigilance committee in
head office, Internal Advisory Committee on
Vigilance, Audit conference, Audit Committee of
Board, Regional Preventive Committee meetings
and the CMD-CVO quarterly meetings.

Vigilance Vertical maintains a vigil on the
tendering process followed by the Bank in
procurement of goods, works and contracts in
terms of the extant CVC guidelines. Towards
this end, the Vertical carries out Chief Technical
Examiners Office type inspections periodically,
on sample basis, to ensure that the procurement
of goods and services is being carried out as per
the norms.

The vigilance work is reviewed by the CMD
in his meeting with CVO every quarter and all
important/pending issues, if any, are dealt with
in accordance with the CVC guidelines.

T
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The Vigilance Vertical also submits a report
on vigilance activities to CVC and half yearly
review of the said activities to the Board of
Directors.

Among various initiatives, the Vertical has
laid special focus towards sensitizing the staff
about the need to adhere to laid down system
and procedures and to make the decision
making process transparent, fair and equitable.
It organized workshop on
Guidelines”, covering various departments of the
bank like Premises, Administration, Information
Technology (IT) and Vigilance. The vertical
also organized first ever workshop on Fraud
Prevention as a preventive vigilance function
in Mumbai. The first ever Vigilance Bulletin
‘Dakshata” was also launched during the year
which was inaugurated in the Board Meeting
held on June 27, 2014 at Lucknow. To spread
vigilance awareness and sensitivity, the vertical
also created Vigilance Blog on SIDBI Intranet.

“Procurement

During the year 2014-15, Vigilance Vertical
of SIDBI was the recipient of the first best
“Vigilance Excellence Award” in the Banking
Sector category instituted by “Institute of
Public Enterprises, Hyderabad”, for the
second consecutive year. The award came as
recognition of the good work done by SIDBI in
the field of vigilance administration and SIDBI
emerged the winner from amongst top Public
Sector Banks of the country. The award was
received by the CVO on behalf of SIDBI at a
function held at Hyderabad on March 12, 2015.

The Vigilance function in the Bank has thus
been laying emphasis on the participative
vigilance at all levels of operations to avoid/
minimize the incidents of frauds, corruption
and malpractices.
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Implementation of the  Official

Language Policy in the Bank

All offices of the Bank issued the documents
falling under Section 3(3) in bilingual and
ensured compliance of Rule 5 of The Official
Language Rules, 1976 by replying to in Hindi all
letters received or signed in Hindi.

The originating Hindi correspondence from
the offices situated in the regions ‘A’, ‘B’ and
‘C’ stood at 97%, 91% and 82% respectively,
as against the targeted 100%, 90% and 55%.
Similarly, the targets of Hindi notings for the
above regions were fixed at 75%, 50% and 30%
respectively, the attainments against which
stood at 86%, 68% and 53%. The main items of
Official Language Implementation in the HO
verticals as well as at the ROs were reviewed
in the Official Language Committee at the HO
and guidance provided to them vide letters,
e-mails etc. on an on-going basis. As many as
39 offices of the Bank have been notified under
Rule 10(4) of the Official Language Rules 1976,
in the official gazette of India. A proposal to
notify other 26 offices has also been sent to
the Department of Financial Services, Gol. The
Audit Manual used in the Bank has since been
prepared in bilingual form. Besides, ICAAP
policy, IT policy, Compliance Policy, Loan
Policy, Risk Management Policy, Investment
Policy, Collateral Security Policy, Operational
Risk Control Policy, Evaluation Policy, Vigilance
Manual etc. were also issued in bilingual.

The staff-members (except those in class-IV)
possessing a proficiency in Hindi were issued
individual orders to carry out their entire office
work in Hindi. A roster has been prepared for
the staff not having working knowledge of
Hindi and an arrangement made for imparting
them Hindi training through the Hindi Teaching
Scheme, Central Hindi Directorate or through
correspondence courses.

T
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All  staff-members  possessing  working
knowledge of Hindi were nominated in 65
Hindi workshops organized during the year
at various offices of the Bank, so as to train
them in carrying out their day to day official
work in Hindi. As almost entire business of the
Bank is transacted on computers, a session on
working in Hindi using Unicode was essentially
included in each workshop, with an emphasis
on practical exercises. The Regional Offices
conducted workshops for the staff attached to
the branches under their jurisdiction. Special
sessions on scientoons, blogging, food and
health, environment conservation, etc. were
held during these workshops, inviting locally
available specialists on the topics, so as to make
them more and more engrossing.

The quarterly Hindi ‘Sankalp’
was published regularly with an objective to
motivate the staff members for reading and
writing in Hindi. This year too, on the occasion
of Hindi Day, all offices of the Bank celebrated
Hindi Fortnight, which was marked by several
interesting activities and competitions. With
a view to creating a competitive environment
for working in Hindi, two competitions, viz
inter-office Rajbhasha Shield Pratiyogita and
Sarvottam Rajbhasha Pratinidhi Yojana were
held in the Bank.

magazine

The Bank has been organizing an all-India
Hindi essay competition for past few years,
which is aimed at encouraging the usage of
Hindi in the banks and financial institutions
on an all-India level. The 10th all-India essay
competition was organized during the year. The
Head Office and the Regional Offices conducted
37 official language inspections.

A Translation Training Camp was organized for
the Hindi Officers of the Bank in SIDBI MSME
International Training Institute, Bhubaneswar.
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Senior officials from the Central Translation
Bureau, New Delhi were invited to handle
sessions in the training programme. Training
material was translated in Hindi, during this
practice-oriented  training
sessions called ‘Rajbhasha Prayog - Apasi
Samvad - Sarthak Disha” were organized at
various centres to apprise all staff members
therein of the expectations of the Parliamentary
Official Language and
the Department of Financial Services, Gol. A
two-day all-India Hindi Officers” Conference
was organized during May 19 - 20, 2014 at
SIDBI MSME International Training Institute,
Bhubaneswar for the Hindi Officers of the bank.

camp. Interactive

Committee on the

The Bank won coveted second prize for two
consecutive years i.e. year 2012-13 and 2013-14
under Indira Gandhi Rajbhasha Shield Yojana,
being conducted by the Ministry of Home
Affairs, Gol. The above prizes were received by
the then Deputy Managing Director Shri N.K.
Maini on September 14, 2014 and November
13, 2014 from the Hon’ble President of India.
The Bank also received consolation prizes for
commendable Hindi implementation in the
region ‘C’ & region ‘B’ during the year 2012-
13 and 2013-14 respectively under the Reserve
Bank of India Rajbhasha Shield Pratiyogita. The
prizes were awarded by the Governor of RBI.
Smt. Anita Sachdeva, General Manager (Hindi)
received ‘Rajbhasha Gunvatta Puraskar” (2013-
14) from the Department of Financial Services,
Ministry of Finance and a letter of appreciation
for exemplary Hindi implementation (during
2012-13) in the Bank from the Rajbhasha Vibhag,
Ministry of Home Affairs.

Implementation of Right to
Information Act, 2005
The Bank is implementing the Right to

Information Act, 2005. Accordingly, the Bank

S
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has displayed in its website (www.sidbi.in)
functions and duties of the organization, norms
set by the Bank for discharge of its functions,
powers and duties of its officers and employees,
organization chart, sub-ordinate legislations,
etc. as envisaged under Section 4(1)(b) of the
Act. The information displayed in its website
is regularly updated. The Bank has designated
a Central Public Information Officer (CPIO),
Alternate Central Public Information Officer,
Central Assistant Public Information Officers
and First Appellate Authority and Alternate
First Appellate Authority, in terms of the Act,
the details of which are available on the Bank’s
website. In terms of the directives of Central
Information Commission (CIC), the Bank has
also designated a Transparency Officer for the
better implementation of Section 4 of the Act
with a view to promote congenial conditions for
timely response by CPIO to RTI queries. During
the year, the Bank received 274 applications
seeking information and all the applications
were disposed off as per the provisions of the
Act within stipulated time.

During the year, 17 appeals were made to the
First Appellate Authority (FAA) of the Bank,
which were disposed of within stipulated time
as per the provisions of the RTI Act. Against
the decisions taken by FAA, seven, 2nd appeals
were preferred before the CIC. There has been
no delay in either furnishing information by the
CPIO or in deciding appeals by the FAA. All
the quarterly online returns have been regularly
submitted to CIC on time. No officer of the
Bank has been fined/penalized for violation of
the provisions of the RTI Act.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

activities undertaken by SIDBI are primarily for
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socially relevant causes that would subserve the
larger mandate of the government. Endeavour is
made to ensure that, the CSR activities dovetail
with SIDBI’s Other CSR
activities undertaken are primarily for socially
relevant causes like relief to victims of natural
calamity, supporting friendly
technologies, support to physically challenged
and wunder privileged person, support for
setting up skill development centers for under
privileged section of the society. As part of
CSR, the Bank also contributed ¥ 2.00 crore to
SWACHH BHARAT KOSH (SBK) set up by
Government of India towards construction of
toilets in elementary and secondary schools as
part of SWACHH VIDYALAYA CAMPAIGN. Out
of CSR budget of X 4 crore for FY 2014-15, 50%
of the budget was utilized towards contribution
to SBK and sanctions were accorded to over
20 worthwhile projects spread across various
states amounting to I 1.65 crore taking the total
aggregate sanction under CSR to X 3.65 crore.

business activities.

environment

Debenture Trustees

Presently, there are two debenture trustees for
SIDBI’s outstanding bond issues, viz. Axis Bank
Limited and AllBank Finance Ltd. Their contact
details are:

Programme for Sensitisation on Energy Efficiency

B
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SmguEE: INE556F081D4, INE556F08101, INE556F08IPS I STETHATEN & ferw
ISIN: INE556F08ID4, INE556F08101, INE556F08IP8 For rest of the ISINs
T TRy, fade ad, (STRTSTE, S & qUT @i aTeft STu)
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N : 022-24255215/16 ﬁo—w :022-24254200
% 7S : debenturetrustee@axisbank.com
Axis Bank Limited,

Axis House, 2nd Floor,

“E”, Bombay Dyeing Mill Compound,
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai.
Tel: 022-24255215/16

Fax: 022- 24254200

E-mail: debenturetrustee@axisbank.com
Contact Person: Mr. Kanhu Harichandan

fedta 9, 37, §a THER ARt

®IE, E - 400023

ATE 1 +91- 22-22626283 THFILYM:24

R : +91-22- 22677552

399 : companysecretary@allbankfinance.com
v gt e

SHIAT ohall WE ST Sferahrt

AllBank Finance Ltd.

(wholly owned subsidiary of Allahabad Bank)
Corporate Office:

Allahabad Bank Building,

2nd Floor, 37, Mumbai Samachar Marg,

Fort, Mumbai - 400 023.

Board : +91 — 22 — 22626283 Ext: 24

Fax: +91-22-22677552

Email: companysecretary@allbankfinance.com
Website: www.allbankfinance.com

Contact Person : Ms. Melvita Lewis
Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer.
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SIDBI MSME International Training
Institute

SIDBI MSME International Training Institute
(SITI) at Bhubaneswar became operational in FY
2013-14 commensurating with the Silver Jubilee
Year Celebration of the Bank. During the year,
SITI has conducted 28 training programmes
covering 572 participants.
specialised programmes are;

Some of the

¢ Process Improvement Workshop (PIW)
for simplification, redefining processes to
sharpen the Bank’s competitive edge in

internal and external operations,

*  Business Strategy Workshop for Branch In-
charges,
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* Gender Sensitization for Micro Financing
Institutions,

e Capacity Building Workshop for senior
officers of Jammu and Kashmir State
Financial Corporation,

¢ Advanced programme in translations for
Hindi Officers in association with Central
Translation Bureau Ministry of Home
Affairs, GOI and

e Workshop for Superannuating Officers.
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I. SIDBI Venture Capital Limited

SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL)
was established in 1999 as an Investment
Management Company for managing Venture
Capital Funds (VCFs)/Alternative Investment
Funds (AIFs). Over the years, SVCL has evolved
into one of the leading institutional investment
management companies in India having focus
on the small and medium sector companies in
India.

SVCL, at present, is acting as the Investment
Manager for Fund for
Software and Information Technology Industry
(NFSIT), SME Growth Fund (SGF) [first unit
scheme of SIDBI SME Venture Fund], India
Opportunities Fund (IOF) [second unit scheme
of SIDBI SME Venture Fund], Samridhi Fund
(SF) [unit scheme of SIDBI Social Venture Trust]
and TEX Fund (TF) [a unit scheme of Laghu
Vikas Trust].

National Venture

SVCL has so far invested in 80 early and growth
stage from diversified sectors
such as IT/ITES, services, retail, pharma, auto
components, bio-fuels, textile & garments,
logistics etc. and sustainable social enterprises
in sectors such as healthcare, financial services,
water, dairy, agriculture and allied services etc.
It has fully or partially divested its investments
in 43 of 56 companies of its first 2 VCFs, viz.
NFSIT and SGF.

companies

National Venture Fund for Software &

Information Technology Industry (NFSIT)

NESIT is a close ended venture fund established
in August 1999. The fund has a committed
corpus of X 100 crore, the contributors being
Ministry of Communications and Information
Technology (X 30 crore), IDBI (X 20 crore)
and SIDBI (X 50 crore). The main objective
of establishing the fund was to provide
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T T AT S Gehr ¢ fob ¥ Faferd ot gt
I el et & SAfafte ot et o faceht st
TR AR T T T 750 HAS HT facet e o
¥ A ¥ et W

Taws wqtg e (qastw)

TS WY e (TEshus) i srafy ameft 3em gsit
fafer 8, fSrgent oo faamT 2004 # T 500 I
F Tfaas TR MY ¥ & | THe veH fasd
3R 9T o 3T IV AF St I WRAT ©T
op, ST AT S, Sk 3 Terer geAIE 7 BT |
7% U &7 oy fafy €, ot o fafas &6t &
g SEEr i SfeEl e St § S foradt &%
T ¥ Gafg IS Teradm ST I o W T
fafer 7 25 o & fraer far €

TESITE 16 HET ¥ HAAGEs U T[T s
gfete fam & qon omd fEW ¥ @ T 467
FAS H AT 99« & T [SIfF Fo FEfea ofer
R 456.09 FS) & 100% & 31ferey 8] | 37 ek, Fafer
T I VIS FI FA T 359.26 FIS HT faawor
R 327.61 s TR Ay o wfq 1 T 31.65 FIS
Y & &7 H) fpar €1 foxia af 2014-15 & A
T 92.03 S &1 AT fgalka =t | e &, T 70
SIS o T fFaTeT T Taared qen §fad g8f 7
e & Trep T T |
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venture capital support by way of equity
and equity linked instruments to unlisted
SME enterprises in the areas of software and
information technology. The fund has invested
in 31 companies. NFSIT has been able to secure
successful full exit from 24 companies and
partial exit from 3 companies, while it had to
write off investments in 2 companies.

The spin-off impact of NFSIT’s investments may
be assessed from the fact that these investee
companies have enabled over X 750 crore of
foreign investment into the country through
raising of additional capital
venture capital funds and acquisitions by

from foreign

overseas companies.

SME Growth Fund (SGF)

SGF is a close ended venture fund established
in September 2004 with a committed corpus
of ¥ 500 crore. The contributors are SIDBI and
other leading commercial banks in India such
as State Bank of India, Punjab National Bank,
Bank of Baroda etc. SGF is a sector agnostic
fund which was established to provide growth
capital support, primarily to wunlisted SME
enterprises across diverse sectors by way of
equity and equity linked instruments. The fund
has invested in 25 companies.

SGF has been able to secure full or partial exit
from 16 companies and realized a total sum
of approx. X 467 crore from its investments
[which is more than 100% of total investments
made (X 456.09 crore)]. So far, the fund has
made distributions of X 359.26 crore to its
Contributors (X 327.61 crore towards corpus
and R 31.65 crore towards profits). During FY
2014-15, X 92.03 crore was distributed. Further,
an amount of X 70 crore approx. has been
retained by the fund, towards disputed tax
liabilities and probable penalties.

S
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THSITE o Fa9T o 3Tadl THTE T SIS 39 a1 §
T ST Fene ® fo ¥ Frafyret shafrar faesht satEt
% Ifre wd faeeh o) gst et & erfafw Ost
TR T 1,000 FHIIS o foceit Fawr &l <91 § @ #
uef g 71

e rAfET he (SME3Uw)
IMEITE 10 ¥ i ffgq owafy aet e fafu
8, STt T e 2011 ® @ | 3w fAfy Y
gfiers, ¥ MY T 467.75 HAUS TAT TR0 ART TE
fafer T 421.30 FIT 21 TEATE & TR W
TR TR (eifirent faepra are) &1

Eew &F-frve fafy 2, % qora: 9Ra &
NI T TN W-Teles TR & ggfs TS
METIHATS T & i AT AT 2, ST SRS g
&t & afteerd §, S feren-dare, emdl/emddidg,
Ao, T TaT 37 | STEATE IR, I
MR T 3ifcd =T ot gir wufar # o femer
FHT |

3ME3H 7 18 U H T 228.87 IS i TaaGd
1 2, 5% ¥ 16 HufEl § T 128.15 S o1 F@AT
T & TH 2|

T ffer (Touw)

TAReE forTen WEHR o TH faum, feudde wR
STCIAE SaaTHe 7 fasst o gy fraet T 430
FHUS () 1 grmoren e iy wgfg ffy ey
FT § Sifer ol & & T e YR % 3T 3T
el T faehre Gareft Hifaa ¥ fues & fog awm
MR AT ITTeY HIAT | SUHITEST aom faget
30 wgfg fAfy § wmer: Seidt 35 fafeas @
T 330 HIS) TAT T 50 IS i ART Ufqag i T4

T

The spin-off impact of SGF’s investments may
be assessed from the fact that these investee
companies have enabled over X 1,000 crore of
foreign investment into the country through
raising of additional capital
venture capital funds and acquisitions by

from foreign

overseas Companies.

India Opportunities Fund (IOF)

India Opportunities Fund is a close ended
venture fund established in August 2011 with
a life of 10 years. The fund has a committed
corpus of I 467.75 crore and a drawable corpus
of X 42130 crore. The contributors of IOF are
domestic commercial banks, development financial
institutions, insurance companies and Government
of India (Technology Development Board).

IOF is a sector agnostic fund focused mainly on
meeting growth capital needs of India’s growing
and unlisted MSMEs operating in emerging
sectors such as educational services, IT/ITES,
light engineering, clean tech, agro-based
industries, logistics, infrastructure etc. IOF will
also invest in early, growth as well as late stage
companies selectively.

IOF has made commitments of I 228.87 crore in
18 companies, out of which a sum of ¥ 128.15
crore has so far been invested in 16 companies.

Samridhi Fund (SF)

The Department for International Development
(DFID), a department of the Government of
United Kingdom, has partnered with SIDBI
to start the Samridhi Fund - a X 430 crore
(approx.) social venture fund which will engage
with the private sector to deliver market based
solutions to address development challenges
in the low income states in India. DFID and
SIDBI have committed GBP 35 million (approx.
% 330 crore) and X 50 crore to Samridhi Fund,
respectively. The Master Trust viz., SIDBI Social
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anfrer, ammifster et yAfeRor #t gy T ArHERT
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HEAUCYT, 3TSIM, BTG, JREGS, TSI Tl ufFH
T H fowita @ qrTSten Sfaery Tge ohd §f | 99s
fafy sfera &0 § @7 fen T Sfead/sfaadt deed
frasi, fea=rl, soatfe o wremm @ qor qat (Gepfcdh
fraer fafy) fafw 2012 & ofada o faedt &
HTem § 9T T |

g Ay gRT 13 Hufar ¥ 3T 211.31 HUS B IR
TEFESd H T B, fEE ¥ 8 wutEr § T 84.41
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e ffer (& Tw)

W @ w7 T ffy et e @ 7 RS
IR SRS § YRd WHR (@& HAeE) a
foedt et €1 AUF W T Jepfcass fawn ffa(med
) fafem, 2012 Y 9oft [ & ofaria wauws i 2
TR FHR 7 T 24.50 HUS i Tiaager i € aom
fagst 4 T 24 FHUS FUAT IR A7 T Y *
30%, ST off & BT, Y TR 6t ToaSd 1 €|

7T fafy a9 UM & % @Y ST ¥ (TIHUERe!
Afufem 2006 T FUr IRWINT 9T THI-THT W
FTHINY), TRt qrekem & Taet Izl & froer
M| w8 ot fE9 T 3 s § e 7 TET B
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Venture Trust has been registered as a Category
I Alternative Investment Fund with SEBI. SF
has also subsequently received commitment for
contribution of X 40 crore from Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC) and X 10 crore from
United India Insurance Company Limited (UII).
With the commitment for contributions from
LIC and UII, the total committed corpus of SF is
around X 430 crore.

The primary objective of the Fund, managed by
SVCL, is to promote early-stage and sustainable
social
social or environmental benefits and can deliver
both financial and social returns, in 8 Low
Income States (LIS) in India, namely Bihar, Uttar
Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, Odisha, Chhattisgarh,
Jharkhand, Rajasthan and West Bengal. Samridhi
Fund shall invest by way of privately negotiated
equity/equity related investments, debentures etc.
and by way of instruments as may be permitted
by the SEBI (Alternative Investment Funds)
Regulations, 2012.

enterprises which provide economic,

SF has made cumulative commitments of
% 211.31 crore in 13 companies, out of which a
sum of I 84.41 crore has so far been invested in
8 companies.

TEX Fund (TF)

SVCL has set up ‘TEX Fund’ with initial
contributors being Govt. of India (Ministry
of Textiles) and SIDBI. ‘TF’ is an SME Fund
under Category I of SEBI's Alternative
Investment Funds (AIF) Regulations, 2012. Gol
has committed X 24.50 crore and SIDBI has
committed X 24 crore or 30% of the drawable
corpus, whichever is lower.

The Fund would invest in small enterprises
(as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 and as
amended from time to time) in the textile sector,
more particularly related to Powerloom sector.
Each investment would not exceed X 3 crore.

T+
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TOH! TUF el STHRGEX 2014 H Hfod i WA oft qerr
A a8 & R Gt ®T G T 7.43 HUS & 3
et ® TereS ® B

gl gatayH faf (g ond ww)

@t W T T 200 TS T JUH T F WY FHAT
TAEvE fafy & e @ ufEer § €1 3w fafy @t
TTOT HTIATT, FRITTE 3TfaT 3Tkt Heart Temstl o
a1y freet # 5T @ 7, S ffy e % e
MG B T JeieT Y[eeh, hdl, FAIe b1 TR e
T | ot 7 T 60 S 31erET g Y &1 30% S
ot 9 T, S AR F WEH e Fedd af g1 IoREA
TWHR 7 10 fafeas smftwt ek & fau a=asar af
2 | TEEEITe o SfvTeraredl § 99 TR I w1 5
HT TET T qo Gt faceft fowent & 7 9gfaa
FHRATE IE HT & W B

- fafert

T 2 TT-ET FafEt o oo o6 ufemer | @
fSTH Fafud o9 TXHRT T AEaqUl SR BT |
THSTHITSA ShT FoT-T

THATS T 31 A9 2015 T W@ qo-99 T2 01

WA 2014 ¥ 31 HE 2015 TF T AH-gIT fereoft
frefafad aifererTstt § < 57 & &

2

The first closure was announced in October 2014
and TF has made cumulative commitments of
X 7.43 crore towards 3 investments during the
year.

Impact Innovation Fund (IIF)

SVCL is in the process of setting up Impact
Innovation Fund with a first close of X 200
crore. The Fund is being set up jointly with
Kaenaat, Mauritius or its subsidiaries with
equal responsibilities for fund raising and equal
sharing of management fee, carry, etc. SIDBI
has agreed to contribute I 60 crore or 30% of
the corpus whichever is lower. Govt. of Israel
has committed USD 10 million. SVCL is in the
process of raising balance amount from other
contributors and due diligence by potential
foreign investors has started.

State Level Funds

SVCL is in the process of raising 2 State Level
Funds with the respective State Governments
contributing significantly to the Funds.

Balance Sheet of SVCL

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
and Statement of Profit and Loss of SVCL for
the period April 01, 2014 to March 31, 2015 are
given in the following tables:



ATCTeRT 6.1 TH &t T TeT o1 WigE Fora
Table 6.1: Abridged Balance Sheet of SVCL
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® & / lakh)
Ter 31 WA Jer 31 WA
e on o e W vr. b
31, 2014 Abridged Balance Sheet of SVCL 31, 2015
(Audited) (Audited)
gfeardt it Tt / EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1,500.00 | ¥rR GSft / Share capital 1,500.00
1,102.37 | smfafaat X i / Reserves and Surplus 1,247.60
96.14 | T-91ef ¥7amE / Non - Current Liabilities 178.99
787.35 | =g <&@l / Current Liabilities 773.38
3,485.86 I / Total 3,699.97
smfwmat / ASSETS
2,227.49 | iR-e] &t / Non - Current Assets 2,321.47
1,258.37 | =mq] amf&war / Current Assets 1,378.50
3,485.86 | =M/ Total 3,699.97

= % (@)

foe ST T TEdT =S SR 99 €U YRS dChugsts ey 2015 H gt 1 THwHUE o1 Wanfed & 7q fafes e’
SIDBI with "SPECIAL AWARD FOR ENCOURAGING SME" was conferred with
BFSI Awards 2015 organised by World HRD Congress and ABP News jointly.

S
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AT(CTEhT 6.2 TH &t T TS ohT Wl 1 - I @rar
Table 6.2: Abridged Statement of Profit & Loss of SVCL

R & / lakh)
31 9T 2014 31 WTe 2014
T FATA o I AT T
Egr(if;&:; ] SSEINESIEI L w-glﬁ Y 1%3_(%'r(t31:|1ae”7F &Zl)r
ended-Maxch Abridged Statement of Profit & Loss of SVCL ended Myarch
31, 2014 31, 2015
(Audited) (Audited)
TS / REVENUE
1,539.49 | o=t § T / Revenue from operations 1,448.53
74.62 | 377 3 / Other Income 154.79
1,614.11 | =T/ Total 1,603.32
=99 /| EXPENSES
613.78 | oftamer =8 / Operating expenses 711.24
6.34 | q=-8™ / Depreciation 9.65
620.12 | =T/ Total 720.89
993.99 mﬁmgtgj{ ;fiae-r;raordinary items and tax i
044 | <irS: er|THROT 7S / Add: Exceptional Items 0.05
0.15 HaTC: T8t ! 379y & TAEST / Less: Prior Period Adjustments 0.01
994.28 STETYRYT W[ T &I-T4 @Y / Profit Before extraordinary item and Taxation 882.47
0.00 HATC ; STHTHROT 7S (el o qoT # &t &g Maw™) / Less: Extraordinary item 0.00
[provision for diminution in the value of investments/(Reversed)]
994.28 | &T-gd @ / Profit Before Taxation 882.47
327.00 =] T / Current tax 290.00
7.50 | amefind T / Deferred tax (18.22)
0.00 | ama-=X 7] (1fafeh)/&w Jraw™ / Short/(Excess) provision for Income Tax 0.00
0.00 | wiger wfafafea & g #iwre™ / Contribution to CSR Activities 15.00
659.78 srafy ¥ ow/({1) / Profit/(loss) for the period 595.69

12 E—



II. fogdt o=t shut faties

faest Tt wut fafide (Tadiditer) st T 1999
F AR W e 3a Uit faferl/defeaes fraer fafust
TG TET wEf g w TR oft wEdiHiE adEe
¥ AT X HS BR GHeaaX TS doHarst ST
(TTTHTHSTES) TOUE Wl &g (TEsiew), 3oear i
TS F (E3NTE), Uglg TS (TUIFR) T Ty
fafyr & TEt & &9 # T wLA ¢ |

THSTHITST Rl For-Us

TEEHTA T 31 AE 2015 6T G qo-99 T 01
30 2014 ¥ 31 HE 2015 T T AH-TIT fereroft
frefafad drfersrrstt & < s @ &
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II. SIDBI Trustee Company Limited

SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL) was
established in 1999 to carry out the trusteeship
functions in general and for Venture Capital
Funds/Alternative Investment Funds. STCL,
at present, is acting as the Trustee for National
Venture Fund for Software and Information
Technology Industry (NFSIT), SME Growth
Fund (SGF), India Opportunities Fund (IOF),
Samridhi Fund (SF) and TEX Fund (TF).

Balance Sheet of STCL

The abridged Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
and Statement of Profit and Loss for the period
April 01, 2014 to March 31, 2015 for STCL are as
given below :-

TATMCTERT 6.3 THETHIUS ohT Wi Jor U
Table 6.3: Abridged Balance Sheet of STCL

R @ / lakh)
T 31 W ToIT 31 W
2014 (3ickfar) e e g 2015 (3iekfar)
elcniMarch Abridged Balance Sheet of STCL g LR
31, 2014 31, 2015
(Audited) (Audited)
3fFaet it Taant / EQUITY & LIABILITIES
5.00 | ¥ St/ Share capital 5.00
455.58 | sTRfafar $iiT 3t / Reserves and Surplus 507.17
0.00 | ¥x-=re A / Non - Current Liabilities 0.00
0.73 = AT / Current Liabilities 0.80
461.31 | =T/ Total 512.97
et / ASSETS
55.85  |X-aTef &t / Non - Current Assets 3.61
405.46 | =g emf&mEr / Current Assets 509.36
461.31 | =T/ Total 512.97

B
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ATfCTeRT 6.4 THETHIUE ShT GIATWT T - BT @rar
Table 6.4: Abridged Statement of Profit & Loss of STCL

@ @ / lakh)
31 W 2014 31 WTE 2014
Y T o =Y T
i T e s o e yeu
ended March ridged Statement of Profit & Loss of SVCL ended March
31, 2014 31, 2015
(Audited) (Audited)
@ / REVENUE
58.93 | uft=mert § ST / Revenue from operations 35.67
3620 | 3™ 3 / Other Income 45.38
95.13 a7 / Total 81.05
=19 /| EXPENSES

6.45 | uftarem =19 / Operating expenses 6.26

6.45 I / Total 6.26

88.68 | SrETENRUT WEY AUT THI-YH oY / Profit before extraordinary items and tax 74.79

0.50 | Sirg: ar@mHReT 7 / Add: Extraordinary items 0.00

0.00 | =ard: frgeht stafer & THESH / Less: Prior Period Adjustment 0.00

89.18 | =T-1d @ / Profit Before Taxation 74.79
27.50 0] T / Current tax 23.20

0.00 SR & / Deferred tax 0.00

0.00 3MF-THT 5 AN Tee / Excess provision for Income Tax 0.00

61.68 | srafy 7 @T/(ETF) / Profit/(loss) for the period 51.59

HeIrTt We
. ge9 Td oY oW ®/UT TR fafar &
(FsfidtTnead)

HisTegd e 19 o IgEt & o F0T TR A
JeT 3T EUN o AT T 100 @ T hi RUT MR
glawr & S 7, foren fo il ofqufa siy/stean
JATT T8 MR U T €| e, Y U HeAw W
(THUHUNE) ™, MR TR qon faes 7 foxia o

IC3 E—

ASSOCIATES

III. Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Micro
and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE)

CGTMSE operates the Credit Guarantee Scheme
(CGS) for Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs)
which guarantees credit facilities upto I 100
lakh extended by Member Lending Institutions
(MLIs) to those loans, which are not backed by
collateral security and/or third party guarantees.
Micro, Small
Enterprises (MSME), Government of India and

Ministry — of and Medium
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T 74.99 FHUS AT T 18.75 HUS T AMEH foham,
S FaeaeT 9iyg Y &1 3R T 2,389.04 FS
= |

SHUT MET AT o UiEe T

FOT TR AT & uReErert # g SRy W@ | fad o
2000-01 H ohael 9 HE&T FURH FEmT Wi off |
JT 31 A 2015 TR GL&T H1 Fraew o el To
FOEH TeTeT W @ aewT 119 ¥ T ¢ fo
T 2014-15 T IRM T 21,274.82 Fs & ¢ FaA
4,03,422 TRfEA SEAfCT & TR TW TR @
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T TR HalsT e g9 T R
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SIDBI contributed X 74.99 crore and X 18.75
crore, respectively, to the corpus of CGTMSE
during FY 2014-15, raising the corpus size to
T 2,389.04 crore.

Operations of Credit Guarantee Scheme

The operations under CGS continued to grow.
From only 9 active MLIs in FY 2000-01, the
number of MLIs availing the guarantee cover
has gone up to 119 active MLIs as on March 31,
2015. During FY 2014-2015 a total of 4,03,422
guarantees have been approved for an amount
of X 21,274.82 crore, registering a growth of
16% in terms of number and 17% in terms of
amount respectively over the previous financial
year. Cumulatively, as at March 31, 2015, a
total of 18,17,245 accounts have been accorded
guarantee approval for I 90,445.90 crore. The
slab-wise coverage under the Credit Guarantee
Scheme is given below:

TATRCTERT 6.5 : TAT 31 AT, 2015 TG-a TR STHIET (Fert)

Table 6.5 : Slab-wise guarantee approvals as on March 31, 2015 (cumulative)

Terlt / Cumulative
?N-?): wtar / Range ) !J'{?ITEIN\T(;“:#L:F@IT ?;u:rg
Proposals Loan Amount

(X Lakh)
1 1,00,000/- @& / Upto 1,00,000/- 6,11,647 3,06,205.84
2 1,00,001 ¥ 2,00,000/- T / 1,00,001 to 2,00,000/- 4,33,438 6,60,992.11
3 2,00,001 ¥ 5,00,000/- @& / 2,00,001 to 5,00,000/- 3,88,431 14,02,658.60
4 5,00,001 ¥ 10,00,000/- T / 5,00,001 to 10,00,000/- 1,85,957 14,28,703.59
5 10,00,001 ¥ 25,00,000/- @& / 10,00,001 to 25,00,000/- 1,40,695 | 24,20,107.54
6 25,00,001 § 50,00,000/- T / 25,00,001 to 50,00,000/- 40,004 | 15,17,994.91
7 50,00,001 ¥ 1,00,00,000/- T / 50,00,001 to 1,00,00,000/- 17,073 13,07,927.99
=T / Total 18,17,245 | 90,44,590.58

HUAT &AM < e H g G/ & R arcfersh T § 37T &1 el € |

N.B.: Actuals may vary due to intervening cancellations/modifications

B
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FOT MRS AT & I 31 919 2015 T HI Gt
el o fgvemor ¥ gar W ® R T 13,592.62
FUS (15.03%) & fauw 3,47,735 =@ (19.14%)
Afgem SAfEl; T 2,078.73 FS (2.30%) & fou
91,851 TWE (5.05%) STIgfaa Sufadl; T 1318.78
FUE (1.46%) o AT 39,949 T (2.20%) FIHfarT
STl 9T T 4,191.09 IS (4.63%) & fau
1,29,321 T&T9 (7.12%) STTHETh ¥ Fef=a o |

Y UHTq

HSidTaugE o TREmeHr @1 erefereter W gahRias
JTd TST 7, S 0T MRE-HTet THUHE o hef ST,

frrer e TSR o frefafed el ¥ 59T ©:

An analysis of the cumulative coverage under
CGS as at March 31, 2015, indicates that
3,47,735 proposals (19.14%) for R 13,592.62
crore (15.03%) were in respect of Women
Entrepreneurs; 91,851 proposals (5.05%) for
X 2,078.73 crore (2.30%) to Scheduled Caste;
39,949 proposals (2.20%) for X 1,318.78 crore
(1.46%) to Scheduled Tribe and 1,29,321
proposals (7.12%) for X 4,191.09 crore (4.63%) to
the Minorities.

Overall Impact

CGTMSE’s operations have had a positive
impact on the economy in terms of turnover,
exports and employment of credit guaranteed
MSEs as given below:

ATCTERT 6.6: WSIEITTATAS ThT TUT TATS

Table 6.6: Overall Impact CGTMSE

ToIT 31 W, 2015
Haes / Parameters As on March 31,
2015

Terft aTgHifed et () / Cumulative Guarantee approved (Nos.) 18,17,245
T TRT (VST FOEH Teenstt g1 ¥ew) @ F€) / Loan Amount (extended by MLIs) (% in crore) 90,445
TRET-ITa $ehrsal § STgATa frata @ &e) / Expected exports by guaranteed units R in crore) 6,774
AT TSR G (1@ Afh) / Expected employment generation (No. in lakh) 63.02
TEH FUCHT Gennstt &t §@T / Number of MLIs 133

IV. & ey fafaes

TR T S0 gREme 2005 § SRy fou) foxita o
2014-15 % SN 39 6,629 THUAE T GO oy
IO TN o 9T H 31 A 2015 T TR 7 G
®Y Y 34,385 THUEUAS Sor1gdl ol T e & €, ST
fafsrar oif, Seimit qem et F Sl gE © | TR geR
T I W A e I W@, S gwent am
I 69% 3T 30% B

TR I a9A-11 AFES! & ST SHUSTE & ®9 §
a9 2012 ¥ wRAE {5 S ¥ A el | S@e a1
¥ O 7 faeia 9 2014-15 § 836 o FOl bt AU
I T | - o 9T T w9 ¥ @R T 1,583
dor w7

T

IV. SMERA Ratings Limited

SMERA which commenced operations in
2005, completed 6,629 SME Ratings during the
financial year 2014-15. Cumulatively, since its
incorporation, SMERA has assigned ratings to
34,385 MSME units up to March 31, 2015 spread
across various categories, industries and states.
SMERA has been providing special attention to
micro and small enterprises which accounted for
69% and 30%, respectively, of its total ratings.

After receiving accreditation in the year 2012
from RBI as an ECAI under BASEL — II norms,
SMERA has completed 836 Bank Loan Ratings
during the financial year 2014-15. Cumulatively
since receipt of accredition, SMERA has
assigned 1,583 Bank Loan Ratings.
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ATfTeRT 6.10 : Ta<ier Seor@=IT qed
Table 6.10: Financial Highlights

R @@ / lakh)
fa.a. 2012-13 fa.a. 2013-14 fa.a. 2014-15
faTuT / Particulars FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15
Sichfard / Audited | 37ohfera / Audited | 3ichfara / Audited
ST / Revenue 2,451 3,118 3,432
=7 / Expenditure 2,294 2,668 3,052
FI-Td @Y / Profit Before Tax 157 449 381
HT-TGTq & / Profit After Tax 126 375 301
7|'§ q-gmw NEW INITIATIVES

o fOAWR 2014 WE ¥ TR T W-TWHRT A o
fau e T g S IRY R, arfer
ST TIAAT H QYR AT ST Feoh 3 SEehe qen
fequmes gqe™ &1 fofa e 7 geftar w® |

V. Efewn woumd et wfedw fafids
(STETEETHT)
$fean U oSt afees fafrds (STETadTaTe)
fagat o1 Tear TEm R, ST e qgar wEwd
UfCTSTTST/hTET o o e gome 9 wHel-Jar
TA T WA F, TT ol &, TICHUAE &, SR,
R fomr, TEROE SHell qYT YA JaeE
39T T ATl 3 foRITS-get i Hee ¥ HIT 99
e, T el (et WX S, THeHend

o

T fasht@ qem qoAihT T 3R erweT-fachT,
STTEehdT gfg T SHIvTel faehTd &1 Jar ot Yo e
2| STéTdiTaT W fawereh fachedt, He-AfeT,
fodta Te, eI TeanT gl TRt &t Hal
T % Y-y §EAR/AHeT qor faoE weam o

TS ST ¢ |

* In the month of September, 2014 SMERA
launched its new evaluation product for
grading Non-government Organizations
(NGOs) aimed to improve their visibility
and enable decision making for the donor
and stakeholder community.

V. India SME Technology Services Limited
[ISTSL]

India SME Technology Services Limited
(ISTSL), an associate institution of SIDBI offers
technology advisory and consultancy services
for projects/assignments
Efficiency and Demand Side Management,
Renewable Energy (particularly solar), MSME
Cluster Development and Evaluation Studies,
and Capacity Building, Awareness Creation
& Skill Development with the help of its
team of experts having extensive experience
in energy efficiency, MSME Sector, banking,
project finance, renewable energy and project
management. In this domain, ISTSL also
provides services such as providing information
on technology options, Match making, Finance
Syndication,

related to Energy

Collaboration and

and providing

Business
organizing seminars/meets
marketing support.

T
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TR TTTT Sl HTET
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So-Fot offe et FHen SNt st
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YA SN et TaT 7 |
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et (favmeRt WX ST, e wE faw @
L GIEENCERE] AT eoar-faepry, STeehar g aem
HITTEA FehTH ohT T off FEH T € |
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Services offered by ISTSL
End to End Energy Efficiency (4E) Solutions

ISTSL is actively involved in the implementation
of SIDBI's End to End Energy Efficiency
(4E) Solutions Programme which is aimed
at facilitating the MSMEs in Industrial and
Services sector in improving their energy
efficiency.

Measurement & Verification Audit wunder
TEQUP Scheme

ISTSL facilitates Measurement and Verification
(M&V) Audit at industries all over India which
wish to avail subsidy under “Technology
and Quality Upgradation Support to MSMEs
(TEQUP)” Scheme of the Ministry of MSME,
Gol. Through these M&V audits, 48 MSME
units have been benefitted with a subsidy
amounting to around X 3.61 Crore.

Renewable Energy Solutions

ISTSL facilitates adoption of Renewable Energy
technologies  including Solar  PV/Thermal
systems, biomass, etc. by the MSMEs. ISTSL has
been organizing Awareness Creation/Capacity
Building/Skill Development Workshops/
Seminars in various MSME clusters.

Technology Advisory and Consultancy

ISTSL  offers  technology
consultancy services for projects/assignments
related to Energy Efficiency and Demand Side
Management, Renewable Energy (particularly
solar), MSME Cluster
Evaluation Studies, and Capacity Building,
Awareness Creation & Skill Development with
the help of its team of experts having extensive

advisory  and

Development and

experience in energy efficiency, MSME Sector,
banking, project finance, renewable energy and
project management.
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VI. India SME Asset Reconstruction

Company Limited [ISARC]

India SME Asset Reconstruction Company
Limited (ISARC) was promoted by SIDBI
with the principal objective of acquiring non-
performing assets (NPAs) and to resolve them
through innovative mechanisms with a special
focus on the NPAs of micro, small and medium
enterprises sector (MSMEs). The Company was
incorporated on April 11, 2008 and commenced
its business operations on April 15, 2009.

RBI has revised the guidelines applicable to
ARC vide its circular dated August 5, 2014 after
which acquisition by ISARC and all other ARCs,
as a whole, have come to a standstill, barring
tactical acquisition for debt aggregation.

During the year, ISARC wundertook due
diligence in respect of 52 accounts and
submitted bid for 4 accounts. During the year,
the Company acquired 2 financial assets from
2 Banks (sellers) for an aggregate purchase
consideration of X 14.00 crore out of which
% 4.50 crore was invested by ISARC and balance
X 950 crore came from the other security
receipts (SRs) investors (sellers). During the
year, ISARC has recovered X 28.58 crore as
against ¥ 26.95 crore and X 17.85 crore during
the FY 2013-14 and FY 2012-13 respectively,
from its acquired assets. SRs worth ¥ 15.96 crore
were redeemed during the FY 2014-15 (previous
year X 14.30 crore). ISARC has assets under
management (AUM) of X 377.95 crore (Gross
AUM - X 449.55 crore) representing outstanding
SRs and balance sheet assets.

VII. Micro Units Development & Refinance
Agency [MUDRA]

The Union Budget of FY 2015-16 has announced
setting up of Micro Units Development &
Refinance Agency [MUDRA] with the objective
of mainstreaming micro/small business units by

T
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TOY Tohel R IAE | off g TN | WRA & A
TUM W o R WS T 08 WA 2015 HT At Y
TR GTAT o &7 H J&T T ICHEA foraT|

way of providing access to institutional finance
to these ‘own account enterprises’. This will
not only help in improving the quality of life
of these entrepreneurs, but will also contribute
significantly to the employment generation
thereby achieving higher GDP growth. MUDRA
was launched as a subsidiary of SIDBI on April
08, 2015 by Shri Narendra Modi, Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India.

faelt grRT Sy Termer ffeax
Blood Donation Camp organised by SIDBI
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TE-U T o faawur
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I3 I—

BALANCE SHEET &
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The audited Balance Sheet, along with Profit
and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement of
Small Industries Development Bank of India,
for the financial year 2014-15, are given in
Appendix I. The consolidated Balance Sheet,
along with Profit and Loss Account and Cash
Flow Statement of SIDBI with its subsidiaries
viz., SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd. (SVCL), SIDBI
Trustee Company Ltd. (STCL) and Micro
Units Development & Refinance Agency Ltd.
(MUDRA Ltd.) and associates viz. SMERA
Rating Ltd. (SMERA), Indian SME Asset
Reconstruction Company Limited (ISARC),
India SME Technology Services Ltd. (ISTSL),
and others are given in Appendix IL

The total income of the Bank during the
year was at I 5,741.47 crore as compared to
X 5,808.32 crore during the previous year. The
total expenditure during the corresponding
period was at X 3,823.24 crore as compared to
X 3,646.47 crore during the previous year. The
Profit before Tax for the year was X 2,115.24
crore, compared to X 1,539.50 crore in the
previous year. The net profit after tax and
Deferred Tax Adjustment for the year was
X 1,417.13 crore as against X 1,118.27 crore in
the previous year. Out of the total distributable
profit of X 1,453.05 crore (net profit of X 1,417.13
crore [after tax adjustment] for the year ended
March 31, 2015 and brought forward profit of
% 35.92 crore), the Bank declared a dividend of
25% on paid up equity capital of I 450 crore
which worked out to X 135.40 crore inclusive
of dividend distribution tax, surcharge and cess
payable thereon. During the year, a sum of ¥ 80
crore was transferred to Special Reserve created
under Section 36(1) (viii) of IT Act, 1961, X 5.92
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crore was transferred to Investment Fluctuation
Reserve and appropriation of X 2 crore was
made to Staff Welfare Fund (SWEF). Surplus of
T 1,190 crore was transferred to the Reserve
Fund and balance ¥ 39.73 crore was retained in
Profit and Loss Account.

Table 7.1 : Balance Sheet Size

R & € / crore)
80000 -
20000 67810
59385 61848 60855
60000 -
51217
50000 -
40000 -
30000 -
20000 -
10000 { 5309
o | BN . . : :
1991 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

ﬁ'@Tﬂ'ﬁ&Tﬂ?:
Sor & facr af 2014-15 % @l T AGT-TIET FE
I U WS, 8! WE@Io K, Hag + ohi | Fifdfess
TET-TeT T % faw 3Tt FfE 27 S 2014 6
TSI o7 | ¥ foedt atfufam 1989 (Femgenfea)
T €T 30(1) % TR 6 T |

T Wiereht @t O I8 §@m 98 W 161 W ar TS
g

Auditors

The accounts of the Bank for the financial
year 2014-15 were audited by M/s Borkar &
Muzumdar, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai
who were appointed in terms of Section 30(1) of
the SIDBI Act, 1989 (as amended) at the Annual
General Meeting held on June 27, 2014 for
carrying out the statutory audit.

The reports of the Auditors are given on Page
Nos. 98 and 161.

B
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Independent Auditors” Report

To
The Shareholders

Small Industries Development Bank of India

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial
Statement of Small Industries Development Bank
of India (“the Bank”) which comprises the Balance
Sheet as at 31%* March, 2015 and the Profit & Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Incorporated in these financial statements are
the returns of 8 Branches visited by us for the
purpose of audit and the same including Head
Office accounts for 77.82% of Advances, 92.24% of
Deposits, 100% of Borrowings, 70.39% of interest
income on Advances and 97.63% of interest expense
on Deposits and Borrowings. These branches have
been selected in consultation with the Bank. We have
not visited balance Branches of the Bank and have

reviewed their returns at the Head Office.

Management Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with Small Industries Development Bank
of India General Regulations, 2000, the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including
the applicable Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
applicable RBI guidelines as issued from time to
time. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records for safeguarding
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of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies,
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

and design, implementation and

maintenance of internal controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on whether the Bank has in place an
adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also include evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and

T
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the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Bank’s Management, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information
required by the Small Industries Development Bank
of India General Regulations, 2000 in the manner
so required to the extent required by the Bank and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of
affairs of the Bank as at 31°t March 2015,

b) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of
the profit of the Bank for the year ended 31st
March 2015,

¢) in the case of cash flow statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

We report that:

1.  The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
have been drawn up in accordance with the
requirements of the Regulation 14(i) of the
Small Industries Development Bank of India
General Regulations, 2000.

2. We have obtained all the

information and explanations, which to the best

sought and
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of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit and have found them
to be satisfactory.

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank so far
as appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with
Books of Accounts.

The transactions of the Bank, which have come
to our notice, have been within the powers of
the Bank.

The returns received from the offices and
branches of the Bank have been found adequate
for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial
statements dealt with by this report comply
with the applicable Accounting Standards.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.101569W

Darshit Doshi
Partner

Membership No. 133755

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 28, 2015

101



qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

TR oY e faenty dh
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
31 H4, 2015 T qa-97 / Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

TJEY - |/ Appendix - I
31 T, 2015 ST Jo-UF / Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015
®)

PEIRCR-RLIY sggfeat 31 WTd, 2015 31 T, 2014
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES SCHEDULES March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
i’g.ﬁ / Capital I 450,00,00,000 450,00,00,000
s, s S fafe it 9329,60,80,446 8042,27,93,107
Reserves, Surplus and Funds
ST / Deposits I 13446,81,67,994 17428,26,37,419
SYR / Borrowings v 30672,87,29,963 35618,03,16,388
31T AT TF T / \Y% 6833,05,66,558 6271,78,62,502
Other Liabilities and Provisions
ST T < / 122,68,70,161 -
Deferred Tax Liability
T / Total 60855,04,15,122 67810,36,09,416
et / ASSETS
ECTAlc) Y rfaerw / Cash and Bank Balances VI 1028,53,89,874 1927,72,27,801
1997 / Investments VII 2929,58,50,035 2947,11,49,485
0T TS 31 / Loans & Advances VIII 55342,59,38,200 61270,69,95,084
@R M&@AT / Fixed Assets IX 206,10,01,920 194,63,94,459
37 STFEMT / Other Assets X 1348,22,35,093 1470,18,42,587
TN / Total 60855,04,15,122 67810,36,09,416
SIS AT / Contingent Liabilities XI 7640,76,79,911 6519,35,87,953
Wﬂf @ Hifal / Significant Accounting Policies XV
@ fawforEr / Notes to Accounts XVI

I TGl g T T A ST %1/ The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

. STg o STCAEN / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T fedies @t ARt R & 3TJHN / As per our report of even date

Fd TR TS AR . . ArEr T, ERIGANCIE )
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.J. Lalwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
RECIRICICaTY T LT TF TTY

=

Chartered Accountants Executive Director

THFART : 1015695
FRN. : 101569W

Zf3ia 9ft / Darshit Doshi
HEIER / Partner
. 9. / M. No. : 133755

Country Head
(Frfirer e afdere)

(Corporate Accounts Vertical)

Chairman & Managing Director

. YM¥ET / R. Ramachandran
eI / Director

A 37ETe / Anil Agrawal

e, 7S 28,2015 1291 / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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31 TITGf, 2015 h! A I8 T ATY-BIT @I / Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

31 |Td, 2015 oh! UMW G4 ShT ATH-2T @Tdr

Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

®

ST / INCOME y 31 W, 2015 | 31 9T, 2014
SCHEDULES March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014
ST Te 927 / Interest and Discount X 5497,05,62,165 5618,98,41,648
3 3T / Other Income XIII 244,40,64,201 189,33,22,228
T / Total 5741,46,26,366 5808,31,63,876
=I9 /| EXPENDITURE
TST U9 foreiis 99T / Interest & Financial charges 3373,72,34,139 3337,09,12,099
GG &5 / Operating Expenses XV 449,51,48,008 309,37,57,137
e T 3ATeh e (197,01,25,162) 622,35,23,953
Provisions & Contingencies
IRT / Total 3626,22,56,985 4268,81,93,189
aar-g[é Y / Profit before Tax 2115,23,69,381 1539,49,70,687
- B AT G frh g, 23) 511,38,00,017 |  602,35,84,352
Provision for Income Tax (Refer note no. 23)
ST S T-HEST [(STI'I:@I')/%"ZI?IT] 186,72,66,607 (181,13,31,566)
Deferred Tax Adjustment [(Asset) / Liability]
Sh{-TTd &Y / Profit after Tax 1417,13,02,757 1118,27,17,901
ST &9 / Profit brought forward 35,92,46,808 33,09,21,258
el ATH/(FTHT) / Total Profit / (Loss) 1453,05,49,565 |  1151,36,39,159
faf=i== / Appropriations
[T STRFEfT # ST<RT / Transfer to General Reserve 1190,00,00,000 935,00,00,000
- ATUIR 1961 T °RT 36(1)(viii) & ST forey TR H =0T 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000
Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
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31 '*:I'Ff, 2015 h! AT I8 =T ATH-BI @ / Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

31 |TH, 2015 h! U G4 hT STH-21( @Tar

Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

®

fafIreT / Appropriation SCHEDULES &iﬂ’lzz%llg 1\341",1:;1[15}1,2200111

3T / Others

FrareT SAR-<TgT ST 3 STRoT 591,56,175 | (32,18,01,399)

Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve

W% et fAfYr & $T<R0T / Transfer to Staff Welfare Fund 2,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

I T AT / Dividend on Shares 112,50,00,000 112,50,00,000

T I T / Tax on Dividend 22,90,23,529 19,11,93,750

ST TTY-ET |y A 21wy 39,73,69,861 35,92,46,808

Surplus in Profit & Loss account carried forward

T / Total 1453,05,49,565 | 1151,36,39,159
fd YRR qa/faafad 315 / Basic/diluted Earning Per share 31.49 24.85

‘:I'Ek_cl'{”'f e Hffar / Significant Accounting Policies XV

waT fTwfomrr / Notes to Accounts XVI

Eig W‘T‘ TTY-TI WA HT AT 37 € 1 / The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.
I1E & 3TIIMIHR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

T e &1 AR R o 319N / As per our report of even date

Fd AT TS AR . S, e T,

For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.]. Lalwani N. Raman
RECIRSICICaNy RT-T9E

Chartered Accountants Country Head Executive Director
THFART : 101569TTT (Frfaa e afdere)

FRN. : 101569W (Corporate Accounts Vertical)

Tyl reft / Darshit Doshi
IPER / Partner
TH. 9. / M. No. : 133755
IS 3TET / Anil Agrawal
Hag, 7E 28,2015 3231 / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
31 1=ITac, 2015 &% qe -9 =) Wﬁ'ﬂf / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®

Yt Td 39amG / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 W, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 Wrd, 2014
March 31, 2014

Y / SCHEDULE I:

Y3t / Capital

(%) WTerehd USH / (a) Authorized Capital

- et AT ST R 10/- 9T TR & ST H 75,00,00,000 FFEET TET)
Equity Share Capital (75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each)

750,00,00,000

750,00,00,000

- JAfEE IR GST R 10/- 9fT TR HT ST F 25,00,00,000 TET SHHAN IRR)
Preference Share Capital (25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each)

250,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

(@) WY, Ifiew MY gehal UGS / (b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital :

- 3ot YT S R 10/- U7 ¥RX HT & H 45,00,00,000 T IRR)
Equity Share Capital (45,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each)

450,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

- 3TN IR TSit / Preference Share Capital

AT / Total

450,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

Y / SCHEDULE II:

3TITF&TﬁPJT R CIBME) ST faferat / Reserves, Surplus and Funds

&H) AT / A) Reserves

i) W S(TTAT / General Reserve

- 37 ¥¥ / Opening Balance

6438,31,73,555

5503,31,73,555

-3 % TR UREET / Additions during the year

1190,00,00,000

935,00,00,000

- a4 % TR ITANT / Utilisations during the year

- 3fd 919 / Closing Balance

7628,31,73,555

6438,31,73,555

i) faviw smfafaat / Specific Reserves

o) fra9T afATT / a) Investment Reserve

- 37 ¥ / Opening Balance

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

-3 % TR UREET / Additions during the year

- 3% & TR ITART / Utilisations during the year

- 3fd 919 / Closing Balance

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

Q@) IEeRT AFE, 19619 &RT 36 (1)(Viii) & sFar Fifila wa gty favw smfafat
b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1) (viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961

- AT/ Opening Balance

1197,00,00,000

1117,00,00,000

-9 o TR UfEET / Additions during the year

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

- 9 % I 39N / Utilisations during the year

- Bﬁl' o/ Closing Balance

1277,00,00,000

1197,00,00,000
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31 ":I'Ff, 2015 & qAT-I 0 W / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

. . 31 W, 2015 | 31 TS, 2014
usﬁqa S9aTd / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
) I amfarf%raf / ¢) Other Reserves
i) 9T STR-=QM@ ST / Investment Fluctuation Reserve
- AT I/ Opening Balance 46,64,91,955 78,82,93,354
- 99 % SR JR&Ed / Additions during the year 5,91,56,175 B
- 9 % TR ITANT / Utilisations during the year B 32,18,01,399
- = 919 / Closing Balance 52,56,48,130 46,64,91,955
(@) &Y - g9 W | AUV / B) Surplus in Profit and Loss account 39,73,69,861 35,92,46,808
@M fafe™t / ©) Funds
) g gfFad ffer / a) National Equity Fund
- WY/ Opening Balance 247,11,20,023 243,22,48,570
- 99 o TR yfaq/afaereT / Additions / Write back during the year 6,97,48,250 3,88,71,453
- 39 % SR ITAMT / Utilisations during the year - B
_ gﬁ.[ oY/ Closing Balance 254,08,68,273 247,11,20,023
@) TIh ShoduT (e / b) Staff Welfare Fund
- AT I/ Opening Balance 22,07,97,120 22,63,72,265
- 99 % SR IR&EA / Additions during the year 2,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
- a4 % SR ITAMT / Utilisations during the year 1,37,40,138 1,55,75,145
- 3f 91 / Closing Balance 22,70,56,982 22,07,97,120
M) 3/ ¢) Others = -
T / Total 9329,60,80,446 |  8042,27,93,107
39t / SCHEDULE III
ST / Deposits
) WEfir ST/ A) Fixed Deposits 1157,69,17,994 928,26,37,419
@) deni &/ B) From Banks
%) &, oY g g0 39 qué?f fafer o afata / a) Under MSME Refinance Fund 10289,12,50,000 15000,00,00,000
@) T, Y T T IAW Sif@d it Ff % 3 / b) Under MSME Risk Capital Fund | 1500,00,00,000 | 1000,00,00,000
M 3 - faeEl SR St & & A § / ¢) Others - From Foreign & Private Sector Banks E =
) T -5: g'rg-q'r STEEIST 3= BUE & 3Taq 500,00,00,000 500,00,00,000
d) Under MSME INDIA Opportunities Venture Fund
JU-INT (@) / Subtotal (B) 12289,12,50,000 16500,00,00,000
T / Total 13446,81,67,994 | 17428,26,37,419
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®)

Uit Ud g9aTd / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 W, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 9T, 2014
March 31, 2014

YT / SCHEDULE IV

ST / BORROWINGS

) WA § SUIRAT / Borrowings in India

1. YR fisTd s ¥ / From Reserve Bank of India i 5000,00,00,000
2. ¥RAd WER ¥ / From Government of India 3084,04,85,859 3161,79,92,413
(WA TR G AfHET X 2,172.80 S o 910 Tlea)
(including Bonds subscribed by GOI of ¥ 2,172.80 crore)
3. 9fvg tg fga=X / Bonds & Debentures 10443,60,00,000 13066,60,00,000
4. 3 EA ¥ / From Other Sources
- TSk 9 / Commercial Paper 6625,00,00,000 3650,00,00,000
- STHT JH10T 97 / Certificate of Deposits B B
- et ¥ a7 / Term Loans from Banks 887,79,89,157 905,17,89,999
- ety o7 3 AT / Term Money Borrowings - B
- 379 / Others 398,77,06,490 49,93,25,569
SU-IT / Subtotal (I) 21439,21,81,506 25833,51,07,981
1) WA ¥ ared SuTat / Borrowings outside India
@) W, Tﬂﬁ'v'-ﬁ' / (a) KFW, Germany 1207,58,56,266 1314,99,52,598
@) S m a,ﬁ-_mm W (STIgeRT) 4264,85,08,020 4277,84,46,222
(b) Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)
(1T) W’ 'aj:r / (C) IFAD, Rome 128,75,19,696 128,37,60,894
@) fagd®/ (d) World Bank 3160,27,74,690 3503,91,84,661
(€) 3/ (e) Others 472,18,89,785 559,38,64,032
SU-IRT / Subtotal (II) 9233,65,48,457 9784,52,08,407
TR / Total (I & II) 30672,87,29,963 35618,03,16,388
3G / SCHEDULE V
ST TIAG, & WL / Other Liabilities and Provisions:
e =T / Interest Accrued 301,45,42,566 362,34,55,627
3 (@Y Ffed) / Others (including provisions) 4637,67,58,975 4179,32,70,087
faceft 927 < IAX-TETE °q WU / Provisions for Exchange Rate Fluctuation 1443,14,85,860 1283,11,87,410
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31 ":I'Ff, 2015 & qAT-I 0 W / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

Uit U AT / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES Mﬁﬂﬁil P M3a1r£f1’, i
T SRR 3 fo A T ST T 315,37,55,628 315,37,55,628
Contingent provisions against standard assets
AT ATHIYT (ST W &Y qhed) 135,40,23,529 131,61,93,750
Proposed Dividend (including tax on dividend)
AT/ Total 6833,05,66,558 |  6271,78,62,502
smfeEt / ASSETS
St / SCHEDULE VI
ECT) ST dk A9 / Cash & Bank Balances
1. o o 9iR RE fod d s 6,89,676 7,05,464
Cash in Hand & Balances with Reserve Bank of India
2. 37 et § SITYW / Balances with Other Banks - -
(%) A W / (a) In India
i) =T @I ¥ / in current accounts 17,93,80,001 36,64,76,226
i) 37 &7 @l ¥ / in other deposit accounts 103,92,63,837 347,51,06,947
(@) 9RA & aT&X / (b) Outside India
i) W'@TH\T # / in current accounts 21,61,73,877 8,63,47,523
ii) 3T STHT @Il # / in other deposit accounts 884,98,82,483 1534,85,91,641
T / Total 1028,53,89,874 |  1927,72,27,801
S / SCHEDULE VII
39T / Investments
[UTEENT St UETERT / net of provisions]
) TSTRIET AT / A) Treasury operations
1. &% 3N T TWHRT Qﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁﬁ / Securities of Central and State Governments 917,02,67,985 378,83,78,095
2. St 37 famiia GLsit % 19T / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 23,95,12,137 23,95,12,137
3. Fopt 3T o geemafi & EluEc) 3 fea=rg 531,10,90,288 556,38,92,000

Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
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®

it Ue 3@ / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES M?f:::fl’, 22%112 M3a1r;1f1” 22%11‘;
4. S TS % Wi, 9T, ey iR e 247,81,38,842 250,24,16,342
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
5. fcarary faer 3’*[“\{11? ASHT / Short Term Bills Rediscounting Scheme = -
6. 37 / Others 325,00,00,000 825,44,66,583
IY-IANT () / Subtotal (A) 2044,90,09,252 2034,86,65,157
@) =™ URATer / B) Business Operations
1. ot 3T fawia Teemsil & ¥R / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 60,92,61,440 62,56,61,440
2. ¥ ue forer et & wivew i fede 26,77,312 26,77,312
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
3. aireifies SR % Wi, TR, aveg i e 502,26,43,504 607,02,49,879
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
4. TETES TS # f9997 / Investment in Subsidiaries 1,09,98,740 1,04,98,800
5. 379 / Others 320,12,59,787 241,33,96,897
Y- (&) / Subtotal (B) 884,68,40,783 912,24,84,328
N (+E) / Total (A+B) 2929,58,50,035 2947,11,49,485
St / SCHEDULE VIII
FUT UE U9 / Loans & Advances
[UTEren ok a1g / Net of Provisions]
h) ﬁmﬁﬁa‘«aﬁg‘vﬁv/ A) Refinance to
- e g faxiia G / Banks and Financial Institutions 38098,83,05,725 40383,09,61,127
- 3777 a7 M / Micro Finance Institutions 1602,98,74,150 1169,52,05,368
- 4% 3 faeitg St / NBEC 4054,29,66,100 |  4749,13,22,100
- foeit st g9 / Bills Rediscounted - 2956,00,00,000
- 3 (§ET¥ Herd) / Others (Resource Support) - -
SU-FNT (&) / Subtotal (A) 43756,11,45,975 | 49257,74,88,595
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®)

Uit Ud <FaId / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 WT, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 WT, 2014
March 31, 2014

W) WY FEUT/ B) Direct Loans

- %07 Td M / Loans and Advances 9501,86,05,887 9144,11,95,442
- JT2 9 ASHT / Receivable Finance Scheme 2082,89,98,468 2841,83,77,451
- YT M fSet / Bills Discounted 1,71,87,870 26,99,33,596
S4-40T (@) / Subtotal (B) 11586,47,92,225 |  12012,95,06,489
AT (@) / Total (A+B) 55342,50,38,200 |  61270,69,95,084
It / SCHEDULE IX
feorr enfeat / Fixed Assets
[Teag™ ueTeh / Net of Depreciation]
1. 9ET / Premises 204,62,60,684 192,70,47,584
2. 3 / Others 1,47,41,236 1,93,46,875
AT / Total 206,10,01,920 194,63,94,459
SIEEt / SCHEDULE X
3= (T / Other Assets:
Iqferd &7 / Accrued Interest 674,53,99,425 704,74,90,615
AT T (TN % a1E) / Advance Tax (Net of provision) 193,41,63,275 103,40,26,063
I 156,05,16,130 540,89,67,745
Others
=7 519 1 % ag @ § T/l ST T g/ Expenditure to the extent not written off 324,21,56,263 121,13,58,164
ART / Total 1348,22,35,093 1470,18,42,587
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31 1=ITac, 2015 &% qe -9 =) Wﬁ'ﬂf / Schedules to Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

Yt Td 39amG / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 Wrd, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 Wrd, 2014
March 31, 2014

YT / SCHEDULE XI

Teh{@Ieh JAE / Contingent Liabilities

i)

dor 9T F T, T T e W T R

Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts

212,99,95,882

135,28,35,372

ii)

TRfEE / arRE-TE & FeAEwy

On account of Guarantees / Letters of Credit

134,78,28,441

337,45,25,203

iif)

e WieersT & woEEy

On account of Forward Contracts

26,40,40,369

52,69,03,816

TR Ufqasarsti & Faasy

On account of Underwriting Commitments

3TfYTer T ¥ ForaT ¥R, feaeri W 7wt 7 TR F Forawy

On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, debentures

vi)

31 7e, f5er fofu deF @1 ST <IaT ©

Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable (derivatives contracts etc.)

7266,58,15,219

5993,93,23,562

AT / Total

7640,76,79,911

6519,35,87,953
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®)

31 9, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 9T, 2014
March 31, 2014

St / SCHEDULE XII

= 3T agT / Interest and Discount

1. %O, ¥l S foet W At ug g

Interest and Discount on Loans, Advances and Bills 5157,85,57,270 5383,48,58,138
2. frder / 9% A9 W 37 / Income on Investments / Bank balances 339,20,04,895 235,49,83,510
T / Total 5497,05,62,165 5618,98,41,648
St / SCHEDULE XIII
3T 3T / Other Income:
1. 3P 3R FRAR 7k / Upfront and Processing Fees 31,29,45,422 36,76,63,903
2. HEEH 3 T / Commission and Brokerage 2,48,91,574 2,09,46,605
3. el =t farsht & @19 / Profit on sale of Investments 159,19,75,700 80,65,45,243
4. TR TEISH! / WEANT e § A, S o SR A 3
Income earned by way of dividends etc. from Subsidiaries / Associates 3,74,97,750 3,74,97,750
5. foet aut & T BT U4 / Provision of Earlier Years written Back - -
6. 3T (WeH : fauwlt T. 14) / Others (Refer note no. 14) 47,67,53,755 66,06,68,727
AT / Total 244,40,64,201 189,33,22,228
ST / SCHEDULE XIV
gfare =& / Operating Expenses:
FHHARET o AT fEhT T e oK qraum
Payments to and provisions for employees 321,64,08,021 190,24,08,098
feRTaT, ST 3T fasTeft / Rent Taxes and Lighting 19,40,75,820 16,62,40,563
7 T G-I / Printing & Stationery 80,76,678 91,79,5%7%
IERILE 3 TG / Advertisement and Publicity 3,51,34,259 2,76,13,901
ok T Fufa H b RER /afTe / Depreciation / Amortisation on Bank’s Property 13,55,74,500 11,82,74,218
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®)

31 9T, 2015 31 W, 2014

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

feeTet 1 ®IE, W T =T / Directors’ fees allowances and expenses 52,15,034 46,69,019
TGRS T B / Auditor’s Fees 59,65,360 44,30,761
fafer 79X / Law Charges 1,68,29,194 1,26,28,111
TTeh, PRAT, UM, 3T(E / Postage Courier, Telephones etc 30,93,964 33,28,005
HIH a‘ﬁT {@EME / Repairs and maintenance 9,21,18,469 9,73,95,929
dMT / Insurance 47,74,952 44,51,363
HSETHTEE I ¥R / Contribution to CGTMSE 18,74,75,000 18,74,75,000
3T T / Other Expenditure 59,04,06,757 55,56,62,592
=T / Total 449,51,48,008 309,37,57,137
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1.

2.

ST XV -
TEvaYUl Gieh ~tfaat

TAT T & ST

facita foawor o+t Aol o ¥ wRda @Y
S a9 stfufEm, 1989, WRdE e
SEER T g AT S S A SR
e e F vEfaa TEfat % SHTed ¥ quR
fopT T €| ST qe arren Sferfad T w1, fad
faeror faefaes @Fa USfa % Sidd ITEd
YR | T9- T MU €1 Sk gRT AN H W
ST T e 3 i w5 TE R e
gl

ST AT START

faxita faeror IR & & fou yeem @ euferd
?aT € foF 9% U@ ofdhe 3R oAM HY, S
foeitar foraor &t i@ & SnfeEt i T ot
fard &t T TR, TS <HaTSll % TeheA
3 R =t syafy & T 3R o Y KU &t
¢ YT T Ffa A 7 | aTdfass IRem 3%
ST ¥ fo € WeRd ® | o STAET A fRe
UMY ST YR ey oem Aee ol sTaere
& e ferar ST € |

T freior

&) A=

i. Tifvee &S 9igd ST ST ol U= 3TMHT
R femme ¥ fomn @ B, fgam 39 "t o,
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A)

SCHEDULE XV - SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The been
prepared to comply in all material respects
with the Small Industries Development
Bank of India Act, 1989, prudential norms
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India,
applicable Accounting Standards issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and practices prevailing in the
Banking Industry. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical
cost convention on an accrual basis, unless
otherwise stated. The accounting policies
that are applied by the Bank, are consistent
with those used in the previous year.

financial statements have

Use of Estimates :

The preparation of financial statements
requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
of assets and liabilities, the
contingent liabilities on
the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses reported.
Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any
estimates is recognised
with the requirements of the respective
accounting standard

amounts
disclosure of

during the period

revision to accounting
in accordance

REVENUE RECOGNITION

INCOME :

i. Interest income including penal



ii.

iii.

1v.

Vi.
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e YR fisd S & AMCSl % STER
ST 3AT/3TeaT qore  fohe/faa gepr
qoa i aRE ol 90 foT ¥ stfurer wm
¥ T T T w0 ! @ e ufvy/fae faw
U7 o G H A ol qRdraeh W o
YR R feue & fomr mr g1 R fomees
TaRTl WX 31T T BISHT AT W A T
T T MR W e # femm w7

AT S T oG H o, b ®T H
afa wRe Rod o & feenfeet &
ITER TG qT Sk 1 3T g &
ITTER T SR 7 T S 37T
JIEE § TEe < T 7

foclt ol YATR/gAYATE T STET FHOTY qe
OIS T % Hay § A FgT ORT
faedl =t "ae &% oTgER giasia
feam mam 2

e (FoTeer) ST o Tay # aerasar
IR, S GS/gAd ®OT GeEdr WoHa
TUR 3 Tged! o ol ST SUX T
feamar ¥ foram a2

fieifter ufasmi ofiv faxie weemed #
TR IR I ATHIRT o1 St & TET 3T
HHET TR

3T geit MRl T o o7 agel! U’ |
feqma ¥ form mam 7 1

vii. TR-freeer onfEat ot agelt 1 frefafed

w0 O fafrefsa fear mr g

ii.

iii.

iv.

V1.

Vii.

interest is accounted for on accrual
basis, except where interest and /
or installment of principal / bills
repayment is due for more than 90
days as on the date of Balance Sheet
as per RBI norms. Interest in respect
of such loan accounts and receivable /
bills finance is taken credit on actual
receipt basis. Interest income from
Investments is
accrual basis, except income on non
performing investments.

accounted for on

Income in the Profit and Loss Account
is shown gross i.e. before provisions
as per RBI guidelines and other
provisions as per Bank’s internal
policy.

Discount received in respect of bills
discounted / rediscounted and on
Certificate of Deposit and Commercial
Papers is apportioned over the period
of usance of the instruments.

Commitment charges, service charges
on seed capital / soft loan assistance
and royalty income are accounted for
on accrual basis in respect of standard
(performing) assets

Dividend on shares held in industrial
concerns and financial institutions is
recognised as income when realized.

Income from Venture Capital funds
are accounted on realisation basis.

Recovery in non-performing assets
(NPA) is to be appropriated in the
following order :
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Viii.

ix.

o) =3I

ii.

(@) R-froees onfe 89 &t i d%
fae =t

(@) qerud

(M) N 3R JHR

@) = 3R

(8.) s =TT

T YT T 0T 3T I T faeht ¥
AfyeT/=T =1 faet & g9 feae # foaan
TR

frasT =t faeet o oy a1 w1 fodt o ot
& fraun =t faeel § @y 9 gifT & ary-
T o § o ST W ® | qenfy *aftuererr
qe aiia’” goft o fan ot fashl ®| oy
o A W, GHged TR T it STRfEd @
¥ fafitsm o feam T 2

forerre =/ &1 Bigeht Wt o 3T
IR I fewra § faw o &) foerq =19 &1
e YR T fewme & foar T 2 |

SR fU MU S o it W W
IZ T SIS IR AT T HT HAE &
STIER uftEnfud T fear mar 7 afve S
T Gl T T AULT T HATG o STTAR
feifed T e w7 |

3. fmawr
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WRdg fod % % Hiser feenfree W
IR, Tt fraer dfevmr w1 aftgear
Tk o’ ““fashl ¥Q SUeTed’” qAT =AM
®q WA’ &t gfow # faanfSia &< fear o

B)

Viii.

iX.

a) overdue interest upto the date of
NPA,

b) principal,
c) cost & charges,
d) interest and

e) penal interest.

Gain/loss on sale of loans and
advances through direct assignment is

recognized at the time of sale.

Profit or loss on sale of investment:
Profit or loss on sale of investments in
any category is taken to profit and loss
account. However, in case of profit
on sale of investments under “Held
to Maturity” category an equivalent
amount is appropriated to Capital
Reserves Account.

EXPENDITURE :

i.

ii.

All expenditure are accounted for on
except
Expenditure which is accounted for on

accrual basis Development

cash basis.

Discount on Bonds and Commercial

papers

the tenure of Bonds and Commercial

issued are amortized over

Paper. The expenses relating to issue
of Bonds are amortized over the
tenure of the Bonds.

INVESTMENTS

i.

In terms of extant guidelines of the
Reserve Bank of India, the entire
categorised
“Available

investment portfolio is
as “Held to Maturity”,
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2| frav & gedie wRdE o s &
feanfadelt o orgER foham T 7| g Joit
% frae o g frefafed 9 # offgd
fEa e

. HLhRT ufayfaar,

g, I IrgHited wfayfea,

T. I,

¥, fee=x aur afve,

T e G / T ST 31T

T I @ W, WEITd w3 T,

STHT JHT0T 95 377(S)

Ufiueradr deh e

IRueradT Tk S T8 o 339 ¥ fohy Tu
frae &1 “uftugear 9w’ vt &
Cruciecikici SR RceN el ERcIU
W AT T R, T 9 Sifhd T ¥
31feer 7 71| TET B W St bt aftgeedn
T 9 syafy H uftenfud T fear T 7
M 9Ot o ST Weweh Ul /W
3UsHAT # v & g § wH, Sl @i
BIEHT, =7 Tk AT oF a9 H 3Te-
3TET eI fehalr T § |

MR &g aTid

A Hed/TST < qRad T & 3Tt
TC AMR & & Ievd § fopg o fawm
T UK ' wiRa’’ guft # @ e e
39 o o ol o 99 ®9 § [IHeAT
foran T % R froe qeafe/qorm™ &
AN SR T wEr ¥ e # for

(@)

(b)

for Sale” and “Held for Trading”.
Investments are valued in accordance
with RBI guidelines. The investments
category are further

under each

classified as:

a. Government Securities,

b.  Other approved securities,

c.  Shares,

d. Debentures & Bonds,

e. Subsidiaries / joint ventures and
f. Others  (Commercial Paper,

Mutual Fund Units, Certificate of
Deposits etc.)

Held to Maturity:

Investments  acquired  with  the
intention to hold till maturity are
categorized under Held to Maturity.
Such
acquisition cost unless it is more
than the face value, in which case the
premium is amortized over the period
remaining to maturity. Diminution,
other than temporary, in the value
of investments in

investments are carried at

subsidiaries/
joint ventures under this category

is provided for each investment
individually.

Held for Trading :

Investments  acquired  with the

intention to trade by taking advantage
of the short-term price/interest rate
movements are categorized under
Held for Trading. The investments in

this category are revalued as a whole
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T STET- 3T fEhul o TRl qoT H qeged
ftad &Y feam 7 |

(M) faeht &g SueTer

3IAE < AT o ST 7 3T aret e
w1 “foht ¥ ST’ Soft # T@T W B
TG Ut % ST STT-TAT fERUl T
TR R T § R I anffeR<or §
¥ gt & off i gu fraer qousT
o SR T o ® feww ¥ fomn e 2
fedt ot affercor o ofaia free qedafs
T TSN HT & T 71 - T
ferdl o =t qou § qRead /1 foar
2|

ii o fesw/ats/IER AT & mgfa &
TN T ¥, 9 W0 ST M WA

T fadehyul AT & o7 7
iii T Y @ i fea @ Tefa
g fruffea =t 7 2 |
iv dS S AN % ofavd sfenfeR
yfassTl # e § R Fown o gay H
QU SrereT feRam T B
fadeft gar Yeaaer

facelt g7 SoeRrl i or@r dfedl § gatud
faeeft g & ==t foar mm ?1 faeeit uw
THIER!I T AQHT YRAT TS AGHR
TM AT 9 o@ed OFeh  (TE)-11 &
TER e T 7 |
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and net appreciation /depreciation is
recognized in the profit & loss account,
with corresponding change in the book
value of the individual scrips.

(c) Available for Sale :

Investments which do not fall
within the above two categories
are categorized under Available for
Sale. The individual scrip wunder
this category are revalued and
net depreciation under any of the
classification mentioned above
is recognized in the profit & loss
account. Net appreciation under any
classification is ignored. The book value
of individual scrip is not changed.

ii ~ The debentures / bonds / shares
deemed to be in the nature of
advance, are subject to the usual
prudential norms applicable to
loans & advances.

iii  Cost of investments is determined on
the weighted average cost method.

iv. In respect of  unquoted
investments in industrial concerns
under Seed Capital Scheme, full
provision has been made.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in the books of account in respective
foreign  currencies. = Accounting  for
transactions involving foreign exchange
is done in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS)-11 issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India:
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1. onfeaEr 3T SFarstl &l au & 3id § Y
focelt w&1 = W g eifugfad eifaw
o & ER wRafe foar @ 7|

2. 3 3R = T IrEafaeh [Gera/sha & SIRY
e 3fatret W afafaa fear mr ® 3
Y IR T o H eguR fewma # fon
TR

3. fogeh g1 Sifem & weed ®g faoeft 9=
FO-FET W AU IR Hl VR
THR o WHIT ¥ @il T T 99 @1 o
USSR fehte forar Srem & |

4. IO GHAGER! & Gy K I g Ko
Y& & feen-fde & ogER T @)

oTGIoh ohT STTHROT el & |

et

o ot fadelt §Hr SEATSt % wmE w o
A 1 FA YHAGERT S SaT-THT AT
T fafm, ¥ FaeR w1 7| WRAE e S
& feun FTTER a9 % 2EE ¥ AU T SH
e THAERT ! ITIF YR W fewma & feran
ST ® 1 STATUT FYAT AT W GATER
ITFl T IR IS ! o 07 &t TG
T i feman mam 2

UT 3T AW

1. ST, 37l FOT QeI 3T Werar Wit
H 3T TYA RHle o MUR T A9,
SIS, W X T onfwE % w9 H
e forar T €1 NfEEr & fo amaem
TR s dop gRT SR feemyel At #
fafed At & UK fomam T 2 |

1. Assets and Liabilities are translated at
the closing rates notified by FEDAI at
the year end.

2. Income and Expenses are translated at
monthly intervals through actual sale/
purchase and recognized in the profit
and loss account accordingly.

3. The revaluation difference on foreign
currency LoC is adjusted and recorded
in a special account opened and
maintained, in consultation with GOI
for managing exchange risk.

4. The Bank follows hedge accounting
in respect of derivative transactions as
per RBI guidelines.

DERIVATIVES

The Bank presently deals in currency
derivatives viz.,, Cross Currency Interest
Rate swaps for hedging its foreign currency
liabilities. Based on RBI guidelines, the above
derivatives undertaken for hedging purposes
are accounted on an accrual basis. Contingent
Liabilities on account of derivative contracts
at contracted rupee amount are reported on
the Balance Sheet date.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

1. Assets representing loan and other
assistance portfolios are classified
based on record of recovery as
Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and
Loss Assets. Provision is made for
assets, as per the norms in accordance
with the prudential norms issued by
the Reserve Bank of India.
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2. o9 W ¥ Sfufea eifim, W-femes
el o foau foru T orgu ST HETRT
o

3. AFe NSl & WY B W WauN
T fod d% & fewnfRei & orEr
fohT T |

4. I WEUH YRdE o & foem e
T 31 ITAT & AT T R

7. HOUE

(i)

(if)

(iii)
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F Tt =T F gAuE Y SR R
F, T AT F A SR HY
T ST SR o STER ST
TfeeRTRAT ST 37T St ST aTett GTfera T
% YR T FH ST B |

T AT, T i H-ATT 3T T
AGIHA 3T o e S o o GHATIe
3R qead auf & FEATRI & JeAadT o
TS T ST T SR HT B MO
qeTT S ARG ek STfUfam a7erer JUg
Y F srfufafad FT-sA T HT H
& YT T T TE 2|

AT X AT haed 3T HHT qH
fruffca =1 ¢ %, f59 90 9% 7w 9gfaa
fgarm ¢ fo& vl ¥ w@iw @A
I Brnt, foraer ufq U@ emefa Y v
IgeA & Gehdt 71 qdadt aut w1 ATl
STRAFTA STMIETT BT IH AT Tk [T
3T frufeor fover T €, o9 O o T®
Tgfaa fagm ® fF afowr & w@fm a%-
A 3 BT, foraes ufdq U sTRUfia &}
TRt T I & ol 2 |

2. Advances stated in the Balance Sheet
are net of provisions made for Non
performing assets.

3. General provision on Standard Assets
is made as per RBI guidelines.

4. Floating provision is made and
utilized as per RBI guidelines

TAXATION

(i)

(ii)

Tax expense comprises both current

tax and deferred taxes. Current

income tax 1is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with Income

Tax Act.

Deferred income taxes reflects the
impact of the current year timing
differences between taxable income
and accounting income for the year
and reversal of timing differences of
earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

(iii) Deferred tax assets are recognized only

to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable
against
which such deferred tax assets can
be realised. Unrecognized deferred
assets of earlier years are re-assessed
and recognized to the extent that it
has become reasonably certain that
future taxable income will be available
against which such deferred tax assets
can be realised.

income will be available
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IR GIETUL

e el &1 St/ R-dfr faxia sl &
foRme RIS T g1 S UrE--SHOT
TRT G € 1 39 FhR o A Yoagr
f1aer % w9 | aiffera fohT w0 € o frawr &
IETT & YR T IThT T (R0 AN 7q
wfia/facha ¥ ST & ®9 AT ST 7

o fuelr WY AT & fHd ged, oY u
Ty SgEl & SRR e guE @l § |
Tq WY GAIeYM YoaeRl o1 o 5T ‘AT &

® H orEifehd faar STar |

do Y gEIeY R w0 fm w fawht
AT B I AHA! H S 3 w-oAl
T S M FOT S ST KT JhTd HAT S
TEAT § G739 T HOT T A W AT S
T THER BT ¢ | SN | 0T & gy o
fogd o YR W WY THICYH oF STad a=t T8
et o1 S it afedt & feu ¥ frermar fea
ST B | b a5 07 o ®q H off FOT g Ham
T % IR KO YoM fHU S AT T I
R fohT S o ¥y # TTH 29, TEYM,

AHEF AW N IHweE e’ &

ITIHR IUGTH Tk fehaT ST 2 |

T T X0 TS ATHT 9T 379 AT hI Fafafed
0 U9 ST oF Sftaerral o TfER fewe #
GRIESIEGR

SECURITISATION

The Bank purchases credit rated Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Asset
pools from Banks / Non Banking Finance
Companies by way of pass- through
certificates issued by the Special Purpose
Vehicle. Such securitisation transactions
are classified as Investments under Held
for Trading / Available For Sale category
depending upon the investment objective.

The Bank purchases credit rated pool of
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
assets under bilateral direct assignment.
Such direct assignment transactions are
accounted for as ‘advances’ by the Bank.

The Bank enters into sale of Loans &
Advances through direct assignment.
In most of the cases, the Bank continues
to service the Loans & Advances sold
under these transactions and is entitled
to the Residual interest on the Loans &
Advances sold. Assets sold under direct
assignment are derecognised in the books
of the Bank based on the principle of
surrender of control over the assets. The
Bank also provides credit enhancement
in the form of letter of commitment. In
respect of credit enhancements provided
or recourse obligations accepted by the
Bank, appropriate disclosure is made
in accordance with AS 29, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets.

The residual income on the Loans &
Advances sold is being recognised over the
life of the underlying Loans & Advances.
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10.

<h]

af@ gafimtor shuf (g s ) w5 feia
et =t forsit

(i)

(ii)

R froqreeh et 1 facht Tehe MU W
37T gfayfa M (TEeTR) # femT amum
T & S 81 THIIR YR | fowht &
Ame H, faehl ufdwer STUar STk WWT &l
gfayfa M o &7 F 39T gwem S ¢ |

e & ot fosh! ot a2t qoo (7t et
T § ¥ ¢IRd J@y™ e T O Je9) 9
HE T HT S 7, AT FH BT AT-FI @
% T foRar ST 7 | At fasnt 7o faa w6t
T § e ®, A1 I SE e
yfgafcd el faar ST €, afcsr ST ST
3 W-fromes enfert &t fashl & S
iR I 5 e o T 2

W% o fearet uraeam
Yaragia T9Ta oTH

(i)

(ii)
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afgw fafy % 30 TR ST W o
fruffea st A © 3 Se foen T
3TEH I & oY AR T @ W AR
AT

Tt SEar T o < i ameRr
AT & I o7 Sepiieter HHART @Y,

S9- giaqRka suiefaar, Yt oge
fafercar @mw, gadt fortrn fama enfe &t
JTTT Tk STHiToheh HeAieh oh SR T 8T
forir o & ofd ® foram Sren ®, S A

FhTE STHT Tl IT 3R grar 2 |

10.

Al

SALE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
TO ASSET RECONSTRUCTION
COMPANIES (ARCs):

(i)

(if)

The sale of NPA’s is on cash basis or
investment in Security Receipt (SR)
basis. In case of sale on SR basis, the sale
consideration or part thereof is treated as
investment in the form of SRs.

The assets if sold at a price below the
Net Book Value (NBV) (i.e. book value
less provisions held), the shortfall is
debited to the Profit & Loss A/c. In
case the sale value being higher than
NBV, the excess provision held is
not reversed but utilized to meet the
Shortfall/ Loss on account of sale of
other non-performing assets.

PROVISIONING FOR STAFF BENEFITS

Post retirement benefits:

(i)

defined
contribution scheme administered by

Provident Fund is a

the Bank and the contributions are
charged to the Profit & Loss Account
of the year.

(ii) Gratuity liability and Pension liability

are defined benefit obligations and
other long term employee benefits like
compensated absences, post retirement
medical benefits, leave fare concession
etc. are provided for on the basis of an
actuarial valuation made at the end
of each financial year based on the
projected unit credit method.
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(iii) & YA Fe fAfga Sivem et A
21 F€ ST HHEINET | A €, S 1 fegaw
2011 o1 ST §1E Seh 1 Yol | T & | b
7d-frertfta T w fafga sferem e 7 o
S o <faed 3o g ofvem a% Wit
T T STCH ATH-TI T T Bem 2 |

(iv) dHifwes @/ T aTd-g1 o |
T fohT S0 ® o STRyfTa &t fohu S
gl

(v) WE3s FarfEf aem & sidia fey g
A T o 5 ad e ®, SH e &
AT G H 3Y Jofa foham S €|

@] 9aT - Hifcleh (STEUTATET) e

STeqafer el ¥ I AT T fraior ie-agn
YR W TIAT 7 S IF Far 3fafy & Goyy §
T 7, fSTaer SRor FHEt T Y $T gheR
AR |

11. fer snfe= it g™

%) feR nfea ane ¥ ¥ g™ HeTHt avie
T 7
@) T ¥ & AU qeg™ & JaUE, GeienoT
1 fafer 1 off T W, Feaq foan T e
() PR R fFoeR: dF & w@iffa
et T - 100 FfaT &1 T |
(ii) FFIL TA HHIL FHGF - 100
yfeRTd ot ST H
(i) e-IIBIGd T T W - 5
yferd ot ST 9

B]

11.

(iii) New Pension Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme and is applicable
to employees who have joined bank
on or after Dec 1, 2011. Bank pays
fixed contribution at pre determined
rate and the obligation of the Bank is
limited to such fixed contribution. The
contribution is charged to Profit &
Loss Account.

(iv) Actuarial gains/losses are immediately
taken to the profit and loss account
and are not deferred.

(v) Payments made under the Voluntary
Retirement Scheme are charged to the
Profit & Loss account in the year of
expenses incurred.

Benefits (Short — term) while in service

Liability on account of Short term benefits
are determined on an undiscounted basis
and recognised over the period of service,
which entitles the employees to such benefits.

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

a) Fixed Assets are shown at cost less
depreciation.

b) Depreciation for the full year,
irrespective of date of capitalization, is
provided on :

(i) Furniture and fixture : For assets

owned by Bank @ 100 percent
(i) Computer and
Software @ 100 percent

Computer

(iii) Building @ 5 percent on WDV
basis
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12.

13.

14.

(iv) T TR % % @i arel
AT - IR IET qoF T5d T - 50
gfcrerd ot e

(v) HAX &R - e @ ousfa - 50
gfereTd o X 9

M) TG & e W I T TEHH T
9 o fow g1 © fobeg farshy/foem & af &
T g™ et g

W) UgTETRA i o7 IREIHA Uz T Ty Wi
feman ST € |

MR Ieh dTATell B9 Waa T Sehfaien
et

ST fUSelt TSl o hoRa® T His aanH el
ST €, WA o o 1 GHE el € @R
TifeE i Ui o fawg o fagea stgam foar s
bl ©, T 0T H AT HWT TR STAA B
T U 53 S € | foxita faaror # smenfws
afeEt &1 9 @ fuiRor gar €, T & wehed |
TR A3 ¥ MG T A S 3K
e T § ST ke BT € e faeRr qer
T YT § fou o 7

3L Ud |iowet
TIHR TAT 3T TSl § A 3TIaM T& afedet
T TG, IR H I1GH o TR R ST € |

qRETTd ugt

7T TaEt R &, yaE & fau 99 g9 W,
Y UG BT @A W GH / 3 F ®Y H <y
ST 2 |
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12.

13.

14.

(iv) Electrical Installations: For assets
owned by Bank @ 50 percent on
WDV basis.

(v) Motor Car - Straight Line Method
@ 50 percent.

c) Depreciation on additions is provided
for full year and no depreciation is
provided in the year of sale/disposal.

d) Leasehold land is amortised over the
period of lease.

PROVISION FOR CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS.

Provisions involving substantial degree of
estimation in measurement are recognized
when there is a present obligation as a
result of past events, it is probable that
there will be an outflow of resources and
a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Contingent
Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed
in the Contingent
liabilities are not provided for and are
disclosed in the balance sheet and details
given by way of Schedule to the Balance
Sheet.

financial statements.

GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Grants and subsidies from the Government
and other agencies are accounted as per the
terms and conditions of the agreement.

OPERATING LEASE

Lease rentals are recognized as an expense/
income in the Profit and Loss Account as
they become due for payments.
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15. STl <Al g1

gcdeh qor-ua ot fafyr s st =t v@-tEme
TRt &t gier &t St 8, 9 STfter o 9wl
HROT & YN T fordl TS &7 Fehe of o

frefafad a1 frefoT fwar s g |

3)  3TASer BT, IfC IS =T, =Y STUTad JTeem,
3TeraT

q)  udadf safy ¥ fafera srei, afe &g @,
ERCRIRER CIERERE I

Ffe ferdl STfeT bl TE-T@Te TR agel I iRy
g arfersk Bt © T SrSioR @i b freifeor fomen
ST R |

15.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The carrying amounts of assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date, if
there is any indication of impairment based

on internal/external factors, to recognize,

a) the provision for impairment loss, if
any required; or

b) the
impairment loss recognized in the
previous periods.

reversal, if any, required for

Impairment loss is recognized when
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds

recoverable amount.
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®)

31 W, 2015

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2014
31 W, 2014

Yt / SCHEDULE XVI -
T st fewfurai / NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1

I [V & Seifiat & sinia atve 9 feawn % freforaa wfier &
‘Bonds and Debentures’ under Borrowings in schedule IV
includes the following :

) Ffqyfafed SiS / a) Unsecured Bonds

10443,60,00,000

13066,60,00,000

ST V ¥ =T AT ST Wt o Sia ‘e
‘Others’ under Other Liabilities and Provisions in schedule V
include the following :

o) foeHt stemar werrr MY / a) SIDBI Disability Assistance Fund

2,54,07,762

2,54,46,152

W) foedt Wisss @ dsmT /

foxita o 2015 & st fafear gemEar A
b) SIDBI Voluntary Health Scheme /
Medical Assistance Scheme implemented in FY 2015

19,61,99,634

11,12,62,156

TG X T 31 Wl o Sl ‘=, et 9o 98 Wi TE
Tt T’ W Freferfiga gnfier @

“Expenditure to the extent not written off” under Other Assets
in schedule X includes the following;:

)  ITNENE TIITEE (TACIST) F WRA WHR & avel 7 0T W R
a) Premium on transfer of RBI NIC(LTO) to Gol Bonds

45,23,25,904

51,69,43,890

T) AW w9 § o7e7 fopam T Wy - AT 0

b) Discount paid in Advance - Commercial Paper

275,30,66,324

63,71,54,031

M) WY aUE SR A T AT

c) Expenditure on Issuance of Unsecured Bonds

3,67,64,035

5,72,60,243

SIS & T 9 / Interest and Financial Charges

%) IYRAl 7 =T / a) Interest on Borrowings

1885,99,73,478

1923,30,15,964

) ST IT TS / b) Interest on Deposits

974,69,49,906

1053,18,29,112

) fowi@ 99T / ¢) Financial Charges

513,03,10,755

360,60,67,023

AT / Total

3373,72,34,139

3337,09,12,099

U gsft @a W) fenfed foey S % fa v dfeerst
g TRT (e A w1 BEH?)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

Capital Account not provided for (net of advance paid)

1,62,64,651

3,16,59,234
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TRER # IR SAPERT ¥ wafya 1w Tivmr % 9,21,17,099 (@@e aw - ¥ 22,26,552) T4 SswATHA TS w1 § Gafd
% 83,76,726 (et 9 - ¥ 7,99,28,334) WMAA T |

Premises include advances towards acquisition of Premises ¥ 9,21,17,099 (Previous Year - X 22,26,552) and Capital
Work in Progress X 83,76,726 (Previous Year - X 7,99,28,334).

ST TaTHe ISR TS (STEeT) (S T8el ST Soh 36 SIS ShISTIRY -SISISTEE! o 19 § ST STl 2m)
Y FOT N V F T i 30 fafer STt 39 & faeh gE SUR % Tey ¥ YR TWHR o WY Heud I b STIHR
fafi <X Sar-weme ffy Eamuwus) 9isa &t 7T € @ S faevh g7 San-wge arRfafa ffy & wnfier fovar mr @ | faeeh
T | ITR-FGE & HRUT TaAEE @I H 37T T 328,82,93,718 & TR (I3 a9 - T 462,85,94,913) Tl WRA WHK
ITAfT o e fafme o SAR-vg fAfy § wHwEis R T ® | A wfas ¥ se gen, O ffe wn # R WeR &
FeTTER qumEeH o smom | afe iy & srfaeiy ergaf Tear ©, A $UhT T6T YR YR & foHar s |

In respect of foreign currency borrowings of JPY 30 billion under Line V from Japan International Cooperation
Agency (JICA) (previously known as Japan Bank of International Cooperation-JBIC), Exchange Rate Fluctuation
Fund (ERFF) has been created as per terms agreed with Government of India (GOI) and included in Foreign
Currency Fluctuation Reserve Fund. The difference on account of exchange fluctuation arising on principal
account amounting to I 328,82,93,718 (Previous Year - X 462,85,94,913) has been netted off against ERFF
as permitted by the Government of India. Adjustment to the Fund Account, if necessary, will be made as per
directions of Government of India in future. If the balance in the Fund is insufficient, the claim will be on
Government of India.

SITESRT FOT IV 3 STIT T TR T I T 392,47,99,946 (Tt o - T 436,08,88,828) i SHRT ! Jorud H TG
V- W'ﬁaﬁmmwﬁaﬁtﬁﬁmw% aﬁﬁw%mﬁamﬁwaﬁ?ﬁﬁmwﬁ
7 3 39 T FoIT @ T SHRUHTE T % AN F e € o ore T A S § | 55 %07 o ol T SRUHTE
7 31 W, 2015 BT 9W X 343,87,54,657 (fUser a9 - T 368,63,08,330) ® |

The borrowing of ¥ 392,47,99,946 (Previous Year - I 436,08,88,828) from Govt. of India under the JICA IV loan
is carried forward in the 'schedule IV - Borrowings' to the Balance Sheet at its historic rupee value since SIDBI's
liability towards principal repayment under the agreement, is not expected to exceed the aggregate of rupee
borrowings and the balance in the ERFF maintained for this loan. The balance as on March 31, 2015 in ERFF
maintained for this loan is ¥ 343,87,54,657 (Previous Year - X 368,63,08,330).

ST XL ¥ & % o - fag a¥ 2014- 15 ®F 3T I H [@ @y & T R 4,70,78,493) [&ad oW -
% 1,39,39,865)] YA € q1 G XIV & o =19 fax af 2015 ¥q URemeqwa =@ & qd safy & =@ i
® 72,20,600) [fraer o - T 4,87,92,475] TN B |

Income in schedule XIII - 'other income' for FY 2014-15 includes Prior Period Income of (X 4,70,78,493) [Previous
Year X 1,39,39,865] and Other expenditure in schedule XIV - 'Operating Expenses' for FY 2015 includes Prior Period

Expenditure of X 72,20,600) [Previous Year X 4,87,92,475].

10

I 3 fag 9 ¥ 300 AT SToR w1 FoT-wHeen i Gfawr w1 9% T 3R Saiam gt vt ufES @ 9 T
W I & AU R | 395 65.9 fAfeaT woetetR (100 ffds sriftant Sor & qod) &1 SRS &1 fegan «ff et © 1 3Ly
FU-FIET & A YR THR SR ¢ 3 YR FIhR Fagelt T FY41 F7 <ot §, T IR &1 I o &Y fafma
STfEH T a8 faget gRT forar ST oTferd € | 39 YR T WRd TR 7 faget o7 ¥9a e SIRT foRa, qenfy 59 fagdt
% @Al # et fefT SR 8 TSI <l o ®9 § &St fohal T, ek 9% o 37 H Sehgl § [T X 39T &7
TS BT | TEIUR 3 F V- % ST 31 FE 2015 T YR WK § forT MU 82.98 fAfea Rt e’ € 518.77
FHUS & TER) [T a8 94.63 fafera smier! SoR @ 552.91 IS & TEX)] & L0 T TF S 3R I & & & oo
forar e 2 T fafw sifew o1 a=me faedt aRT 931 ot <X faf o SR forar ST TeT ® 1 3 STgET IV - 9Ra #
I’ & oiaia Fgfed fovam T & |
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10

The Bank has contracted a line of credit for USD 300 million from World Bank for scaling up Sustainable and
Responsible Micro Finance Project including IDA portion aggregating SDR 65.9 million (equivalent of USD
100 million). Under IDA line, Govt. of India is the borrower and rupee funds are lent to SIDBI by GOI though
the exchange risk on the underlying is required to be borne by SIDBI as per the terms of the agreement. Thus,
though GOI released rupee funds to SIDBI the same was recorded as SDR liability in the books of SIDBI to
depict correct position so that revaluation difference gets suitably reflected in the year end figures. Accordingly
the drawal effected under the above line aggregating USD 82.98 million (equivalent to X 518.77 cr.) as on March
31,2015 [Previous Year USD 94.63 million (equivalent to I 552.91 cr.)] from GOI is recorded as SDR liability and
the underlying is being hedged through Currency Interest rate swaps by SIDBI. The same has been grouped under
schedule IV - 'Borrowings in India'.

11

T TWHT 7 fagelt & T 300 s &1 Te ffyr et *sfean uwwmwrTy et ffy” gfva =t = 1 59 fafa &1 3w
QISR TS ATl Bl AEThIEIET Hufal I &M Shisd o gU, X — 11 7o frx - 111 &t 39 ) ofé fasi st
TG IETEATY TRTST o -7 SfehT ot st WTeshTwTeT=o Teensit w1 Sfoadt weman aterar fereft orr &9 & ISt Jam
T T AT SO, et e TR S T 39 o Sfad oY Sreqdfad Wi H yRerent r dEfafy fre wifga
m‘—n§| 39 fafer ot aftaTer/merem fasst grT foan s 7, 19 @9 ffa & yeem & fa fagst &1t gematies yow o
B R | W F, o 3 fiw el w1 e w6 Sfae/mfee fan S € 1 ov, fEw 1 g omEwAEuE W fAfy 9w,
oo # (3 I’ o IFia SiteRa fohar AT § qer weft wrer / e /ermay/er 3w faf o fewwm € 1 @em 31 =4+ 2015
e Al & 3o T 191.73 8 (s 9 T 210.24 ) W

Government of India (GOI) has created “India Microfinance Equity Fund” with SIDBI with a corpus of ¥ 300 crore.
The Fund shall be utilised for extending equity or any other form of capital to Tier — II and Tier — III NBFC MFIs
and all Non-NBFC MFlIs, with a focus on smaller socially oriented MFIs with the objective of poverty alleviation
and achieving long term sustainability of operations in unserved and underserved parts of the country." The fund
is operated/managed by SIDBI for which an administrative fee for managing the fund is received by SIDBI. Further,
the inflows and outflows are debited/credited to the fund. Hence, fund balance of IMEF, net of investment is
grouped under "Other Liabilities" in the Balance Sheet and all gains/losses/income/expenditure are the part of the
fund. The balance in the fund is ¥ 191.73 crore as on March 31 2015 (Previous year X 210.24 crore).

12

a'-mﬁw % 905,00,00,000 (F&T 77 3 898,57,35,777) [T & X 379,00,00,000 (@& T T 366,00,14,453)] T WA
TR T afaugfaat 3T IoRt facit &1 Yo IUR Te 07 e (Heuasi) §g Fearar SsuRee e $fear fa. & g
et T & | Wy §, S T SIS doF % WY vl USi SAeReT % STt ST URerer! & o STESEeTE S
T Frafer S e T E

The Bank has pledged Government Securities & Treasury Bills aggregating to I 905,00,00,000 (book value
% 898,57,35,777) [Previous Year I 379,00,00,000 (book value X 366,00,14,453)] with Clearing Corporation of India
Ltd. for Collataralised Borrowings and Lending Obligations (CBLO). The Bank has placed Fixed Deposit with IDBI
Bank to cover its operations under Working Capital arrangement with IDBI Bank.

13

TS i & few o w9 § do 7 fafvs w07 FAawenstt % Sforia eMefid ffudt & ¥ fadlt gur s T sy e aiforew dot &
@ ¢ I 39 facelt g1 et & wfa 9RdiT T § offavgee it giaen off ® | 3 SioRgme gfawnelt & ofawd 31 A, 2015
T T TRT X 797,79,89,157 (A ¥ T 905,17,90,000) = | 72T 31 A= 2015, 37 faceht gav fat w wey =rey fafer o7
SRS % IURT T 0 & 4 @I € |

As a part of hedging strategy, the Bank has placed foreign currency deposits with scheduled commercial banks out
of the funds drawn under various lines of credit and have availed overdraft facility in INR against these foreign
currency deposits. Outstanding balances under these overdraft facility aggregated to I 797,79,89,157 as on March 31,
2015 (Previous Year ¥ 905,17,90,000). As on March 31, 2015, the interest receivable on these foreign currency deposits
matches with the interest payable on borrowings under various lines of credit.

14

3 T H WA 7 - fome ot F 9 @ STl M A ¥ G T 32.80 IS (T I X 52.33 FIS)

Other income includes recoveries on account of advances written off in earlier years I 32.80 crore (previous year
% 52.33 crore).
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15

i sy et & fasra faorg fafuer ey @ 2 3 wwor fromfed € fRT TR 1 31 W, 2015 H S W@ H
faer qeamTiad 9o T 8,71,95,283 (M@ Y - T 9,17,84,508) ¥ |

Conveyance deed in respect of certain Officer's Flats has not been executed due to pending legal matter, the net
W.D.V. of these flats is ¥ 8,71,95,283 (Previous year - ¥ 9,17,84,508) as on March 31, 2015.

16

STETFRTET 7, 18 WA, 2002 &F FUT IR F WA ¥, fagdt 1 16.35 fafeeT wqem w1 fageht gz %07 feam & 1 %0
IR T I & , STETHTST 7 JTH TTeR F FT Gfaawor forar & 3K SURT Jebidl TSI & GHqed JuY ST |
ST | S T o o dfedt ¥ AeI9N oreieh SR ® |

IFAD had extended a foreign currency loan to SIDBI of SDR 16.35 million, vide loan agreement dated February 18,
2002. As per the terms of loan agreement, IFAD had disbursed loan in USD and it is to be repaid in USD equivalent
to SDR. The Bank has accounted accordingly in the books of account.

17

S T T YN o A oI UM WgW (o) 1 fasha o fean | frefatee o, ffée safuei & fau, S
TR Jadeh o ®Y F T T AT GHISY FToheld <uriel 71

The Bank has sold its Advances portfolio (Direct) under direct assignment. The following tables set forth, for the
periods indicated, the information on direct assignment activity of the Bank as an originator.

®)

F— ) 31 WT, 2015 31 T, 2014
/ Particulars March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
3R 919 / Balance as at - 20,39,19,465

T 9 Y GAICRIT Fo 0T ST ot @ - .

Total number of loan assets direct assigned

TIY T ¥ GEISRTT FOT NG 61 Fel a8 T = -

Total book value of loan assets direct assigned

T T ¥ G FOT AR § 9 fosh ge i - -

Sale consideration received for the direct assigned assets

T TR % FROT e @ / (@1 B B

Net gain/(loss) on account of direct assignment

18

(=)
(a)

HUER @9 / Employee Benefits

R AW (W 15) (2005 F YATHA) W §LIETL A ALEE THEIIH 1 IS FRT K Gl WMk o STIAR o
TR 9 HATRET HT < ST T Graensii 1 =7 govR § aieper foham mm 2

In accordance with the Accounting Standard on "Employee Benefits" (AS 15) (Revised 2005) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, the Bank has classified the various benefits provided to the employees as under:

[URAIYd STYTET ASHT / Defined contribution plan
S 7 frefataa Tferdt w1 e we w | § i e e

The Bank has recognized the following amounts in Profit & Loss Account:

®

e [ g o3 218 | o, 0t
R e 4,49,61,077 4,50,21,831
Employer’s contribution to Provident fund

T T AT § T T e 55,70,866 42,19,482
Employer’s contribution to New Pension Scheme
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(@) | S et Ui e F9 Og I A §, feent vaee 3% o SRy ferar S @
(b) | The Bank is having defined benefit Pension Plans and Gratuity Scheme which are managed by the Trust.
& &S / Crore)
Y9 / Pension JegET / Gratuity
Toretrer ad Tt | forefiar ad farsiter
2015 | TH2014 2015 | FH2014
FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014
L ‘13{31117!‘ / Assumptions
3—,{@ T / Discount Rate 7.70% 9.29% 7.95% 9.32%
TSI ST U¢ Ofaq®et ot T 8.70% 8.70% 8.70% 8.70%
Rate of Return on Plan Assets
a_vﬁaaﬁ'ﬁ / Salary Escalation 700% 700% 700% 700%
W T / Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
2. | e et ¥ ufiads geT arelt arfereRt
Table showing change in Benefit Obligation
T & RN H T / Liability at the beginning of the year 221.08 218.85 62.57 68.08
TS AT / Interest Cost 20.54 17.51 583 545
FAHM AT ARG / Current Service Cost 8.73 10.26 4.02 4.26
S5 Tar T (ﬁrﬁ%’a‘w) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit)
Tyl Qa1 &g (fafga @) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit)
ST ST 3 / Liability Transferred in 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(e faeor i) / (Liability Transferred out) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(IS ) / (Benefit Paid) (6.00) (4.75) (3.21) (3.46)
S s et e 61.16 (20.77) 3.24 (11.75)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations
of % s F T 305.51 221.08 72.45 62.57
Liability at the end of the year
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& &g / Crore)
U9 / Pension UeFET / Gratuity
fofimad | fadmad| fodwad| fosfa o
2015 2014 2015 2014
FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014
; rit 3 3R e et Aot
Tables of Fair value of Plan Assets
a9 & Y T ASHITT ATfat &1 3 T 80.27 74.12 95.21 68.86
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
ST T T ST wfawer 6.98 6.45 8.28 5.99
Expected Return on Plan Assets
3 / Contributions 0.00 4.13 0.99 23.20
3T S § ST / Transfer from other company 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(37 ST T 3T / (Transfer to other company) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(Elﬁ ET?T) / (Beneﬁt Paid) (2.43) (4.75) (3.21) (3.46)
ST STl O srHiferes @ / (81F) (1.43) 0.32 0.21 0.62
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Assets
9 & Jd | IS ATl &7 3T 9 83.39 80.27 101.48 95.21
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
wHifcher T (BT TG ATfetenT
Table of Recognition of Acturial Gains/Losses
< 3Tafy o o swiferes @mr / @16) 61.16 (20.77) 3.24 (11.75)
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on obligation for the period
arafy o o snfeear W sfiwifores @ / (@T0) 1.43 (0.32) (0.21) (0.62)
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on asset for the period
I 3R =g @ H FafEa Siwifehe ooy / (@) 62.59 (21.09) 3.03 (12.37)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses recognized in Income & Expense Statement
ST A& T Areterey fet
Actual Return on Plan Assets
SN &l T Tt ufawe 6.98 6.45 8.28 5.99
Expected Return on Plan Assets
ST T T SHiferss e / (@1) (1.43) 0.32 021 0.62
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets
FISHIT TR 0 qrfass Jfqwet 5.55 6.77 8.49 6.61
Actual Return on Plan Assets
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® &S / Crore)
YT / Pension JeFET / Gratuity
fadfgad | fadfgad | fodmad | fadmad
2015 2014 2015 2014

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014
o ¥ ferifta =y g aivr
Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
9 & 37T § AT / Liability at the end of the year 83.39 80.27 101.48 95.21
¥ & T § ASHRG el 1 3 g7 (305.51) (221.08) (72.45) (62.57)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
39T / Difference (222.12) (140.82) 29.03 32.64
T4 % 3T F AT fama Tar anT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrecognised Past Service Cost at the end of the year
o & Siq § Srfyuiia gftadt <=ar 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Unrecognised Transitional Liability at the end of the year
W 'ﬁ' ﬁ'gﬁ'ﬁ—d' a.ﬂ' 11% ﬁaﬂ' -{TFQT (222.12) (140.82) 29.03 32.64
Net Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
s et ¥ frerfia s
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement
W@Tﬂ NTT /Current Service Cost 8.73 10.26 4.02 4.26
TS AT / Interest Cost 20.54 17.51 583 545
TSI TR 0 e Ffewer (6.98) (6-45) (8.28) (5:99)
Expected Return on Plan Assets
o o S Frftor & o T famm Sar @ (R ffe T 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit) recognised during the year
& SR frefeor & off ¢ fara St e (e @) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) recognised during the year
a9 & a—;\-ﬁ qfteadf Soar a1 faeioT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Recognition of Transition Liability during the year
aiferen (AT4) / BT 62.59 (21.09) 3.03 (12.37)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss
T 3T o &t o frefvor & ﬁ.rq T =T 84.87 0.22 4.60 (8.66)
Expense Recognised in Profit & Loss account
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(X &S / Crore)
Y / Pension T4t / Gratuity
fofimad| fadmad| fodwad| fofiaad
2015 2014 2015 2014
FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014
8. | geTus WHTLM / Balance Sheet Reconciliation
3Mf¥er fad FAT / Opening Net Liability 140.82 144.72 (32.64) (0.08)
FTH T / Expense as above 84.87 0.22 4.60 (8.66)
fRIIHT T 3TTEH / Employers Contribution (3:57) (4.13) (0.99) (23.20)
Wﬁ'ﬁﬂ"ﬁ? TYT / Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 22212 140.82 (29.03) (32.64)
9. | o= fa@wuT / Other Details
S HT AT o SER 9 FeIa I A F T@N ST €, S RHAET w1 AT, WO F M F Gy F @07 H yeferd
TR & SET T ¢ |
Salary escalation is considered as advised by the Bank which is in line with the industry practice considering
promotion, demand and supply of the employees.
T 98 12 w&1) & ]%rq aa-qTF_m- S MHE] 20.68 19.94 0.00 0.00
Estimated Contribution for next year (12 months)
10. | smfera =t Sroft / Category of Assets
LT HLhR SAMEAT / Government of India Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FHNURE a0 / Corporate Bonds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
foRT ST ASMT / Special Deposits Scheme 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
R, ShafTar & FfeFadt I / Equity Shares of Listed Companies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tl / Property 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FeTeRat g watya e (TR stae e ) 83.39 80.27 101.49 95.21
Insurer Managed Funds (LIC of India)
3T / Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
T / Total 83.39 80.27 101.49 95.21
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® S / Crore)

11. EREE HHTEN / Experience Adjustment:

U9 / Pension UFET / Gratuity

foiw | fositw | fodite | forite | fooie | fonie | fosim | fosiw | fodiim | fosiw
Y 2015 | 2014 |9 2013 | 2012 | 2011 |6 2015 |9 2014 |96 2013 | 2012 [a9 2011
FY 2015 | FY 2014 | FY 2013 | FY 2012 | FY 2011 | FY 2015 | FY 2014 | FY 2013 | FY 2012 | FY 2011

AR S A / @) | (090) | 2434 | (272) | 3564 | 691 | (056) | (3.72) | (0.11) [ 1418 | 3.45
On Plan Liability (Gain)/Loss

ST e @) /e | (143) | 032 070 | 578 | 162 | 021 | 062 065 ((078) | (026)
On Plan Asset (Loss)/Gain

T. | T A GRT UG aTHifoReh HedTeR U ST 3777 Sratary @y ArSristl § Hafer T, S e =1 @ & gaiia
1 T, 39 TR T

C. | The following are the amount charged to Profit & Loss Account relating to other long term benefits plan based on
the actuarial valuation provided by independent actuary.

TaeXuT / Particulars 31 W, 2015 =t 31 UTd, 2014 Y
Sr. No. As on March 31, 2015 As on March 31, 2014
1 HTYTOT 3TeHTRT Fehalehiol / Ordinary Leave Encashment 10.51 5.00
2 Fg! forrn R / Leave Fare Concession (LFC) 3.26 0.45
3 AT TAHTET / Sick Leave 0.82 2.60
4 ‘jflﬁ'fﬂ' T / Resettlement Expenses 0.00 0.00
5 SRR AIfeheqT ArerT T gfaem * 8.76 0.10
Post Retirement Medical Scheme Facilities*

+ faTg Teelt STt o 2% T&T HT STAM AT TR |

* Domiciliary claim has been assumed to go up by 2%.

19. S f&F @i Ae-17 @S RUfET & siqrid owfed 7, 9 T ‘Jau™ @'’ &1 Johed Mfqeh TS & 7 H fHar ¢ |
Hfer o R F TReTeRa €, 1 AT dm siifes @ T8 € | d% T owy g & i v fow, smes fow o
TS - A i RaifdT we it Ry | 7 @S SRl ik Hanstl @i gefa 3R Sifen WY, SSHIHS & quT S ot
afffter R sawen w faur o o it ffe T e | fiser of & atiRet #1 O 9 1 IS % IFER 99 % fau
TTERfEd T [T R T e |

As required under Accounting Standard-17 'Segment Reporting' the Bank has disclosed "Business segment" as the
Primary Segment. Since the Bank operates in India, there are no reportable geographical segments. Under Business
Segment, the Bank has identified Direct Finance, Indirect Finance and Treasury as its three reporting segments.
These segments have been identified after considering the nature and risk profile of the products and services, the
organization structure and the internal reporting system of the Bank. Previous year's figures have been regrouped
and reclassified to conform to the current year's methodology.
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(X &S / Crore)

HIAR! ©S ey fas swcag o EE Rl
Business Segments Direct Finance Indirect Finance Treasury

frfrad | fodad | fodmad | fasigad | fodmad | fodmad | fasimad | fa<ia o
fq@uT / Particulars 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2014

P — 1,554 1437 | 3726 4,118 461 253 5,741 5,808
Segment Revenue
ST 7S
Exceptional Items
T / Total 5,741 5,808
e T 363 346 1,716 1,208 144 91 2,223 1,645
Segment Results
ST 7S
Exceptional Items
T/ Total 2,223 1,645
stfafremi &= 108 106
Unallocable Expenses
TRCETETRTA AT 2,115 1,539
Operating profit
TR (TR o 1) 698 421
Income Tax (Net of write
back)
THraet &9 / Net profit 1,417 1,118
3T YEAG / Other
information
@< snfeat 11,623 15,103 45,631 48,355 1,820 3,416 59,074 66,874
Segment Assets
stfafremia it 1,781 936
Unallocated Assets
et i@t / Total Assets 60,855 67,810
@E A 8,459 13,246 40,303 42,299 1,345 3,104 50,107 58,649
Segment Liabilities
sAfafrema am 968 670
Unallocated Liabilities
T / Total 51,075 | 59,319
ot / smefafe 3,269 1,930 6,012 6,179 499 382 9,780 8,491
Capital / Reserves
AT / Total 9,780 8,491
el T / Total Liabilities 60,855 | 67,810
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20 | yeifera uref HeTa@™ / Related party transactions
“wrafed e yeheT’ % Ty W TR A URE TwhSTH At IfEan g1 Tt oEn UHeh-18 & AN, doh
& Yeifera wey Fread & -
As per the Accounting Standard on “Related Party Disclosures” (AS-18) issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountant of India, the related parties of the Bank are as follows.
o | HEEeh I :
A | Subsidiaries:
1 | fosdt 3R Hfiee fafids (@@eiiter) / SIDBI Venture Capital Limited (SVCL)
2 | fosat Tt St fafids (THEite) / SIDBI Trustee Company Limited (STCL)
3 | WEeR! Iy SacTHe U g it (&7 fafids) / Micro Units Development & Refinance Agency Ltd. (MUDRA Ltd.)
@ | "gant @e
B | Associates
1| YT Y T e e ST YA SOl (STETHCSARED) / India SME Asset Reconstruction Company (ISARC)
o | THTHE T TSt 3w gfear fafids (@) / SME Rating Agency of India Ltd. (SMERA)
3 | YR oY Td qea 39 SrefTeRt o faffds (SETEETETe) / India SME Technology Services Ltd. (ISTSL)
T | Ak o THE WA hifieh
C | Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank:
1 | <f epwf ferarsht, sverer wd weer frawmeh (2 A 2015 § worel)
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman & Managing Director (w.e.f March 02, 2015)
2 | ot T . AN, 30 wa v - WY (28 WY 2015 )
Shri N.K. Maini, Deputy Managing Director-Incharge (upto Feb 28, 2015)
IR ot § TWHR Rl 3em wnfaet 72 €, ifer ¥ $iege i a1ds TSy 31t Ifea gRT S of@l Wh-18 &
IR 9 FRT T I & |
The above list does not include State Controlled Enterprises since the same are exempted vide para 9 of Accounting
Standard - 18 issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
| Hag uall o eiFe U Hefera faaiur eht Uend e uT ¢
D | Disclosures of details pertaining to related party transactions :
%) | o & <R S & TG Feeh e I Hex ohel 9o, FoTaH ST off wiffe €, e ©
a) | The gross salary including perquisites paid to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank during the year is as under :
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®)

faitar faita o
2014-15 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
1) | =F amfar femarsh, sterey weh wary fewmes (2 A 2015 & Tme) 1,63,530 -
Dr. Kshatrapati Shivaji, Chairman & Managing Director (w.e.f March 02, 2015)
2) | . % ¥, 30wy fewes (2 e, 2015 T9F) 21,28,577 23,79,136
Shri N.K. Maini, Deputy Managing Director -Incharge (upto Feb 28, 2015)
3) | 4t @ gedia 3Ty U vy FRTe (8 TEEX 2013 TH) i 10,92,533
Shri S. Muhnot, Chairman & Managing Director (upto Nov 08, 2013)
4) | At 2. SR FfeE, U ey fRRT (31 fEay, 2013 T) - 11,86,352
Shri T. R. Bajalia, Deputy Managing Director (upto Dec 31, 2013)
@ | ST ATHAT T AR FN T 31 AT T FoTaT T I / Nil I / Nil
b) Outstanding balances of loans as on March 31st in respect of above persons:
M) | Y FeeeRTIhT ST fae o o SR SR T U ET W A I / Nil I / Nil
<) Interest on loans granted to Key Managerial Personnel during the year:
W) | Sk & TG JEUhHeR! o G F JUT 31 WIE HT YAl ST o A TRTAT I
d)

Outstanding balances under Fixed Deposits as on March 31st in respect of Key Managerial Personnel of the Bank:

Tt ad faritar ot
faaut / Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
T o T WHHR ST / Deposits accepted during the year 31,66,431 16,04,134
T & IR A ST / Repayment during the year 25,12,682 11,25,000
fqq 31 / Closing Balance 62,76,511 56,22,762
¥ & TR Wiga & / Interest expended during the year 6,57,611 590,384
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®)
) Hag U& / Related Party AgTIch YA / Subsidiaries TEARIT WLATE / Associates
e
! T | TEene | 9a e k) ST | SMETETHTA
faawuT / Particulars
SVCL STCL Mudra Ltd SMERA ISARC ISTSL
IRy fragr
Investment in Shares
; - - 5,00,000 - - -
i & I FHATET A
: . ©) - (NA) () () ()
Transactions during the Year
oY & 37T | e 1,00,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,10,00,000 | 15,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
Outstanding at end of the year | (1,00,00,000) (5,00,000) (NA) | (510,00,000) | (15,00,00,000) | (1,00,00,000)
U1 3T / Income received
S T T T 4,73,47,446 60,000 B 1,00,10,370 |  12,06,22,669 -
Amount received by Bank (4,88,44,394) (90,000 (NA) (62,38,551) (81,96,299) )
a9 o 31d H I T - - - 5,06,204 - -
Receivables at end of the year ) ) (NA) ) ©) )
=t wfagfa
Reimbursement of expenses
der g SraTeha YT 27,62,961 - 6,07,672 - 49,79,539 -
Amount claimed by Bank (23,12,964) ) (NA) (- (43,45,513) (18,61,469)
¥ & T ¥ I iyt 7,868 - 6,07,672 - 5,634 39,44,583
Receivables at end of the year ©) ©) (NA) ) (15178) | (39,44,583)
=l BT A
Payment of expenses
ERESRUN
Amount paid by Bank
o W / - — — —_ — —
- Fees / Commission (24,19,510) (=) (NA) (-) (-) (=)
- = - - - - - -
- Interest (- ) (NA) (- = =
T4 % T H <F
Payables at end of the year - - - - i -
- ok ) () (NA) () () ()
- Fees/Commission
- - - - . - -
- Interest ) ©) (NA) @) @) £
T / Deposits
& o IR A - S o = = -
Received during the Year ) ) (NA) ) G G
& SR - - — - . .
Repaid during the year ) ) (NA) ) ©) )
Y o 3 H SehTT - - N N N -
Outstanding at end of the year ) ) (NA) ) ) -
(RTeShT H < T TeTa faet 9 =T ) / (Figures in brackets represents previous year’s amount)
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®)

21 | yfq IR 3l (SHUR) (SRaieR A e 20)* : 31 W=, 2015 31 WTe, 2014
Earning Per Share (EPS) (AS-20)* March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
ufq W 75T IR eT & fa'q fraer < ®) 1417,13,02,757 1118,27,17,901
Net Profit considered for EPS calculation (%)

310 Y& & 3iferd ToT & $faet IRRI &1 TE 45,00,00,000 45,00,00,000
Number of equity shares of face value ¥ 10 each

T IR 3T () / Earning per share () 31.49 24.85
* O TfARER TSI T STAATHT ufq YRR T TEE €, e stafagviy guifa dfeadt TR T © |

* Basic & Diluted EPS are same as there are no dilutive potential Equity Shares.

22 | TraieR WS 22-3F W T TG A@IHT HT IS F TER, Sob T RANT T = / T9q hT THIET &1 ¢ 3 31
AT, 2015 T TA W % AT T 0@ | T 186,72,66,607/- HT TRT (@@er o el T <@ T 181,13,31,566 o)
SR T SMFET AT € | F2 31 ATH, 2015 T SRAMTT HT ST/ (SAT) S STCHT- 3T T2k FHAREd &

As per the Accounting Standard 22, Accounting for Taxes on Income, the Bank has reviewed the Deferred Tax
Expenditure / Saving and recognised an amount of ¥ 186,72,66,607 as Deferred Tax Liability (Previous year -
Deferred Tax Asset was ¥ 181,13,31,566) in the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015. The
Break up of Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liability) as on March 31, 2015 is as follows :
31 9T, 2015 St | 31 T, 2014 Y
ST T S / | ST T St /
TUY 3T / Timing Difference (cFn (Sa)
As at March 31, 2015|As at March 31, 2014
Deferred Tax Asset/| Deferred Tax Asset/
(Liability) (Liability)

%) | TerET ¥ fow EHE 15,58,955 (4,48,16,723)

a) | Provision for Depreciation

@) | TRt AT, 1961 ST HRT 36(1)(viii) o iara favm smfafa (363,29,74,887) | (334,41,91,476)

b) | Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act 1961

M) | 3Teire qT WieTy ®UN 7 AU 127,94,44,842 333,22,13,509

¢) | Provisions for Bad & Doubtful Debts

) | 9RT WHR & gl u NI &7 q'ﬁ\-g'ﬁ‘qq (15,37,45,575) (17,57,09,228)

d) | Amortisation of Premium on GOI Bonds

B R 16,46,37,417 16,46,37,417

e) | Provision for Restructuring of Accounts

=) | 3= 111,42,09,087 70,82,62,948

f) | Others
Traer it a & e /(a-q-‘-ﬂ-) (122,68,70,161) 64,03,96,447
Net deferred tax Asset/(Liability)
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23 | kT Y WA ¥ VAT @ : / Provision for Income Tax includes: ®

HUTH fardtar o 2014-15 | foreita af 2013-14
faauT / Particulars
Sr. No. FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
() | =T SR WEHM / Current Income Tax Provision 512,01,72,759 602,99,57,094
(i) | T 9uf ¥ fohy T HH / (@ER) STAHT WEHH (63,72,742) (63,72,742)
Short/(Excess) Income Tax Provision of Earlier Years

24 | ayeRfer <A X 208,80,31,755 (T &% - X 130,17,60,225) F €, T oMot U e w1 A wWHA € | 4%
Y WENd T ¢ O PRI F T F MR W TGN MERIAF T W TR | T < 50,66,98,988 (M A -
% 50,66,98,988) YA &, ST T faumT 51T oo o foreeg G onfie & waifra & |
Contingent liabilities of ¥ 208,80,31,755 (Previous Year - X 130,17,60,225) represents income tax, and service tax
liability. This is being disputed by the Bank and based on expert's opinion the provision is not considered necessary.
It includes an amount of ¥ 50,66,98,988 (Previous Year - X 50,66,98,988) pertaining to appeals filed by Income Tax
Department against the Bank.

25 | yeer Y T H, TRATeR ek 28 - &l &1 g1 % ToIRT §, ook 1 fRR el &1 o1 fifqer sfT TR gg € |
In the opinion of the Management, there is no material impairment of the fixed assets of the Bank in terms of
Accounting Standard 28 - Impairment of Assets.

26 | STTeR{TE TS o WEHTT % HaH § @i AN - 29 % I b
Disclosures under Accounting Standard 29 for provisions in contingencies. ®

qEhRTAT S/ -
faawuT / Particulars Other
Wage Arrears / ..
R Provisions
Incentive

A oI / Opening Balance 30,09,43,479 4,36,60,598
af@e{ : / Additions: 21,65,00,000 -
TR : / Utilisations: 7581,176 -
TR : / Write back - r
3ifaw 91w / Closing Balance 50,98,62,303 4,36,60,598
3T qEEE § ¥ 919 wfa € S fafue fafes Amet oft TE e st ¥ gafud € fr fau o oo w9
I 7 3R S AT BT I AR F Sk o foee qeR U S
Other Provision represents claims filed against the Bank in the normal course of business relating to various legal
cases and other claims for which Bank is contingently liable.

27

31 979, 2014 TS 31 HTE, 2015 1 G 9 % SR Sk 7 faaeqet sife drmnsit s sifassa 6 fFar € |
During the year ended March 31, 2015 and March 31, 2014, the Bank has not exceeded the prudential exposure limit.
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28

S 7 T IRfer AT JoT FUT AT TRkl o U FOT SifEw § ST o A Uk Usfa e @ . Siafueh SR Wy
TR o ARfea et e Sfasmr 1 geiter ot St |, yRdT fo1d o o faien 15/01/2014 % 03 GEAT < < o < A o
o T 85/21.06.200/2013-14 T& &A1 03/06/2014 & T3 @& S o o7 € ot & f &t 116/21.06.200/2013-14 % 3Teit
TEHEHT SR facelt a7 FOT el WeS! % faT ®OT SfEW § a9E o fAw 7T 31 A 2015 T < 0.14 HUS T
T ol T § FoR W ST o NIae o T 8. S ST 31 A 2015 T AHETE ¥ wed F syt st
T STEYIH I T

The Bank has put in place a mechanism to manage credit risk arising out of unhedged foreign currency exposures
(UECE) of its borrowers. A review of the UFCE across its portfolio is undertaken by the Bank on periodic basis. In
terms of RBI circular DBOD No. BP.BC.85/21.06.200/2013-14 dated 15.01.2014 & subsequent clarification vide circular
DBOD NO.BP.BC. 116/21.06.200/2013-14 dated 03.06.2014, based on available data, the provision for UFCE works
out to ¥ 0.14 crore as on March 31, 2015 which has been included under provisions for standard assets. Further, the
additional capital requirement on account of UFCE works out to ‘Nil” as on March 31, 2015.

29

fravTeRt =t f¥TeRTad : / Investor's Complaints:

fedier 1 3T, 2014 T, S & UG ARt § o A Tt wifeq of | aewe faxia o §, frovrent ¥ o ferewmed o g
& T I & SR NS et o1 F9a oA T | 39 kR AT 31, 2015 T Sk & U i of fereRrad fge 7 dfad TR
2l

As on 1st April, 2014, the Bank had three pending investor’s complaints. During the current financial year five
complaints were received from Investors and eight complaints were disposed off during the year. Thus, nil
complaints are pending for disposal as on March 31, 2015.

30

R g 3T fashr S g fafEm, 2000 F At 14 F 9RdT ag U A gerEar ffy (@@eSus) qen
T fAfer 3 7T Tl o SRR 7Y T WEY s € | dfeh R TR 7 o7 ¥ i THeTSuE stfergfaa e
foran €, o1 foed 3§ T W@ ® |

Regulation 14 of Small Industries Development Bank of India General Regulations, 2000 prescribes separate format
for presentation of accounts under Small Industries Development Assistance Fund (SIDAF) and General Fund. As
no separate SIDAF has been notified by the Central Government, the same is not being maintained by SIDBI.

31

o & U JEATAT A WaaT S i aret eeRae faeme €, fw wfae § guifaq s w1 w6 gfy ¥ senfe
foram Tar &1 9 o 37 W Sk T U Srefeniferer Wiaerelt T wHieT T ¥ I wiae ¥ Genfad weaqut it o o wrar-aet &
STATAHATAR T Jrae fovy & o forefar farawoit & G frwforat & Sfeia Seht Wb oo 21

The Bank has long term contracts mainly in nature of derivative contracts which are assessed for foreseeable losses.

At the year end, the Bank has reviewed and recorded adequate provision as required, for material foreseeable losses
on such long term contracts in the books of account and disclosed the same under the relevant notes in the financial
statements.

32

STET SR TS €, IRl T 99 % SRSl T U R [T AT T 7, Ak 3% A a9 o NSl T JorT-am
ST ST e |
Previous year's figures have been re-grouped and re-classified wherever necessary to make them comparable with

the current years figures.
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R S / Crore)
Rt fiord den o fegn-fadymgar srfafies weRdiehtut / Additional disclosures as per RBI guidelines
£ & / Capital ot o 2014-15 | fa<it=r ad 2013-14
A. apia FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
) WIEH Sl o Ui geit ST (FeTusi) 36.69% 30.75%
a) Capital to Risk Assets Ratio [CRAR]
&7 TIARTHR / Core CRAR 35.59% 29.65%
TR HRTIR / Supplementary CRAR 1.10% 1.10%
@) TETT T T FHOT Y THT qer feaw-1 oSt o w0 ¥ qewrEr wlir = NGl
b) The amount of subordinated debt raised and outstanding as Tier II capital Nil Nil
) SifEn Wit snfeat-geq-u § auifed ST Sud 36T wel 8
Jorch-gelch
c) Risk weighted assets-separately for on and off-balance sheet items
qeT-T3 T / On Balance sheet 27,699.05 30,092.50
-7 % 3T / Off Balance sheet 475.92 645.06
) qEA-UF ki fafer sy ) anfiar st www e i v e &7
d) The share holding pattern as on the date of the Balance sheet No. of shares UfA9T / Percentage
) of shareholding
fawft@r YLAT / Financial Institutions 2,39,00,000 5.31
ST ST / Insurance Companies 9,84,50,000 21.88
eIk &7 % §% / PSU Banks 32,76,50,000 72.81
T / Total 45,00,00,000 100.00
Q. | i TUTENT ST T Hehgur fosmad 2014-15 | focfiwad 2013-14
B. | Asset quality and credit concentration FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
o) Traet Fot it it o wfa fraet i-fremees snfw= ot ufagma 0.78% 0.45%
a) Percentage of net NPAs to net loans and advances
@) U hadsl TJuTd * 76% 88%
b) Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) *
* ST SHalsl STATT i TUMHT Shid TH =l TTaeT bl fedra o el foram T |
* Floating provision has not been considered while calculating PCR.
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& FIS / Crore)

) Fruifta enfe anifentor Siftret @ siata, fraer it =t gorm ¥ Freer H-fameen il st T it SveRT wfaa

¢) Amount and percentage of net NPAs to net advances under the prescribed asset classification categories

ot ot 2014-15 foitm ot 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
SIUTr / Category ) wfaeTa Yt wfeeTa
Amount | Percentage | Amount | Percentage
39-HMS AT * / Sub-standard assets* 291.05 0.53 206.82 0.34
Tfery oTf&™T * / Doubtful assets* 140.39 025 70.23 0.11
AT / Total 431.44 0.78 277.05 0.45

* I froee onfE & &9 ¥ Fffera ki @l ¥ gafua gamEitsa graue. faxta a8 2013-14 # e T fomes
TG ¥ B, AfS = JTarer TRT 1 3Heh |ref FHwSI fopam S |

Adjusted provision for diminution in fair value and Balance in Sundries Liabilities Account (Interest
Capitalisation) in respect of restructured accounts classified as NPA. The Net NPA for FY 2013-14 will be NIL
if the amount of floating provision is adjusted against the same.

*

) o & SR, e SN, T-froqreer e, frawdt (i @t wofa & 3av o) ofit o &T & fa for e st
EARUE

d) Amount of provisions made during the year towards Standard assets, NPAs, Investments (other than those in
the nature of an advance) and Income Tax

foray ot -15 | foeftar e 2013-
fqeXT / Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14

He 3T / Standard Assets - 411.77
R-freqrees it / NPAs (251.55)* 784.09
99T / Investments 54.54 41.98
Gt &t AT / Restructuring of Accounts - -
IMIHT (STRATTT T AT AR Hrarermi, Afg &, o TR afea) 698.11 421.23
Income Tax (including Deferred tax and write back of excess provision, if any)

* et srfafery TC-foqrees enfear T 232.42 FUE
* Net of additional NPA provision of ¥ 232.42 crore.
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farfta o st wfe W gfa g / Closing balance at the close of the financial year

® S / Crore)
%) I frengen snf@El ¥ uftad= / e) Movement of Non Performing Assets (NPAs)
o : fadmad 2014-15 [fasfi=r ad 2013-14
s ticulars FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
forciir o o SRE # epet TR foaTeeR STt 1,153.12 554.29
Gross NPA at the beginning of the financial year
?ﬁ%ﬁ . 99 o SR uRaeT / Add : Additions during the year 478.34 995.48
kU \—,ﬁg () / Sub total (A) 1,631.46 1,549.78
HITY - / Less:-
i)  3¥FT / Upgradations 34.61 49.15
i) gfear T Tt ¥ afedl w5 BIge]) 506.39 183.40
Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts)
iii) fa9eqUl 9 W / Prudential Write-offs 106.41 161.24
iv) IWE (iii) oF TR ST 9g @I ST MY 242.94 2.87
Write-offs other than those under (iii) above
q ?ﬁ'g' (@) / Sub total (B) 890.35 396.66
ferehter = =t T W Wehet R Fremeen enfeat (6-@) 74111 1,153.12
Gross NPA at the close of the financial year (A - B)
=) W freagen snfert & wraem ¥ aftads (7w snfwar o fand
TGN hi BIgHT)
f) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
ot o Y YIETd § 31 VI / Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 867.01 247.02
Fﬁf\S?\T . g9 & SR fohd 79 I1E / Add: Provisions made during the year 23242 900.31
IR : g @I STl /AR SAfh JTerem 833.32 280.32
Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions
foit o st wfe W gfa v / Closing balance at the close of the financial year 266.11 867.01
B) frae i frenee snfeat & uftad=
g) Movement in Net NPAs
fordtr a ot YR H 31 vy / Opening Balance at the beginning of the financial year 277.05 299.15
ST : 3 o QA URasd / Add: Additions during the year 24591 95.18
HaTEd : q¥ % QH HHT / Less: Reductions during the year 57.02 116.34
TRY - e % &9 ¥ ariferd e @ o Sfea qed R vy Jae * (6.78) 0.94
Less: Provision for dimunition of fair value of restructured accounts classified as NPA*
T ;TR TR e et & aree Gek A Gl § STEE (S S YSien) 41.28 =
Less: Balance in Sundries Liabilities Account (Interest Capitalisation) in
respect of Restructured NPA Accounts
431.44 277.05

* IR freqesh SR & &7 § arifgrd QR @t & 3 qed # fRrae 3 W6 ot iy 7o 31 9, 2015, 3 2.28 RS off, S@fw
31 9 2014 T ARFUE I8 F T I5el & TR TRT T 9.06 g, off | TeTaR =T 9 2014-15 F 3fche! T T0MT ! T 2 |

* Provision for diminution in fair value of restructured accounts classified as NPA as on March 31, 2015 is ¥ 2.28 crore, as against
% 9.06 crore already considered in opening as on March 31, 2014. Accordingly the figure has been worked out for FY 2014-15.
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(% FE / Crore)

0N

T TEIUTSIT

Credit Exposure

=) Trfafad o ar ¥ gt faferet ot et enfeaa o ufd KU1 TS Rt HfaeTd :

a) Credit exposure as percentage to capital funds and as percentage to total assets, in respect of :

o ad 2014-15 / FY 2014-15 | fa=i= a& 2013-14 / FY 2013-14
o et enferEt | U e R | et enfwEt | uSH fafie o
Sr No fqatut / Particulars FLFETIN | %HETT | H%HEIH | %HF®TH
As % to As % to As % to As % to
Total Assets | Capital funds | Total Assets | Capital funds
1 m ST ThA m 8.30 43.57 12.77 82.19

The largest single borrower

TIY TET YN 998

The largest borrower group

ifeh 9 SURhd! Merfish ForeHT TRt €, 37 W SUNehdl 9

ST ST o] Tef 71

As large borrowers are Primary lending Institutions, the concept

of borrower group is not applicable.

2 10 H9Y 9 Tohel IYRl

The 10 largest single borrowers

48.16

252.90

50.86

327.24

10 999 98 IYRad 998

The 10 largest borrower group

I 9% SURHdal Jufass FUERTH G ¥, 7 SURdl gHE i

TR AT Tl 7 |

As large borrowers are Primary lending Institutions the concept of
borrower group is not applicable.

@) Hel RUT A4l o 9T & &0 ¥ ufer Tod 9 Sitefien el ol uew HoT

b) Credit exposure to the five largest industrial sectors as percentage to total loan assets :

foreitar ad 2014-15 / FY 2014-15 | faiw a9 2013-14 / FY 2013-14
FeRTET TT F R St FEETTRT |0 e steat
SENT AT 19 / Name of Industry &+ ufa % & ufer %
Amount. o Amount.
. % to total loan X % to total loan
Outstanding Outstanding
assets assets
TfagT ST / Transport Equipment 1,652.02 2.99 1,820.46 2.97
FH IEN (e Ffed) / Textiles (Including Jute) 1,325.68 240 1,254.14 2.05
ﬁ@ﬁ' I / Electricity Generation 1,324.61 2.39 1,497.07 2.44
9T ST / Metal Products 1,093.53 1.98 3,242.65 5.29
BT / Constructions® 793.55 1.43 443.05 0.73

* et o 2013-14 o SO Fmior oier o &g S § wfier et |

* Constructions was not in top five largest industrial sectors in FY 2013-14
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TaaRuT / Particulars

® S / Crore)
¥, | W, AMUH, TR Ue TAUIT Rt HehguT forit o 2014-15 | faxitr o 2013-14
D. | Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
) AT HehEuT
a) Concentration of Deposits
A GG IS SHIHATSA 6 FeT ST (I FLS) 922.65 702.28
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors (X Crore)
S % P ST % AT G T I STHIHAIST 5 ST HT AT / Percentage of 79.69 75.66
deposits of twenty largest depositors to total deposits of the bank
@) AR T WehgT
b) Concentration of Advances
A TG T IURFATSA! BT FA A R FUS) 37,536.00 46,628.32
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers (X Crore)
S % FA AT F T A9 GG T SURHATST & ST HT Hfcerd 67.82 76.10
Percentage of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances of the bank
) USRHISI ShT HShguT
c) Concentration of Exposures
N I TS IURHATS/ITEHT o T F THRIHR (X FUS) 39,744.07 46,634.80
Total Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers (X Crore)
SYRFATS / Tl § dF & FoT K0 @SR % Jfq 69 o 9 SURHATAl/ 57.75 55.32
TTEhT H FT SATGH o7 Tferere
Percentage of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total
exposures of the bank on borrowers / customers
) T freneen i@ o1 THUT - Fi TR Y Eret ¥ e TSR (3 ) 319.50 815.73
d) Concentration of NPAs - Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts (X Crore)
F) aEaR A-fremger ef@at / e) Sector wise NPAs
39 & o et It A
frumgen snfwrat st ufaera

Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that Sector

@aTlf / Services

HfY S FEadt nfafafemt - v

Agriculture & allied activities

EEIE (g&w, <Y, 7eH ey E@') / Industry (Micro, small, medium and large) 0.76 212
6.18 0.95

99fther %0 / Personal Loans
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(% FE / Crore)
=) faaenyut a3 @ ot @l § TRads
f) Movement of Prudential Write-off (PWO) Accounts
FaRUT / Particulars fasita & 2014-15 | fersftar = 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
g av &1 AT I faa.—;piu'f a‘@ ECIG] 1,210.61 1,312.61
Prudential Written-off Accounts at the beginning of the financial year
SfeU : o o SR ﬁlﬁﬁﬂlﬁ' E@' @ / Add : Prudential write-off during the year 106.41 161.24
E'Q‘Trﬁg‘ () / Sub total (A) 1,317.02 1,473.85
YETSY : ATAfaeh 93 @ / Less: Actual write off 51.20 21091
I : 9 o S Tadl & faaeryut ag @ ¥ =t T agfeat 32.80 52.33
Less: Recoveries made from previously prudential written-off accounts during the year
3T AE (@) / Sub total (B) 84.00 263.24
foreitar o st gfe WX faganyut o @ (& - @) 1,233.02 1,210.61
Prudential Written-off Accounts at the close of the financial year (A-B)
B) faewi ¥ snfwat, H-froees snfeat qor Twe
g) Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue
FHaRUT / Particulars fasita & 2014-15 | forsftar o 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
T &AL / Total Assets - -
Fel TX-foTeeh STEAT / Total NPASs - -
el TSTE / Total Revenue - -
ot ad 2014-15 ot o 2013-14
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
WA CaUTet ShT 19 | HTEifTq qEdtet SRt A
Name of SPV Sponsored | Name of SPV Sponsored
fordett # fordoni ®
Domestic Overseas Domestic Overseas

W) qo U ¥ AT uraitea eutet (R or@ien Aeht o
U Tiifera fema T B)

h) Off-Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored (which are
required to be consolidated as per accounting norms)
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Closing balance at the close of the financial year

® S / Crore)
3. |frawr
E | Investments
) AR fied ek o feem-fEen it e srgaw fawh @ frergar avifera feram wr &:
a) The Investments have been classified as under, as required by RBI guidelines:
forit = o ot
fer@uT / Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
i) TRuear ¥ 1R / Held to Maturity 838.39 796.57
ii) et ¥ STEH / Available for sale 1,815.05 2,54240
iiii) MR 8 ¥MRA / Held for Trading 722.55 -
AT / Total 3,375.99 3,338.97

@) fravi ¥ geagra & ferg fevg e waem=
b) Provisions for depreciation in Investments
o = o ad
fereuT / Particulars 2014-15 2013-14

FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
foritar o o oo # 377 T 71.87 40.62
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year
SHfST : o & <R R T e - 32.18
Add : Provisions made during the year
Shfen : ot SAR-we Rfaf o @ fafam, afs &g & - -
Add: Appropriations, if any, from Investment Fluctuation Reserve account
T - Y 3 S A w £ e T T - 0.93
Less : Write off during the year
TITRT : AT AR -g1a SIRF&fT orEm 7 Sfawor, afc &g &r 5.92* .
Less: Transfer, if any, to Investment Fluctuation Reserve account
IR ; sty o o I S1-Yeh b7 TUHUH ¥ Tl § S7afd i & s - 3
fep e fafrm
Less: Appropriations made on account of shifting of G Sec from AFS to HTM during FY
forefrr o€ =} {3 O 65.95 71.87

* faeT IAR-wgra SRfAfa & STawor & § =t o & < a1 T 451 IS T WIGHH w27 feam T 2 |

* Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve is Net off provision of ¥ 4.51 Crore made during the Current Year.
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& & / Crore)
) feh T a9t o Werer W WAt Sifora
c) Issuer Categories in respect of Investment made:
frAfefaa st T/ Amount of
frav 3s ¥ faam e i
ofer | Pt wede s 9y | <o ot i
Srtehal / Issuer A faor ¥ aeft %lTﬁ'E[ W
mount % %
Investment made through | Below Investment 4
private placement Grade Securities Ur'u:ated Unhs.t'ed
Held securities held | securities
TSR & % ITT / PSUs AL - - - -
fairr geormd / Fls 349.98 269.98 - - 235.16
¥F / Banks 453.47 148.00 - - -
{3t AT / Private Corporates 675.37 622.83 - 9.42 512.83
TETI AT/ ITHH 1.10 1.10 = B 110
Subsidiaries/Joint ventures
3T / Others 502.96 452.96 - - 502.96
3IU-S / Sub-Total 2,458.96 1,494.87 i 9.42 | 1,252.05
TR % Ui R smaem 65.95 - - - -
Provision held towards depreciation
AT / Total 2,393.01 1,494.87 - 9.42 | 1,252.05
T) X frurees fraer
d) Non-performing Investments:
P— . faita & 2014-15 | faeia ad 2013-14
/ Particulars FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
forerr =t 3 o F arer 9 319.99 319.14
Opening balance as at the beginning of the financial year
1 37 & % SR TR 22616 4.40
Additions during the year since 1st April
I 37afY H T 16.30 3.54
Reductions during the above period
forefter o & TEfet e gh P 529.85 319.99
Closing balance at the close of the financial year
LTI Shel YT 358.35 297.89
Total Provisions held

$) THEITA AUt /T Hiasfaai anl fasht & SfaoT

e) Sale & transfers of securities to /from HTM category:

R o SoF o aAe fEenfReTER S T =g foxia af & <R e gsh ffudt § favit o1 e ¥ e goft

H TR foraT | IUH o STATAT THEICH STt T/HT FHERT T IS STRT TRT g |

During the current FY, the Bank shifted investments in Venture Capital Funds from HTM to AFS category in
accordance with extant RBI guidelines. Except for the above, there was no shifting of investments to/from HTM

category.
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® S / Crore)
= T Wt T Aehe
E: Disclosure of Restructured Accounts
T T JehT > WA wuTTedt & s THUHE -G TR Yot o Sfata =T ki
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism Others Total
7| onfe afezar > ¥a- ¥a- ¥a- ¥a-
S1| Asset Classification > e | s | e | wf | A | e | e || ot | A | o | ome || wfr | O | oee | ome | R | afr | a@
Standard | Sub- | Doubtful | Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |Doubtful | Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total
fomrur U/ Details ¥ Standard Standard Standard Standard
1 |foa 1 1 aner o e |SereRatadt 7 4 1 -2 - - - - -l oer| 28 2 - ar| 4| 2| 3 -l 229
@ (e wem) Eakcief
Restructured Accounts as on | No. of
April 1 of the FY (opening | Borrowers
figures}? e afer | 41595 8427|6897 -| s69.18 - - - - -|1084.14| 7327|6890 -(1,226.31{1,500.00| 157.53| 137.87 ~|1,795.49
Amount
outstanding
Ecucd - 0.41 792 - 8.33 - - - - - 2.87 0.48 0.15 - 3.50 2.87 0.89 8.07 -| 1183
EIECIEN
Provision
thereon
2 ﬁ%ﬁmmm YR - - - - - - - - - - 69 7 3 - 79 69 7 3 - 79
Fresh restructuring during No. of
the year Borrowers
T TR = 1.34 5.94 S 728 S S B - -| 38650 12.68 7.75 - 406.92| 386.50( 14.02( 13.69 -| 41421
Amount
outstanding
ITR = = = = - = - - - - 379 0.10 132 - 5.21 3.79 0.10 1.32 - 5.21
EIECIEN
Provision
thereon
3 |fora o S gl SR 1 -1 - - - - - - - - 4 -3 - - - 5 -4 - - -
T T A kel
Upgradations to restructured | No. of
standard category during Borrowers
the FY et | 1089 (10.89) - - - - - - - | 1650] (@on| (668) - | 2748| 2080)| (6.68) - =
Amount
outstanding
R - - - - - - - - - -l 0.02| (002 = = -l 002] (002 = = -
EIECIEN
Provision
thereon
4 |yeitfer @, o W faw [Sumedtait -3 -3 - - -8 3% -36
% T ¥ IR WA F g
3/ rern srfafcen sifaw | No. of
gk T § R g Borrowers
3% A 99 & SRH H | gy ey | (@1451) (214.51) - -| (59.59) (59.59) | (274.09) (274.09)
TR A FT B FT | Amount
T T R outstanding
Restructured standard f— _ - - -l (079 0.79)[ (0.79) (0.79)
advances which cease to
attract higher  provisioning o
and / or additional risk weight | P0Vision
at the end of the FY and |tereon
hence need not be shown
as restructured  standard
advances at the beginning of
the next FY
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(X &S / Crore)
El gERfad @l et Wehe
F. Disclosure of Restructured Accounts
T AT FRT > e yomredt o siea THUHE - GAE T YUMot o Siata =T ks
Type of Restructuring Under CDR Mechanism Under SME Debt Restructuring Mechanism Others Total
7| nfe aiferzar > ¥a- ¥a- ¥a- Ia-
S1| Asset Classification > e | wees | e | wfr | A | o | e || oty | A | oee | ome | W | afr | @ | oee | ome | W | afr | @
Standard | Sub- |Doubtful | Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |Doubtful| Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |Doubtful | Loss | Total |Standard| Sub- |[Doubtful| Loss | Total
ferrean |/ Details 4 Standard Standard Standard Standard
5 |fora o S e @l | Sumete -4 - 4 - - - - - > i 7 - -l -8 3 2 - -
T AT Eakces
Downgradations of No. of
restructured accounts during | Borrowers
the FY e e | (201.44)  93.84| 107.60 = - = = = = - (@5.05)| (17.82)| 4287 - -| (26.49)| 76.02| 15047 = -
Amount
outstanding
Ecucd -| (041) 0.41 - - - - - - -| (0.25) (0.10) 0.35 - -| (0.25)[ (0.50) 0.76 - -
EIERIEN
Provision
thereon
6 | fora o < Feiefer el | Sumated - - - - - - - - - -l 8 -8 B L B 8 -8 -l #
T ag W e I T
Write-offs  of  restructured | No. of
accounts during the FY Borrowers
st | (143)] (3451)| (1.25) -| (3719 - - = = -| (178.87)| (21.96)| (28.88) -| (220.71)| (180.30) | (56.47)| (30.13) - (266.90)
Amount
outstanding
Ecure - -l (833 - (833) - - - - - (1.03)| (0.23)| (0.28) -| (1.85)| (1.03)| (0.23)| (8.62) - (9.88)
EIERIEN
Provision
thereon
7|3 ad w wae FE E |SuRaEds 1 3 5 - 9 - - - - - tes| 2t 3 -l 222|  1e9| 24| 38 -l 2
TR @ (s Eakrcl
e No. of
Restructured Accounts as on |Borrowers
March 31 of the FY (closing| o iy | 9.46| 134.04| 181.27 -| s - - - - -[122372| 3626 8396 -(1,343.94(1,233.18| 170.30| 265.22 -[1,668.71
figures)* A
mount
outstanding
3T = S - - - - - - - - 4.60 0.24 1.54 - 6.37 4.60 0.24 1.54 = 6.37
EIECIEN
Provision
thereon

AR

T % THET BT BrehT, [T I=aaT Ta€M A1 SITEH R T&l e (3 @mg &) |

*Excluding the figures of Standard Restructured Advances which do not atiract higher provisioning or risk weight (if applicable).

fewuft: whuih 2 & gl ¥ TTHT SURSAIs & 3 19.26 TS T 7/ A Heear (12 @) ST Gfawm & g€ gfs % T 20.06 RIS T T 1.61 FRAS o WM A €1 9 F. 6 | T

T SffeRel # T 232.96 HRIS WA © (29 FOTehat qoT T 9.73 RIS & FGUM), ST foF aget % &9 § disger gREd @l # FHH/aget 2.

Note:

Figures at Sr. No. 2 includes I 19.26 crore of fresh/additional sanction (12 accounts) to existing restructured borrowers and increase in outstanding of ¥ 20.06 crore & provision of X 1.61 crore in respect

of existing borrowers. Figures at Sr. No. 6 includes X 232.96 crore (29 borrower & provisions of ¥ 9.73 crore) which is reduction/recovery from existing restructured accounts by way of recovery.
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o @

SO/ ST T SR T et
Assets sold to Securitisation Company / Reconstruction Company

31 W 2014 T AT T T2 31 A= 2015 T YA 6 o IR S [T & A AfTIAHT / TR Hoet 6l h1e

forditr amifierat et st TS |

There were no financial assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during year
ended March 31, 2015 and during the year ended March 31, 2014.

=

qTeTdr
Liquidity

o uT fagma faa)

upon by the auditors)

AT ST fagylt qar Snfwrat Tor TS sht URuer TWET (ST WG gRT Wehferd T T SN o udtereht ¥

Maturity pattern of rupee and foreign currency assets and liabilities (As compiled by the management and relied

& &S / Crore)
laéﬁmw1a§ﬁar&msaéﬁaﬁmsaﬁﬂm
5 3T 3 o ek | 37T 5 o deh | T 7 a9 aeh |7 99 A 3Nfereh| s
e / Items Less than or More than1 | More than3 | More than 5 More than Total
el year upto 3 years upto5 | yearsupto7 | seven years
years years years

T SAMEAT / Rupee assets 44,444 9,844 5,655 3,049 3,878 66,870
forceft gar nfecat
(g FT) /
Foreign currency assets
(Rupee Equivalent)
=R / Dollar 524 401 1,343 146 1,706 4,120
/T / Euro 498 655 404 118 116 1,791
37 / Yen 198 615 909 1,051 749 3,522
ﬁ,rrg'g'r 3e / GBP 62 - - - - 62
et At / Total Assets 45,726 11,515 8,311 4,364 6,449 76,365
T é-q—d-rq / 23,535 15,682 5,713 6,170 16,039 67,139
Rupee liabilities
foceft 751 ST (Fwqed &)
Foreign currency liabilities
(Rupee Equivalent)
<fe / Dollar 134 224 1,051 63 2,143 3,615
I / Furo 315 640 302 109 232 1,598
7/ Yen 160 615 686 706 1,325 3,492
fafeer TST / GBP N - - B - n
WW / Total Liabilities 24,144 17,161 7,752 7,048 19,739 75,844
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& S / Crore)
. | ufterers aftumd / Operating results
L .
. 9. faitar faita
@ Ut / Particulars
Sr.No FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
&) | i s ff % ufeerd % w9 F @ emr / 875 8.88
a) Interest income as a percentage to average working funds*
@) | sfea wrivie fify % wfaer & w9 R-ws o / 0.33 U2l
b) Non-interest income as a percentage to average working funds
M | o wEia fAfy % afae & w9 F RETeE e e g6) 3.0 3.38
) Operating profit as a percentage to average working funds
(before provisions)
W) | ofiEd SNiEE W AfE (ARTHM & T s ) 3.34 241
d) Return on average assets (before provisions for taxation)
B)/e) | Uf FHHART fae @Y (X FE) / Net Profit per employee (3 crore) 1.34 1.07
* SIS ST W STRIeA HON ¥ agat ¢ T off IMAT 1 / * Interest income includes recoveries out of bad debts
Sl. | 9MET &Y ik Eiry =TS e¢ faf T / Forward Rate Agreements & Interest Rate Swaps
J.
9. faita @ 2014-15| fawia ad 2013-14
fa@wuT / Particulars
Sr.No FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
) | fafr ot &1 et 7o - -
The notional principal of swap agreements
i) | 59 o % TR 3T U4 SR <A W T H T & FROT T ATl I - -
Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill
their obligations under the agreements
i) | g fafwre % mire €9 & fag @ g aifeq ot - -
Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps
V) | 55 fafe= & g arwer Sifew %ot & Fehs0 - -
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
v) | fafrm et @ St e - _
The fair value of the swap book
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TS ST FAl o "ae ¥ faawur /

Details in respect of Interest Rate Derivatives:

faeuT / Particulars

fa=fa o 2014-15
FY 2014-15

fa<fa ad 2013-14
FY 2013-14

T o IR AT T TRt 38 AT <X FE1 bt STHTF qof T (Fer@a-ar) /
Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
undertaken during the year (instrument - wise)

FoT 31 AT, THTAT THEEST 288 AT & Foqal i STAT gt ier (frga-ar) /
Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives
outstanding as on March 31 (instrument - wise)

THTAT ST I T Tl TR 8 AT X el bl A 7 T (Ferg-ai) /

Notional principal amount of exchange traded interest rate derivatives

outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument - wise)

outstanding and not “highly effective” (instrument - wise)

THTIT T ST T T TS I AT T | BT Ak T Wobe [ (ferg-aw) - -

Mark-to-market value of exchange traded interest rate derivatives

3. a\l:t'ﬁﬁ' T @ ST Wehe 1T / Disclosure of risk exposure in derivatives

“h.

wm/ a) Qualitative Disclosures

(i)

o ST ST T <A § I T U AT X AT e SfEw T S=a-Faell FAe T SIS hich Hdl
21 ¥ % oft e 3 et gu7 SuR % ufd Sifew s= & fau €, St e T8 ¥ foheg St afafia €1 S et
1 SR T T 2|

The Bank uses Derivatives for hedging of interest rate and exchange risk arising out of mismatch in the assets

and liabilities. All derivatives undertaken by Bank are for hedging purposes with underlying as Foreign Currency
borrowings, which are not MTM, but only translated. The Bank does not undertake trading in Derivatives.

(if)

3t fga femr-fder o eraieh fifar ard gy freifia wer srHifed o7 St & | e ST oh1 ST gem et §
STIHIC WIS B o G B foRaT ST 7 1 e % W Sl faawuit ot et Sfer <A wary wfufa/are ot < st 21
Internal Control guidelines and accounting policies are framed and approved by the Board. The derivative
structure is undertaken only after approval of the competent authority. The particulars of derivative details
undertaken are also reported to ALCO/Board.

(iii)

S T I Wil ¥ g StEw F frew & ol yonferar freffta w6t €1 S ofce Wiel § € el e-St b1 oo
I TFfA F STTHR HIAT ¢ |

The Bank has put systems in place for mitigating the risk arising out of derivative deals. The Bank follows the
accrual method for accounting the transactions arising out of derivative deals.

(iv)

o Y G T Ak T Wehe wifE, A i ©, o for waw foRd S ¥

Provisions are made for Mark To Market losses, if any, at the year end.
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& &g / Crore)

. ATHATHeR WehetehdUT / b) Quantitative Disclosures

fa<ft o 2014-15 / FY 2014-15

fa<ft ot 2013-14 / FY 2013-14

%Y.

Sr.

No.

THauT / Particulars

U ]

Currency
Derivatives

TS G T
Interest rate
Derivatives

YT g

Currency
Derivatives

TS ST A
Interest rate
Derivatives

1

ERENCIGEIEER: CEERNIN)

Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

(i) o=@ % fIT / For hedging

7,266.58

5,993.93

(i) TR % fAC / For trading

Trehe feafqar & fau fafEm 1]
Marked to Market Positions [1]

(i) I (+) / Asset (+)

(320.76)

537.71

(ii) ST (-) / Liability (-)

FT SIFEH (2) / Credit Exposure [2]

632.17

857.99

1T <X ¥ T HfAT SEed ¥ g o1l J9T
(100* et 01) /

Likely impact of one percentage change in
interest rate (100* PV01)

(i) 9 F@El W]/ On hedging derivatives

172.28

114.49

(if) =AM %ﬂ?ﬁ 9T / On trading derivatives

T o SR TRafed sifdhad Td =aem 100 et 01
Maximum and Minimum of 100* PV01
observed during the year

(i) 999 W / On hedging

174.74/157.98

114.49 / 68.51

(i) MR W / On trading
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( &S / Crore)

WTSEN Uel SATeh{&eRdTY, / Provisions and Contingencies

faaRut / Particulars

fa<itT =t 2014-15
FY 2014-15

fa<ia ad 2013-14
FY 2013-14

ATY- BT WA o =T Y o ST ST T TG T STy, o ST faawor
Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account

a9 T TR / TAdeTE o fore e

Provisions for depreciation/NPI on Investment

54.54

41.98

v fenfea snfeat & fou srerem

Provision towards NPA

(251.55)*

784.09

ITT (SRR &T oTferaf / SFart off onfia §) & o wraem

Provision made towards Income tax (Including Deferred Tax Assets/Liability)

698.11

421.23

3T T Ua STTehfeerdTy, (Squt farawor o e

Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)

(203.72)

* T foomreer el o fore wreem T 232.42 FRIS
* Net of additional NPA provision of ¥ 232.42 crore

o UG / Floating Provisions

faeuT / Particulars

fa<ftT ad 2014-15
FY 2014-15

fa<fTr a 2013-14
FY 2013-14

T T @I T TR 3T

Opening balance in the floating provisions account

2,639.91

T ST 3 T § TR / oRaT 9% & SR forel T =el JTaemT st |7

The quantum of floating provisions made in the accounting year / transferred
from stressed asset provision

3,249.70

AGT-a o I R T STTETT o ShTL0T 3T AT i T

Amount of draw down made during the accounting year

609.79

SR qaem @ § 31 9

Closing balance in the floating provisions account

2,639.91

2,639.91

amraxﬁa’r ¥ SMERA / Draw down from Reserves
foret o oK 39 o o IR eRfafaar & &g Tl amefta Tet &t

There is no draw down from reserves during the current year and previous year.
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foTeRTerdT ShT WEREIRTUT / Disclosure of Complaints
A. TTgeh f9TehTad / Customer Complaints

TereuT / Particulars

fa<fT o 2014-15
FY 2014-15

fa=fTr a 2013-14
FY 2013-14

a9 & W B e fFrerradl st wen

No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

¥ & A U Tt i gl

No. of complaints received during the year

32

52

¥ & SR T frerdt s g

No. of complaints redressed during the year

35

52

a9 & 37 ifad frehmadl @t g

No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

B. a‘l;m"rrvhawraamf—m"mw srfufauta / Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

THauT / Particulars

fa<itT ot 2014-15
FY 2014-15

fa<itT ot 2013-14
FY 2013-14

a9 o T B shEitaa 7 ford T stfufrofat =t g

No. of unimplemented Awards at the beginning of the year

¥ % S feRT TR g M srfuflE w den
No. of Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year

¥ & SR wEifad sfufat o gen

No. of Awards implemented during the year

¥ & IR wEifEd 7 o T stfufold ) gen

No. of unimplemented Awards at the end of the year

aﬁ?m R Shthe A1 T Tehe 1ehTUT / Disclosure of Letters of Comfort (LoCs) issued by banks

Y & ST STRT HHGE T HT fawor, Sfepferd faxiia yoe 3T Ugel % S foRd MU R W o Sfrepfod et fasi

TS % faEor e B
The particulars of Letters of Comfort (LoCs) issued during the year,

cumulative financial obligations under the LoCs issued in the past and outstanding is as under:

assessed financial impact, and assessed

& &S / Crore)
JAT 31 AT 2014 AT TA ¥ & SR W o o SR YA MU | 9T 31 W™ 2015 hY TA
3N Y o FeRTT T 3 Y o ot N T & deTT
LoCs outstanding as on LoCs issued during the | LoCs redeemed during the | LoCs outstanding as on
March 31, 2014 year year March 31, 2015
e 3 Y & T 3 °Y & e 3 Y ; T 3 T &
i T Amount il Amount il Amount it T Amount
No of LoC No of LoC No of LoC No of LoC
4 12.62 = = 2 10.11 2 2.51
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R aa;qraﬁ'q U™ / Bancassurance Business:

g (B o - ¥ o SR S 3R S WARY T e FaHE T R w4

The Bank has not undertaken any bancassurance business during the current year (Previous Year: Nil).
S | Yy Ud SUSH darett ehT Uiy

Unamortised Pension and Gratuity Liabilities

Y9 31T IUSH AT T AR SR T Freh fadid o H U TohTe STAT STHT 9T 3YSTed A SIaT & srHifeher
/T BT XA T =T @ H fofa STl ©, S+7ehT qRie Tt el 8.

The pension and gratuity liability are provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each
financial year based on the projected unit credit method. The acturial gains/ losses are immediately taken to the
profit and loss account and are not amortized.

T | uiftgifues oAt UeRe 1eRTUT / Disclosures on Remuneration:
Tt Ter foehrar ferita T © 370 WIRSfeh oh Heha oo o el €

As SIDBI is a Development Financial Institution, the disclosure on remuneration is not applicable.

U | ufqeeierut / Securitisation:
freer o 3T 5@ o & S o T TEdial NS IS qerTaT el TEl §

The Bank had no Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored during the current year and previous year.

V' | =t gek faft=r / Credit Default Swaps
o %7 T fafg & ToreRr T FHar

The Bank does not deal in credit default swaps.

g & STSIMIAR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T feier 1 TRt Ui & T8N / As per our report of even date

FHd T TS AR . S, e . T SERICANCIE)
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.J. Lalwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
RECARCICICaTY T-IE FHTuTee fGeTR 3Ty UE yaY v
Chartered Accountants Country Head Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director
TR : 1015698 (Frfi < aféenan)
FRN. : 101569W (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
TR STt / Darshit Doshi
TR / Partner
T §. / M. No. : 133755

A 37ETeT / Anil Agrawal ). THEEA / R. Ramachandran
g‘ras‘, 1=|'s£ 28,2015 f1eeT / Director f1e3T / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015

31 WTd, 2015 ShY UTW 94 <hT Tehel HaTe faawor
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015

)

31 W, 2014 a7 / Particulars 31 W, 2015 31 W, 2015
March 31 2014 March 31 2015 March 31 2015
1. uftaer nfafataEt & Terdl narg
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1539,49,70,687 T W % SR % g Free ey 2115,23,69,380
Net Profit before tax as per P & L Account
fr=fafed & faw gumsT / Adjustments for :
11,82,74,218 T / Depreciation 13,55,74,500
41,97,88,782 ﬁa'g'h' T fraer B * fa'q ST 54,54,02,483
Provision for net depreciation in investments
605,74,79,501 TR T e W & M) (119,30,27,645)
Provisions made (net of write back)
(80,65,45,244) o faset & @y (Fraen) (159,19,75,700)
Profit on sale of investments (net)
(17,27,26,300) 73Tt T T ST / Dividend Received on Investments (18,25,59,111) (228,65,85,473)
2101,12,41,644 | ufcgrerdt & ST Tehet 1886,57,83,907
Cash generated from operations
(afCae SNt o et # ot ¥ Tew)
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)
frafafed § frae oftad™ gq FumsH
Adjustments for net changes in :
(351,84,95,873) HTe] &N / Current assets 147,93,48,261
7,59,87,970 =T I / Current liabilities 110,27,14,057
1390,83,70,439 fafrgr fa<t / Bills of Exchange 775,79,08,839

(7218,81,99,997) 0T TS 3 / Loans & Advances 5725,68,49,021

57688749475 | qigt g FUIH AT 3T IUA § Frae mifwrat (4945,15,86,426)
Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures & other borrowings
(676,60,82,486) | s ST / Deposits received (3981,44,69,425)

(1079,96,70,472) (2166,92,40,673)
1021,15,71,172 (280,34,56,766)
(447,40,86,098) | %% arerarft / Payment of Tax (603,28,09,971) (603,28,09,971)

573,74,85,074 | wfterer nfafafet @ faet Tt TaE (883,62,66,737)
Net Cash flow from operating Activities
2. frayr wfafafiry @ Tt ware
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(8,17,68,805) foR Rl &7 e (F9)/fawa (25,01,81,961)
Net (Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets
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31 91, 2015 hl THI a9 T Aohet JaTe faewor

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015
)

31 WTH, 2014 e rticlars 31 T, 2015 31 T, 2015
March 31 2014 March 31 2015 March 31 2015
(39,88,64,098) el &1 fraet (9)/fasra/airem 122,18,72,668
Net (Purchase)/sale/redemption of Investments
17,27,26,300 S T g T 18,25,59,111
Dividend Received on Investments
(30,79,06,603) FrdreT TIfeferereit s foreret wemet 115,42,49,818

Net cash used in Investing Activities

3. Tawumur wfafafe=y ¥ Jendt uaE

Cash flow from Financing Activities

(130,98,21,008) Tt TRRT ¥ AT TF ATHIET T FT (130,98,21,008)
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend

(130,98,21,008) ot fafafemt & woe e TEet (130,98,21,008)
Net cash used in F\inancing Activities

411,97,57,463 4. qaﬁﬁ' qa' :ﬁﬁ' W ﬁ- ﬁaﬁ' W/(ﬁ) (899,18,37,927)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1515,74,70338 | 5. ayafer 3 qRy ¥ 7o) TF Bt TG 1927,72,27,801
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period

1927,72,27,801 | ¢ arafy o W W T TS TR TGS 1028,53,89,874

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period

fewuft : Tohel yaTR foeroT IRAT TG TETER TR (STEHTSTE) 51T SR T TH-3 (S9ifem) ‘eohel yame faeror # fafafdy
3 fafy & STgER HaR feam T |

Note : Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in AS-3 (Revised) ‘Cash Flow
Statement” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT)

qﬁﬂj’f ﬁ'@[#ﬂ"‘l’ﬁ / Significant Accounting Policies XV
o fTWRUT / Notes to Accounts XVI

. dT€ % SACTMIER / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T feie 1 TRt Rard & 3JER / As per our report of even date

Fd I TS TR . . ArEr e L] gt ferarst
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.J. Lalwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
RECARGICICaTY T FTuTee fGeTR 3Ty UF yaY v
Chartered Accountants Country Head Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director
TR : 1015695 (Frfi < aféenan)
FRN. : 101569W (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
=f¥fa <¥ft / Darshit Doshi
TIEIEK / Partner
T §. / M. No. : 133755

A 37ETe / Anil Agrawal . T / R. Ramachandran
Hag, ¥ 28,2015 fIS¥TF / Director A< / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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v dse
TR oY SanT faehta deh
Tufera faita faawot @
Feifera frard
T YRAT oY SE IR Sk (9) qOm gEeR!
e 9 TEAnt wEmell (3, 3HF e W
Tear T faeet T’ a9 ®) % 31 Y 2015
T % Yord fae faaRo o amw-=if & wAfwd
fgemor qem 31 WE 2015 ® GEIG AW o GHIGA
TS TaTE faeRr SR AUl oREn-HifeEr aer ot

e o (CgRferd foda faewor” &t @@

T Y R

wHfeha foxiter faaiuni o Hag ® wa=E @0
I

T F wAfw fa e, S e e
3T FHRRT T JaTe W YRG H AW qR W A
STRT @] TRaTeh Weh! o STER T==it 7R 3fer fefa
T 3T Tl oF IR H STeHT- 3T oy foawor qen
371 foiiar oA o 3MUR W 37 faxiia faaroit &1 dam
F % AU g 7 oA IR 7| 3 WA
¥ dcF it MfEE T GRAT F AU @i & T
AfieRg TET ST, et 9 o ifatHaarett i

SET-u{igeh! el T / Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors” Report
To
The Board of Directors

Small Industries Development Bank of India

Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements

We have audited the
consolidated financial

accompanying
of Small
Industries Development Bank of India (“the

statements

Bank”) and its subsidiaries and associates (the
Bank, its subsidiaries and associates constitute
“the Group”) as on March 31, 2015 which
comprises the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2015, and the consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss and consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies
information  (“the

and other explanatory

consolidated financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements on the basis of separate financial
statements and other financial information
regarding components that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the
applicable Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of

adequate accounting records for safeguarding
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T 3T ST T AT, SYIH @ik Afaai ot
T S I, Syt dor faqeamr fof dor
STTA ST T U ST ford oy T ST,
foranfaa o gt e off I €, S eraieR
AfrerEl H Talwar R WUl T gfE T gumEgel
Tk § HTH T & 3R S T faxir fyamont =1 AR
T I TEIATHOT ST ¢fE § IR, S gt i
3foa ffa aofa & Jor srareEt & wRor A Jfaawr
T qereash fear e ¥ e &, 3% ST veel
T T, ST ST g & g 7 gufed faxia
fHaRoT TR &7 & 29T ¥ R B |

HET-TeeR! ahT ST
TART S 39 THfea foxitg faawon w 13 =%
FHAT © ST BART SET- T 9T ST B

THA ST IET-TRIET RS Tel @b S g1
SR TRET-TeT-Heh! o STTET GUF T 7 | 3T HART
¥ omifer € T v Afaeh srEmell T U Y IR
TRET-TEET T AT 9 F1ET 56 FohR R for STed
BT ST Teh T foefter fefemor qeamien e e ¥ geh
Tl

T@-IUGT o T qHIhd fad faexon | it
AT Fehedl % AR H orEr-wien fawges wHoT ure
T T HfhATST hT UGS Teal €| T TS AfhATE
e & ol W i et €)1 e wEfed
foxia foaeon # orEr-ugt ¥ or¥ar Ifaawr qeATHe
faear-wem & Sifew & g o wfed g1 3
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of the assets of the Bank and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies, making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of
internal controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Bank’s management,

as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material
misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures
to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend
including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error. In making those

on the auditor’s judgment,
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SfEHt T AT Hd GHT AE-TIEE S gRT

AR foxiia faeRor TR e qor 3faa SRR
F fE ¥ UTEfTE ofAfie fEEw W fAER & €,
MR T ET-Hfehamd. TR St S S S gRfefaEt
% foau 3Iuge w1 g T 32T I® T <A1 R
T o d # foig Rofét ® wafw stafe o
foroT oY JoTelt R ¥ Fre S e H afteraTd
qETTeehal § A1 Tl | o@-Taen § I o
Hfgt & ITgHA IR Sk F geed I U M
AT YT & e 3 guferd faxi faawott &
U 9T T Yo HEAT off Tt 7

T fagw ? fF 7o ST oEr-wier g e fee
T o o wE-wiget T N fqu e A
i af=se # Sfeafad ot R & o/uR wrEr-
T % ST T AT R €, F T € K At
foeitar foawor o Tay # oraT-oaeT Sadt FART ¥R %
AT ST STTHR J o € |

HaeT

TAR A9 & 3T TuRT Sifersham goAr e wH iU M
WERT F FIER IR @ik A9 e Mo
ey’ Yie af=se # Sfifed ©, 9ereh ta gear
Trenstt o fafye fawita foexor er o fodfta g= 1 &
oY | 3T TEr-wWieet & Rud & FeAeR, gafed
foeftar foaRor wRa # 9WeIa: 99 e fa o
ITEY frefafad =t g= R 3 fefa g 2

i) TE % HH-IST i FAT 319 2015 & FHHA

(=N

I o A |

SET-u{igeh! el T / Auditors’ Report

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the Bank’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
whether the Bank has in place an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. An audit also include evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Bank’s management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their report referred to in
the ‘Other Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statement.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us and on consideration of the report
of the other auditor on separate financial
statements and on other financial information
of the subsidiaries and associates, as mentioned
in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph below, the
Consolidated Financial Statements give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

i) in the case of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as
at 31°t March 2015,
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ii) 3 ARI@ ® G 99 & AU 9HE ok A 5
faT gt emv-g1fT @ faewor o At |

iii) 3T ARG P T ¥ & AT T8 o Tehal HaTe
o T Fafera Terdl waTe forawor & Amer |

CRISIERCLER]
&0 FrafafEd ot 3T &I 375y 1 B-

%) 6 Fean GESH & T-FHhA o Had H g
TGl T IFIAY 1 HT T T 4@ W 4%,
ST wame & SgaR frael w6t i aget 9
T T oI ST ot qof grerer fear T €

@) 7 Gedn’ TS & I-gHeT & Tad H TR
ol o TEY [ &1 fIwolt T 47 X 4 W, S
JIE & ITIUR WEE Heeh Tel § 3 gufen
i o T 3T e &Y o T 2

TH UAA & @Y § gAR Ad Rl his
TS T 2

3T A

T 2 TR GRSl o faxia foexvy/fasdta ge i
AET-TTT /T 1| 31 "G 2015 ST GAG a9 F 5T
faetar fqemor & T 42,12,93,713/- & T &I,
3 16,84,37,998/- T FA ToTEd 3R T 48,01,763/-
&1 faa Tt yae 3P 7, S wAfEa foxia faewo
3 foar T 7| T U weAnt g & fade faey
fodta gam =t ff oEr-Ther T/ oW, e 31
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ii) in the case of the Consolidated Statement
of Profit & Loss Account, of the profits of
the Group for the year ended on that date,

iii) In the case of Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, of the cash flows of the Group
for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

a) Note nos 4B and 4D of Annexure I to
Consolidated Accounts with regard to non-
consolidation of 6 associates wherein as per
the management the carrying amount of
the investments are not realisable and are
fully provided for.

b) Note nos 4C and 4D of Annexure I to
Consolidated Accounts with regard to non-
consolidation of 7 associates, as in view of
the management these are not significant
components and hence not considered for
consolidation.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this
matter

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/
financial information of the 2 subsidiaries,
whose financial statements reflect total assets
of ¥ 42,12,93,713/- as at March 31, 2015, total
revenue of ¥ 16,84,37,998/- and net cash flows
amounting to X 48,01,763/- for the year then
ended, as in the
financial statements. We also did not audit the
financial statements/financial information of the
1 associate in whose Group’s share of net loss
amounting to X 4,60,900/- for the year ended

considered consolidated
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AT 2015 ST AT 9§ H G H o g0 7 few
T 4,60,900/- T AT, ST A 2014 H GEW ITH
orar-wife faxia fgawor @ smenfia o, o o™y
Tafera o foewor & form wn 81 ¥ foxitg foawor @
37 e Qe o7 orET-Tee ST oreT-WITE ¥,
et R wemem ¥ 7% weM @ ], 3% el q%
TEES TF TEAn GRS % gey H gwifed Tt
3R JehaAt T Tl 7, YR faxiia faoRor & Tarer &
TR T 3 TRt fd yofeer gt erar-udeent st
frurd X & amenfia 7

TaUT BRI KT T 9ed 9 % fawig efesi/
YO HT THAT T@T-WIET T8 w1 31 ™ 2015 W
qar a o fou S wer o faeE sfies /e
¥ 11,07,672/- 1 T &, I[F § @ F Fa

TS a7 T 5,00,000/- ST Tohel JaT8 <A §, ST
Fifeg faxig faawont & faar 0 81 wfea faxdia
fgemor % 31 AF 2015 &1 9O 99 * A€ IR H
T 2,24,15,849/- &1 faa oy @1 fewm o wnfie
foram T, ST 3 ean geenstt & waw ¥ gAfed
foetar foeor # form man €, fomer faxita e/ foxita
I F T - T H T | I e e
foriar e TR-orar-wifea § 3R &5 Jawe 3R e
fehy T € SR STET A ST eI Uo Wedn weenad
% G & guTfed TR X qohal T Gay ¥, FfRa
o faoRor & oy & gORt @ SR ekt Rurd
Qe T8 TR-erEr-wifea e faeo/fasa geem =
eTRa ©1 AT ITYF TEEE TE AT Teenst i
TRGT-TET Bl TS Bt O STk YRUTHEEYT J27 31 075

SET-u{igeh! el T / Auditors’ Report

March 31, 2015, based on its audited financial
statement for the year ended March 2014,
as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and other
financial information have been audited by
other auditor whose report has been furnished
to us by the Management, and our opinion
and our report on the consolidated financial
statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and associate, is based solely on the
report of the other auditors.

We did not audit the financial data/information
of the 1 subsidiary furnished by the
management, whose financial data/information
reflect total assets of I 11,07,672/- as at March
31, 2015, total Revenue of ¥ Nil and net Cash
flows amounting to X 5,00,000/- for the year
then ended, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The Consolidated financial
statement also include the Group’s share
of net profit of X 2,24,15,849/- for the year
ended March 31, 2015, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of 3
associates, whose financial statements/ financial
information has not been audited by us. The
financial statement/ financial information are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion and our report
on the consolidated financial statement, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiary and
associates, is based solely on such unaudited
financial statement / financial information. We
are unable to comment upon resultant impact,
if any, on the Group’s share of profit as at
March 31, 2015, had the aforesaid subsidiary
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TET-Utereht aht fUd / Auditors’ Report
2015 99E o @MY o 68 W T IWE TS BT, T
T R oot e # orgwef €1 Rt T H W yae

TR T USH H TE g 9 WESRU o TR ¥
feriter feraroT/foitar gomT wge & forg srefnfive 7= €1

THford foxiia faeror | A T, TR AET- W]
3N fPT T wE g S Ul i yeRM gN
gifoTa forar faaeor/foda =T W gAr fiear &
T T 39 Gy ¥ qrEfTer T |

3= fafues wd faframes samett ¥ dafua e

1. ¥ & Jere T T o fFavr urds gt
AGHN T FRT SR @i A9a (TTE) 21,
“grfeRd faxia foaxor”’, or@ied 7@ (TTE) 23,
‘g gerelt # fravt & fau wafea o
foaRuT & Tr@ich’ T SUATTET AT Sk, IHAT
e 3T Hedrt weenel & guh-goe faxig
feraolt & SR 9T AR fhT B |

2. T 9% GAE GO 3R WEIRIT Wi X m
fefr ¥, ST TART gartew SRt oK fagrg &
3TTIR 374 THferd faxia foawor &6t erar-wiie
F ILIT T AEYIF I I T 3% HaATISHR
TR R |

3. TURI YE H, Sl q% ITYth wHfehd faa faexor
TR T & o K Sqfed @rar-afedl s i

166

and associates been audited. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial
information are not

statements /financial

material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statement is not qualified in respect of this
matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the reports of the other auditors and
the financial statements / financial information
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements
We report that:
1. The consolidated financial statements

have been prepared by the Bank’s
Management in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standards (AS)
21, “Consolidated Financial Statements”,
Accounting Standards (AS) 23, “Accounting
for Investments in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements” issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in India and on
basis of the separate financial statements of

the Bank, its subsidiaries and associates.

2. We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations, which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit
of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements and have found them to be
satisfactory.

3. In our opinion, proper books of account
as required by law relating to preparation
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Y 3 o TREl-TigeRt i Ul & war s
2, I G- TAR A Geell BT F STIER
ITRTA ST aT-ae Tl TE B

79 frd o gafya gufera qomos, gufed omy-
T @rar fqeror qeor wAfeha el yare faewor
HfeRe faea fFaRoT GaR o o 3EYT § T@ TS
GraT-afedl & FTET T |

TN [ W, I wHfehd faxia faewor @ng

GTeh HehT o 3TTET B |

SET-u{igeh! el T / Auditors’ Report

of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statement have been kept so far as it
appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with Books of Account
maintained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards.

For Borkar & Muzumdar
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.101569W

P AR TE THER
e T@ThR
TH TSeRLoT §. 1015698

=foTa ereht Darshit Doshi

ESIEALY Partner
[T 9. 133755 Membership No. 133755

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 28, 2015

M JeR
e 28 T 2015
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31 'Fﬂ?f, 2015 &7 FHfET qaT 9= / Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

W - 11 / Appendix - II

31 Tlﬁi‘, 2015 W'H'ﬁ'l%lﬁ‘gﬂ'—r - 0 / Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

it wel dand 31 T, 2015 31 9T, 2014
CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES SCHEDULES March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
liv-ﬁ' / Capital I 450,00,00,000 450,00,00,000
Rferfaan, arfeem 3 faferr / II 9381,13,60,325 8090,14,30,165
Reserves, Surplus and Funds

ST / Deposits I 13446,81,67,994 17428,26,37,419
YR / Borrowings v 30672,87,29,963 35618,03,16,387
3T TIAT UF WG / Other Liabilities and \ 6836,06,06,711 6273,59,98,347
Provisions

SRR T I / Deferred Tax Liability 122,51,33,111 -
T[T / Total 60909,39,98,104 67860,03,82,318
smfwrat / ASSETS

el Td Sk TS / Cash and Bank Balances VI 1046,44,60,399 1943,69,97,167
9997 / Investments VII 2962,78,33,463 2977,89,89,991
ST T& S / Loans & Advances VIII 55342,59,38,200 61270,69,95,084
O 3TET / Fixed Assets IX 206,21,60,820 194,76,96,169
3T AT / Other Assets X 1351,36,05,222 1472,97,03,907
T / Total 60909,39,98,104 67860,03,82,318
STHTEI 27TE / Contingent Liabilities XI 7640,76,79,911 6519,35,87,953

HeaqUl AR fifaat qer we-faguiat (STga 1)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)
ECELIERIGRERECI G CERC) %1/ The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet.

‘ TS % STSIMIER / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T e & AR R o 319N / As per our report of even date
SICEIR)

Fd IHT TE AASR 7. S . GERIRANCIE]]
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.%:;Falwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
SECESICICIN T EAREIRCD T T Ty

Chartered Accountants Executive Director

THINTT : 1015698<g
FRN. : 101569W

2f¥fd e / Darshit Doshi
HIEER / Partner

. 9. / M. No. : 133755

Country Head Chairman & Managing Director

(Corporate Accounts Vertical)

. A AT / Anil Agrawal AN, THET / R. Ramachandran
333‘, E:E) 28,2015 2T / Director 1291 / Director
Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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31 ‘Tﬁf, 2015 o1 U IY T ATH-TI @I / Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

31 WM, 2015 o GHIG &Y 1 oY B @l
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

®

ST / INCOME ffeat | 3190, 2015 | 31 W, 2014
SCHEDULES March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014

e TS 2T / Interest and Discount XII 5498,92,61,930 5620,08,21,584
3T 3 / Other Income XIII 254,64,25,750 200,43,31,887
AT / Total 5753,56,87,680 | 5820,51,53,471
a9 / EXPENDITURE
TS U9 fowi% T4 / Interest & Financial charges 3373,72,34,139 |  3337,09,12,099
IR & / Operating Expenses X1V 455,94,83,423 314,50,24,235
T T 3Teh{&Heh 99 / Provisions & Contingencies (197,01,25,162) 622,34,50,042
FRT / Total 3632,65,92,400 |  4273,93,86,376
hT ‘Ié' Y / Profit before Tax 2120,90,95,280 1546,57,67,095
3FHT & AT MM / Provision for Income Tax 514,51,20,017 605,89,83,886
SR 3T T [(STR)/ ()] 186,54,43,928 |  (181,05,81,963)
Deferred Tax Adjustment [(Asset) / Liability]
e e A e e T e 2,19,54,949 1,91,79,124
Share of earning/(loss) in associates
T 9T Y / Profit after Tax 1422,04,86,284 1123,65,44,296
WY 3T / Profit brought forward 53,92,84,228 47,01,05,408
hel oY / (BTFT) / Total Profit / (Loss) 1475,97,70,512 1170,66,49,704
faf@nT / Appropriations
I STRFGRT # 3ART / Transfer to General Reserve 1190,60,49,385 935,66,00,000
R I, 1961 FT ¥RT 36 (1) (viii) & 3favia fommy smfafa & 80,00,00,000 80,00,00,000

AN /

Transfer to Special reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961
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31 A4, 2015 T THT G T ATH-BT @I / Consolidated Profit & Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2015

sggfeat | 319, 2015 | 31 W, 2014

/ INCOME SCHEDULES March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014

3 / Others

P S TgT STRfiafert i / 591,56,175 | (32,18,01,399)

Transfer to Investment Fluctuation Reserve

W% SHeT iy 7 AR / Transfer to Staff Welfare Fund 2,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
IRT I AT / Dividend on Shares 112,50,00,000 112,50,00,000
FATHIRT T &Y / Tax on Dividend 23,65,21,279 19,75,66,875
TTY-BT @ T ST STy / 61,30,43,673 53,92,84,228
Surplus in Profit & Loss account carried forward

AT / Total 1475,97,70,512 1170,66,49,704
HeAYd / Jrafafyd ufq IR TS / Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share 31.60 24.97

HEEQU e At qe oot (31ge 1)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)

I ST - TG T Al 3T

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account.

1S & 3MSIMIAR / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T e & AR R o 39N / As per our report of even date

EAUCIETRUCR:S LEATY . . ArEE . A gafa farsit
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR UJ. Lalwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
SECRSICIETL - SHrfuTereh fewTen 37e7e U Yy frevren
Chartered Accountants Country Head Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director
TFRT : 101569TT] (Frfir < aféemar)
FRN. : 101569W (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
Ef¥fd ST / Darshit Doshi
TEIER / Partner
TH. ¥. / M. No. : 133755

A AT / Anil Agrawal V. THEET / R. Ramachandran
e, 78 28,2015 ¥ / Director ¥ / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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31 ‘Tﬁf, 2015 & gafemd qaT-9= E=a W’T / Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

YSit T& QFATE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 W, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 WT, 2014
March 31, 2014

Yt / SCHEDULE I:

GSft / Capital

(%) Wferehd USH / (a) Authorized Capital

- TSt I OGSt @ 10/-9f@ ¥ER H T F 75,00,00,000 IEGET IRR)
Equity Share Capital (75,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each)

750,00,00,000

750,00,00,000

- Y IR OST R 10/- ST TR H S H 25,00,00,000 IET SRR )
Preference Share Capital (25,00,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each)

250,00,00,000

250,00,00,000

(@) SR, e S Terar ST /
(b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital :

- Tt TR S  10/- Hfq IR H ST H 45,00,00,000 T IER)
Equity Share Capital (45,00,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each)

450,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

- YW IRX GST / - Preference Share Capital

AT / Total

450,00,00,000

450,00,00,000

YT / SCHEDULE II:

srfafaat, sifersiw @it fferet / Reserves, Surplus and Funds

&F) SFARTAT / A) Reserves

i) W RAFTAT / General Reserve

- 37 ¥ / Opening Balance

6468,17,73,193

5532,52,13,526

-9 o TR IREq / Additions during the year

1190,10,06,429

935,65,59,667

- 34 & TR ITART / Utilisations during the year

-gfa o/ Closing Balance

7658,27,79,622

6468,17,73,193

i) Ty sfafat / Specific Reserves

%) f7a3T 3IRFfT / a) Investment Reserve

- 37 ¥ / Opening Balance

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

- % TR UREET / Additions during the year

- a9 & TRM ITART / Utilisations during the year

5 sﬁr:ﬁer / Closing Balance
g

55,19,63,645

55,19,63,645

Q) et AR, 196157 a1 36 (1)(viii) & FaR e w@ gifea favw sttt

b) Special Reserve created and maintained u/s 36 (1) (viii) of The Income Tax Act, 1961

- AT I/ Opening Balance

1197,00,00,000

11,17,00,00,000

- 9% & SR IR&EA / Additions during the year

80,00,00,000

80,00,00,000

- 9% & SN ST / Utilisations during the year

= sﬁrs‘m / Closing Balance
g

1277,00,00,000

1197,00,00,000
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31 ":I'Ff, 2015 & THfd qAT-9 ) W / Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

Yt Td 391G / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

31 W, 2015
March 31, 2015

31 W, 2014
March 31, 2014

M) I ARTATET / ¢) Other Reserves

i) et 34 {-9eTd AR / Investment Fluctuation Reserve

- Y Y / Opening Balance 46,64,91,955 78,82,93,354
- 94 & SR IR&HT / Additions during the year 591,56,175
- a4 & TRM ITART / Utilisations during the year 32,18,01,399
R gﬁrﬁq / Closing Balance 52,56,48,130 46,64,91,955
(@) o9 i g @ ¥ rfugia / B) Surplus in Profit and Loss account 61,30,43,673 53,92,84,228
(mfafeEt / ©) Funds
) TP gfFadt ffir / a) National Equity Fund
- Y Y / Opening Balance 247,11,20,023 243,22,48,570
- 9 o G UREEH/Ifqer@d / Additions / Write back during the year 6,97,48,250 3,88,71,453
- a4 % R ITAMT / Utilisations during the year - B
- sﬁ.[-ﬁq / Closing Balance 254,08,68,273 247,11,20,023
@) ®Ih el (1 / b) Staff Welfare Fund
_ 3% 1% / Opening Balance 22,07,97,120 22,63,72,265
- 99 % G REET / Additions during the year 2,00,00,000 1,00,00,000
- a4 & SRM ITAMT / Utilisations during the year 1,37,40,138 1,55,75,145
- 2R 919 / Closing Balance 22,70,56,982 22,07,97,120
M) 3/ ¢) Others - i
T / Total 9381,13,60,325 |  8090,14,30,165
{9l / SCHEDULE III
ST / Deposits
h) |G ST/ A) Fixed Deposits 1157,69,17,994 928,26,37,419
@) dah! ¥ / B) From Banks
&) g8 T qa[ T I q'q'fé'ﬁ' fafyr a,; 3:|'a1'f(-|‘ 10289,12,50,000 15000,00,00,000
a) Under MSME Refinance Fund
©) T Y qa' T ITF SIRET Isir [T & 37ava 1500,00,00,000 1000,00,00,000
b) Under MSME Risk Capital Fund
M) o - el ol et e F S Y 500,00,00,000 500,00,00,000
) Others -From Foreign & Private Sector Banks
IU-TNT (@) / Subtotal (B) 12289,12,50,000 | 16500,00,00,000
T / Total 13446,81,67,994 | 17428,26,37,419
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31 IITEf, 2015 & THfed qAT-9 ) W’*ﬁ / Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

)

oft T M / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES RS | oy e
ST / SCHEDULE IV
IUREAT / BORROWINGS
I) YRA ¥ SUIRAT / Borrowings in India
1. 9T fsd d ¢ / From Reserve Bank of India K 5000,00,00,000
2. YR WEHR ¥ / From Government of India 3084,04,85,859 3161,79,92,413
(YRT THR gRT 3ET T 2,172.80 FS &F A0S Figd)
(including Bonds subscribed by GOI of X 2,172.80 crore)
3. g TE fed=X / Bonds & Debentures 10443,60,00,000 13066,60,00,000
4. 39 Erdl ¥ / From Other Sources
- SfOTfS¥e ¥ / Commercial Paper 6625,00,00,000 3650,00,00,000
- STHT ¥H10T 99 / Certificate of Deposits - -
- bt ¥ WER %07 / Term Loans from Banks 887,79,89,157 905,17,89,999
- gty g1 IYIRAT / Term Money Borrowings C B
_ 319 / Others 398,77,06,490 49,93,25,568
IU-FRT / Subtotal (I) 21439,21,81,506 | 25833,51,07,980
1) YA ¥ aregd Senar / Borrowings outside India
() SRS, S / (a) KFW, Germany 1207,58,56,266 1314,99,52,598
(@) ST TTCITAS -SRI TSIE (STEeT) 4264,85,08,020 4277,84,46,222
(b) Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)
() SMETHTE!, TF / (c) IFAD, Rome 128,75,19,696 128,37,60,894
) forg 9 / (d) World Bank 3160,27,74,690 3503,91,84,661
(8) 3 / (e) Others 472,18,89,785 559,38,64,032
SU-TNT / Subtotal (II) 9233,65,48,457 9784,52,08,407
AT / Total (I & IT) 30672,87,29,963 | 35618,03,16,387
S / SCHEDULE V
T ﬁ?J?ITE d UTAAT / Other Liabilities and Provisions:
IUfST ST / Interest Accrued 301,45,42,566 362,34,55,627
I (YT Ffed) / Others (including provisions) 4639,93,01,378 4180,50,32,807
faeeft Tl X AR-TTelq %’g’ Y / Provisions for Exchange Rate Fluctuation 1443,14,85,860 1283,11,87,410
faelt 951 <X SAR-wemE ¥ EuE / 315,37,55,628 315,37,55,628
Contingent provisions against standard assets
e STEET & T fFT U eTefee ey 136,15,21,279 132,25,66,875
Proposed Dividend (including tax on dividend)
AT / Total 6836,06,06,711 6273,59,98,347

173




qTfier UfqaeT 2014-15

AR g SanT faehm deh
SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA

31 ":I'Ff, 2015 & THfd qAT-9 ) W / Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015

®)

4Sf G 2 / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES iy eI et ¥ 2014
snferar / ASSETS
ST / SCHEDULE VI
ECT | AT dF A9 / Cash & Bank Balances
1. B T o AR o e o 692473 7,06,969
Cash in Hand & Balances with Reserve Bank of India
2. 3 i & G / Balances with Other Banks B -
(%) 9T U / (a) In India
i) EIT(’;[@'Iﬁ # / in current accounts 18,00,04,333 36,70,55,087
ii) 37 787 @Al & / in other deposit accounts 121,77,07,232 363,42,95,947
(@) 9RA o 1T / (b) Outside India
i) =T @ ¥ / in current accounts 21,61,73,877 8,63,47,523
i) 3T ST @Al & / in other deposit accounts 884,98,82,484 1534,85,91,641
T / Total 1046,44,60,399 1943,69,97,167
3YET / SCHEDULE VII
79T / Investments
[STEETHT ST AT / net of provisions]
%) TSRS IR / A) Treasury operations
1. %% IR U9 WHFRT T g-[%fqiﬁﬂ-f 917,02,67,984 378,83,78,095
Securities of Central and State Governments
2. et SR faits GEail & T / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 23,95,12,137 23,95,12,137
3. ¥t i fata geenefi & Eiuec) 3 fesed 531,10,90,288 556,38,92,000
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
4. 3t gfreHl & ©iF, IRK, Eluec) 3 feaed 247,81,38,842 250,24,16,342
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
5. mEfy foe 3‘—r‘ﬁ'—rr§ FISHT / Short Term Bills Rediscounting Scheme - [
6. 3T / Others 325,00,00,000 825,44,66,583
IU-IANT () / Subtotal (A) 2044,90,09,251 2034,86,65,157
W) a9 Ufiare / B) Business Operations
1. ST 3fiX e Feemsii % ¥ / Shares of Banks & Financial Institutions 60,92,61,440 62,56,61,440
2. i wa fasivr geernsd & ey 3 feaed 5,26,77,312 5,26,77,321
Bonds & Debentures of Banks & Financial Institutions
3. it il & ©iF, IRK, EluEc) I feaed 502,26,43,504 607,02,49,879
Stocks, Shares, bonds & Debentures of Industrial Concerns
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Yt U ATE / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES 15’[;::?3’ 1’2 g(l)fs 131;::21,23(1):4
4. ETES GUSAT | 9997 / Investment in Subsidiaries - -
5 319 / Others 349,42,41,956 268,17,36,194
IU-TNT (@) / Subtotal (B) 917,88,24,212 943,03,24,834
0T (@+7) / Total (A+B) 2962,78,33,463 |  2977,89,89,991
YT / SCHEDULE VIIIT
FUT TS AUT / Loans & Advances
PIERIERCD aT1g / [Net of Provisions]
&) frafeafea =t E’-r%? / A) Refinance to
- S Tg faxit ¥t / Banks and Financial Institutions 38098,83,05,725 40383,09,61,127
- 3779 ot TEMT / Micro Finance Institutions 1602,98,74,150 1169,52,05,368
-3 S fae SR/ NBEC 4054,29,66,100 |  4749,13,22,100
- foeit &t gA4E / Bills Rediscounted - 2956,00,00,000
- 37 (GHTET Her™d) / Others ( Resource Support) - -
IT-IANT (&F) / Subtotal (A) 43756,11,45,975 49257,74,88,595
@) UIY /T / B) Direct Loans
ST TE S/ Loans and Advances 9501,86,05,887 |  9144,11,95,442
-1 97 ASHT / Receivable Finance Scheme 2082,89,98,468 2841,83,77,451
- A T et / Bills Discounted 1,71,87,870 26,99,33,596
IT-IANT (@) / Subtotal (B) 11586,47,92,225 | 12012,95,06,489
TN (F+7F) / Total (A+B) 55342,59,38,200 | 61270,69,95,084
YT / SCHEDULE IX
T enfw™t / Fixed Assets
[TeIg T ¥eTehT / [Net of Depreciation]
1. UfEY / Premises 204,62,60,684 192,70,47,584
2. 3 / Others 1,59,00,136 2,06,48,585
ART / Total 206,21,60,820 194,76,96,169
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31 W, 2015 31 9T, 2014

@Qﬂ'ﬁ“ﬂ?ﬂl{ / CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

SYET / SCHEDULE X

3= SEET / Other Assets:

3fad &1 / Accrued Interest 675,30,55,345 705,16,93,538
ST FHT (T o a1E) / Advance Tax (Net of provision) 193,41,63,275 103,40,26,063
3T 158,36,22,667 543,26,26,142
Others

=7 f5r| I T a@‘ T A TR ST TR / Expenditure to the extent not written off 324,27,63,935 121,13,58,164
IR / Total 1351,36,05,222 |  1472,97,03,907

St / SCHEDULE XI
Mok {EIeh TIATE / Contingent Liabilities

i) ¥ W T <@, 5% %07 T8 7 T R 212,99,95,882 135,28,35,372
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts

i) TREET / ARE-TE % HeeEy 134,78,28,441 337,45,25,203
On account of Guarantees / Letters of Credit

iif) AT HfeeTsll & werEwy 26,40,40,369 52,69,03,816

On account of Forward Contracts

iv) TTHERT Ffaasdrstl o Heeey / - —
On account of Underwriting Commitments
v) ST T F Johar IR, ol 0 T A T T o Geraw T / N -

On account of uncalled monies on partly paid shares, debentures

vi) 3T 'q'é" ISEED f\a'q a?m'- T F TS é‘q’a‘[ é‘ 7266,58,15,219 5993,93,23,562
Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable (derivative contracts etc.)
T/ Total 7640,76,79,911 |  6519,35,87,953
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31 W, 2015 31 W, 2014

JgAT / SCHEDULE XII March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

T ST agT / Interest and Discount

1. %o, ffiret R farcit OX =TSt e wgt

Interest and Discount on Loans, Advances and Bills 5157,85,57,270 5383,48,58,138
2. 9997 / s AT T 3 / Income on Investments / Bank balances 341,07,04,660 236,59,63,446
=T / Total 5498,92,61,930 5620,08,21,584

YT / SCHEDULE XIII

3T 3T / Other Income:

1. 3T 3 FIATE Yooh / Upfront and Processing Fees 31,29,45,422 52,74,42,851
2. HHITH X TaTel / Commission and Brokerage 2,48,91,574 2,09,46,605
3. fai =t faeht § @ / Profit on sale of Investments 159,32,46,600 80,65,45,243

4. HETIH T / EAN T XT3N ¥ AT, onfe o S A T

Income earned by way of dividends etc. from Subsidiaries / Associates - -

5. frwe ool & TR'I%_'{ hT TG / Provision of Earlier Years written Back 28,304 -
6. 3T / Others 61,53,13,850 64,93,97,188
AT / Total 254,64,25,750 200,43,31,887

3Gt / SCHEDULE XIV

UfETee &9 / Operating Expenses:

FHHARET o AT T T I SR qraem

Payments to and provisions for employees 326,07,32,434 194,02,81,544
fohTaT, ST 37 faITeft / Rent, Taxes and Lighting 20,51,06,885 17,55,86,600
qST L] G- / Printing & Stationery 87,39,538 96,47,881
IERILE 3 TG / Advertisement and Publicity 3,63,71,339 2,78,41,993
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®)

SR / SCHEDULE XIV o Do o o

Sor o Hufy ¥ qeag / ufCeme

Depreciation / Amortisation on Bank’s Property 13,65,39,000 11,89,37,818
et =t ‘ﬁ'\q, W 9 9 / Directors’ fees allowances and expenses 55,15,034 49,04,019
TRETRIEERT 1 B / Auditor’s Fees 60,95,360 45,60,761
fafr ¥9 / Law Charges 1,83,61,648 1,40,64,035
gleh, 'g)"ﬁ'QT, LI, anfe / Postage Courier, Telephones etc. 37,45,400 37,56,065
O 3 TECETe / Repairs and maintenance 9,23,38,098 9,74,36,363
T / Insurance 50,13,041 47,01,355
HisfitTaues &1 $RIEH / Contribution to CGTMSE 18,74,75,000 18,74,75,000
3 T / Other Expenditure 59,34,50,646 55,58,30,801
T / Total 455,94,83,423 314,50,24,235
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Tifera o’ o fom erfaftw fewfurat / Additional Notes to Consolidated Accounts

A - q%a’q\u'f o fafqal / Annexure - 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

1 | U oo faeron ot orqget XV # Sfeaf@d Tt Hewaqul oRam it ot e THfeha faeia fasror TR e & off ferar
™R
All the significant accounting policies as mentioned in Schedule XV of the standalone financial statements have
also been followed in the preparation of consolidated financial statements.

2 | TEE-21 TG Ol faewer o oTgeT AW AW @ F-9E YHaeR UIETT 8T o7 o A8, ITIfEEr, <ade,
A U o S Wl o TE T Uk WY SIS Sk UH THSH! HeTach Uit oh A faeRur ufth W i SR W
Tohiehd forq T & | ST for TU-23 TR forit faawolt & weadt Tt # frayr gaeft e § fafféy ©, geant gsst
T TR SfFaet TERT T SR e oA T 7
The financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line to line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses after fully eliminating intra
group balances and inter group transactions in accordance with AS-21” Consolidated Financial Statements”. The
Associates are accounted for using the equity method as prescribed by AS-23 “Accounting for Investments in
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”.

3 | wafe fai fammor  wnfier weant Seemsl % oot e ¢
Details of Subsidiaries included in consolidated financial statements are:

)
Sr.No. | Name of the subsidiary Country of Incorporation | Proportion of ownership Profit/Loss

1 mga"]' w %ﬁw fa 9T 100% 5,95,69,265
(Teiuer) India
SIDBI Venture Capital Ltd.

(SVCL)

2 | foed o=t S . (@EdTETe) LU 100% 51,59,314
SIDBI Trustee Company Ltd. India
(STCL)

3 | wmEwm qfem  Sowe  UE A 100% Nil
R wSidt fa. (ggm) (18 A India
2015 9 7Tel)

Micro Units Development &

Refinance Agency (Mudra

Ltd.) (w.e.f. March 18, 2015)*

AT / Total 6,47,28,579

TS o STCAT G Gensit & fera foaror eramifie € |

* O SR - 2013 & TIHR FIS THT U A7 FIfHa faeemr ST aw 6t 15 SHat Hl A1 38k a1g AT g8 o, 39eT faw
o Wl oY o 31 WS T T SO | TegER, YR . 7 e fawie faewer er 31 W, 2016 IR fHAT ST | GEIER, Fer
31 W, 2015 Foehd g7 fl. SR U T fasar S1eT o TR faRar T 7

Financial statements of the subsidiaries except Mudra Ltd. are audited.

As per Companies Act-2013, any company or body corporate, when incorporated on or after the 1st day of January of

a year, the financial year will be taken on the 31st day of March of the following year. Accordingly, the first financial

statement of Mudra Ltd shall be prepared as on March 31, 2016. Accordingly, the consolidation as at March 31, 2015
has been done as per the financial data provided by Mudra Ltd.

*
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4. Hfed faxitg faawor & wnfier Gednt geenst & foawor freeq @

4.A Details of Associates included in consolidated financial statements are as follows :

TEANT G &t e/ (FT) | SIera Tt
FE - (%) =fer foraur fraer wifewn | W fewne
Sr. No. Name of the (%) Holding Description Investment Share of Share in
Associate Profit/(loss) reserves *
1 o 34.29 TUTE ot shfee e et 5,10,00,000 1,03,19,066 55,55,415
SMERA Credit Rating Agency for SME's
2 TR TETS 22.73 TUTE T e gerdT 1,00,00,000 3,36,879 24,29,549
ISTSL Technology Support to SME's
3 ST 26.00 ** e Sqﬁq-fu-r I 26,00,00,000 1,17,59,904 1,99,58,125
ISARC Asset Reconstruction Company
4 Suwdt 23.87 s T o 3,13,87,500 (4,60,900) | 11,24,05,069
DFEC State Financial Corporation
T0T / Total 35,23,87,500 | 2,19,54,949 | 14,03,48,158

* gHfeRd qoI o1 STTET 11 & (1) W % 7658,27,79,622  6468,17,73,193) &t STRfafq fafyr & wmfer |

* Included in Reserve Fund of X 7658,27,79,622 (Previous year X 6468,17,73,193) in Schedule II A(i) of the Consolidated
Balance sheet.

3ol Tude (et w1 100% e W) F 1% i e g
** Includes 11% holding by SVCL (100% subsidiary of SIDBI).

w) gufEa fadty faarol # frafafed gedrt gensti & qfome gfffaa 7et &1 qenfy, fada faeot § aifel & fe & fou
ot ST fohar T ©

The results of the following associates are not included in the consolidated financial statements. However, full

B) provision has been made in the financial statements for share of the losses.
(%) T/ (BTT) ST
ShUTh | TN WM SRT AW | eqfiar Tzt fraer fewm
Sr. No. | Name of the Associate (%) Description Investment Share of
Holding Profit/(loss)
L | diweewst / BSFC 4843 | 1o faita f7 / State Financial Corporation | 188488500 | (18,84,88,500)
2 Shequed! / GSFC 28.41 T faxia f79 / State Financial Corporation 12,66,00,000 (12,66,00,000)
3 | SrpuETEET / JKSFC 23.00 | 15 fawita f77 / State Financial Corporation | 10,46,20,000 | (10,46,20,000)
4 | TIUHTEH / MSFC 39.99 | w157 famita f77 / State Financial Corporation | 12524L750 | (12,52,41,750)
5 | duwst / PEC 25.92 | 3157 forita 77 / State Financial Corporation | 22351,850 | (523,51,850)
6 | diTEuset / UPSFC 24.18 | 315 faita f77 / State Financial Corporation | 21,67,59,000 | (21,67,59,000)
T / Total Total 81,40,61,100 | (81,40,61,100)

180



Annual Report 2014-15

AR oY SanT faem™ deh

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
31 #T4, 2015 & THfoRT Jo-TF ot STIgfeT /

Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2015

T frefafed Feemt & A §, gt S % T 20% ¥ e 1 AR ©, 7o, 3% 08 23 FhfEq fax faaet §
eantt el ¥ 1391 o fay oRareR & v Feant weemedt ¥ fraw T 7 e ], it 3% uar Hewqut foer T
T T 7, T Wi o S
C In case of following entities, though the bank holds more than 20% of voting power, they are not treated as
investment in associate under AS 23 ‘Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements’, because they are not considered as material investments requiring consolidation.
HUih [N HEAT T AW (%) =it Tererur frargr
Sr. No. Name of the Associate (%) Holding Description Investment
1| wftemgeidist f. / APITCO Ltd. 41.29 TeeAIeh! TRT TST slinae
Technical Consultancy Organisation
2 | TS fT. / KITCO Lid. Y LEEIEIRNLNICUCES 24,95,296
Technical Consultancy Organisation
3 | faRr sfeifie wd iRt wRt e o 49.25 LERICIRNEN U] 1
Bihar Industrial and Techinical Consultancy Technical Consultancy Organisation
Organisation Ltd.
4 | gafwR 3PN qe qeRient et Te fo. 43.44 TRt TRTAST TTST 1
North Eastern Industrial and Technical Technical Consultancy Organisation
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.
5 | S STEfiTer qer deptent Wl §aT fo. 49.42 Tehreh! AT TIST 1
Orissa Industrial and Technical Technical Consultancy Organisation
Consultancy Organisation Ltd.
6 | IW W SETF TRHeTarr o, 48.99 TRt TRTT TS 15,33472
U.P Industrial Consultants Ltd. Technical Consultancy Organisation
7| ufg S TR e fa. 21.67 LERIEaR NN ECCE] 4,86,783
West Bengal Consultancy Organisation Ltd. Technical Consultancy Organisation
T / Total 99,86,529
. 4% W@ 4 9 H fcaarea ToF fami At ¥ 3o8 wear gensht o 31 ", 2015 &1 WA 99 o fawig faeren oy
TGS & 1 TE R | JRCHUHH T 37T T ferwi T & SAfeRg 31 A 2014 T G ¥ % SR@TRIer aromE
T e 7 | AR & AW #, 31 I 2013 T THG Y o SifeH 7RO T € |
S T FW 4 G TG 4 T H fcAtad Tt geerelt H X § #1E qfae el fa € 1 oK 7 € i A fohar €, qen 7
B Fearh st g fFU M e o AR H 3% Tedrt geenst’t § o1+ v qe § e i TRl HUaT Feraad
FE
D  Financial statements of the associates other than State Financial Corporations's (SFC) mentioned in 4A and 4B are

unaudited for the year ended March 31, 2015. The figures for SFC's other than UPSFC are based on audited results for
the year ended March 31, 2014. In respect of UPSFC, provisional results are available for the year ended March 31, 2013.

The Bank has not incurred any obligation or made payment on behalf of associates mentioned in 4B and 4C above or
otherwise provided guarantee or commitment for the losses made by the associates in excess of its investment value in
the associates.
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T eesH o W WU o - o faeRer e 7 |

Details of significant transactions with associates are as under:

Sr. No.

; SRS TaIauT / Particulars / > /

Name of the Associate Disbursements Repayments

STEH / DFC Eqﬁ?f HEMAAT / Refinance assistance - 56549,513

‘ﬁ'w / PFC Eqﬁ?f Gerddl / Refinance assistance - 15,12,00,000

AT Y ST T S 1 qodery Aifa ¥ onfErdt 1 qeugrw et T vsfa/qeasiied qew ved ¥ ud feifte <
R oA ST €, S foF TRTEeh T S Yedrt TRt qedgTd i MU Ut SffufW, 2013 ST STIU 11 F SIER
TRITad o TSfa T Xt 7 | 79 afera faei faewor # wnfaet 2 13,65,39,000/- (e o ¥ 11,89,37,818/-) &
T TIEE | T T 9,64,500 ST & 0.71% (et a9 T 6,63,600 - 0.56%) WY o AUFTET, 2013 F FIER fFT M0
TG o MR W feifte ot T ® |

As against depreciation policy of SIDBI whereby assets are depreciated on SLM / WDV at pre-determined rates, the

subsidiaries and associates compute depreciation on WDV basis as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus out
of the total depreciation of ¥ 13,65,39,000 (Previous Year X 11,89,37,818) included in Consolidated Financial Statements,
% 9,64,500 being 0.71% (Previous Year X 6,63,600 being 0.56%) of the amount is determined based on Depreciation
provided as per the Companies Act, 2013.

TS & AT, quTet IRIE 7 5 SNt T g STt SiaT 9 T €, ST e H qoIg | 2 49,385 %
TSRAUT - SHIfeTch WA T ShUeT ST 2013 ST ST 1 % ORI (fid o1i) ¥ Gomifsa foar o 71 9%
Tfer afera faxita faemoit § oTqEe 11 (Rfafa, sifuem ua fafemat) o sioria g sTRfafa & ufa g fear T 2 |

In case of SVCL, the transitional provision in depreciation in respect of assets having no useful lives as on the effective date,

amounting to I 49,385 is adjusted to Surplus (Retained earnings) as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.This amount is
adjusted against General Reserve under Schedule II (Reserves, Surplus and Funds) in consolidated financial statements.

Hfer TeTaeh T & Tl TR YA A1 eIy 9 ¥ fagdt o Wi # ¥, 7 ST YARERe & fad o Tey § ovem
§ S Tohe T oA T E |

As all shares of the subsidiaries are owned by SIDBI directly or indirectly, no separate disclosure relating to minority
interest is reflected.

TEETHTS o UehTiares (eeTeh o1 Fdt T 50,08,647 o Wohat TR T YA foram T (et v T 45,72,020) |
Aggregate remuneration paid to whole time director of SVCL is ¥ 50,08,647 (Previous Year ¥ 45,72,020).

182




Annual Report 2014-15

AR oY SanT faem™ deh

SMALL INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT BANK OF INDIA
31 #T4, 2015 & THfoRT Jo-TF ot STIgfeT /

Schedules to Consolidated Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2015

10 31 7, 2015 31 7, 2014
wfd 91T 3 (SWTH) / Earning Per Share (EPS): ’ i
( ) / Eaming PerSharclBEss March 31,2015 @) | March 31, 2014 )

Stcﬁ-q-q F eeT & "%,l'q IREIRICIBEERESIL] 1422,04,86,284 1123,65,44,296
Net Profit considered for EPS calculation

% 10 o 3iferd oo o Sfaee! IeRT &l e 45,00,00,000 45,00,00,000

Number of equity shares of face value ¥ 10 each

ufd IR s / Earning per share 31.60 24.97

11 syerfares gand
Contingent Liabilities
TROIASHT S o Ui CoaEiee o faarfed Soar 7, foraent TivT &7 Frafoor &) foram s gehar © |

SVCL has disputed liability towards municipal taxes, the amount of which cannot be determined.

12 oo ug weEe el & STenT-STenT faxia famRvlt § yehe it wifafusr geAd wEfed faxia fasRol @t @E S
gt feufa o1 wufa et et € i 9y €, R-wewyel gE § Gefud g SRl offt SIS TSy At sfear
(TTETTTE) ST TR AT WEIHT & STER GHfeha feritar faawont & qehe T T R @ |

Additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial statements of the parent and the subsidiaries have no

bearing on the true and fair view of the Consolidated Financial Statments and also the information pertaining to the
items which are not material have not been disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements in view of the general
clarification issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

1€ & ITRIMIER / BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
T fearer & A fid 3 9’ / As per our report of even date

Fd AT TS AR . . ArE . SERIEANCIE)
For BORKAR & MUZUMDAR U.J. Lalwani N. Raman Kshatrapati Shivaji
TE AEHR - TR e 3Ty TG Y9y e
Chartered Accountants Country Head Executive Director Chairman & Managing Director
THART : 1015698 (Frfirer < aféenan)
FRN. : 101569W (Corporate Accounts Vertical)
Tfefa greft / Darshit Doshi
TEER / Partner
TH. 9. / M. No. : 133755
A AT / Anil Agrawal . THEET / R. Ramachandran
&g, 7% 28,2015 fAS¥T% / Director 5% / Director

Mumbai, May 28, 2015
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31 |Td, 2015 oh! UMW 94 AT Tehe! UaTe faawor
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015

®)

31 T, 2014
March 31 2014

faawut / Particulars

31 T, 2015
March 31 2015

31 W, 2015
March 31 2015

1. UR=Te Tfafafe= ¥ Jehdl warg

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

1546,57,38,030 Y- FCIGRCD STER T e feer oy 2120,90,92,073
Net Profit before tax as per Consolidated P & L Account
frfafad & foag SHEsH / Adjustments for :
11,89,08,228 TG / Depreciation 13,65,39,000
41,97,88,782 ﬁa-g-h- k) fHoer R * 1%'11{ PIECIEE 54,54,02,483
Provision for net depreciation in investments
605,74,88,779 f\a;-an- T UTITT W a; m) (1 19,07,49,629)
Provisions made (net of write back)
(80,65,45,244) R Ty (159,19,75,700)
Profit on sale of investments (net)
(14,61,15,075) e e (16,37,08,548) (226,44,92,394)
Dividend/Interest Received on Investments
2110,92,63,500 | gfterert ¥ SUIfSA Tehdl / Cash generated from operations 1894,45,99,679
(aftae snferr o Saasd # oftady ¥ Tea)
(Prior to changes in operating Assets and Liabilities)
frafafea # free afitede gg gHmEeH
Adjustments for net changes in :
(348,86,52,588) <] SMEAT / Current assets 150,63,57,500
4,94,25,898 e I / Current liabilities 107,84,43,959
1390,83,70,439 fafm= foet / Bills of Exchange 775,79,03,839

(7218,81,99,997) F0T T 31T / Loans & Advances 5725,68,49,021

5768,87,49,475 | qigt o HuTHE! T 31 IURAT § Fraet et (4945,15,86,426)
Net Proceeds of Bonds and Debentures & other borrowings
(676,60,82,486) | s 7T / Deposits received (3981,44,69,425)

(1079,63,89,259) (2166,65,01,532)
1031,28,74,241 (272,19,01,853)
(450,94,76,246) | =% arerarft / Payment of Tax (606,53,12,713)

580,33,97,995 qfETe-Tlafaesy O fHae q’a;?ﬁ‘ VCIES (878,72,14,566)
Net Cash flow from operating Activities
2. Trayr nfafafest ¥ TeReT et
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(8,18,06,334) fer sifemt &1 faa )/ (25,10,76,650)

Net (Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets
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31 WTe, 2014 Frereer / 31 T, 2015 31 WTe, 2015
March 31 2014 March 31 2015 March 31 2015
(40,98,87,299) FravT o7 fraet (or3)/fasra /s 121,96,50,081
Net (Purchase)/sale/redemption of Investments
14,62,85,346 e e 16,29,23,125
Dividend/Interest Received on Investments
(34,54,08,287) Frdrer Tt & oo foerer e 113,14,96,556
Net cash used in Investing Activities
3. fomigur nfafafirl & Tendt wate
Cash flow from Financing Activities
(131,61,94,132) fEaT1 TPRT F AT O A O AT (131,68,18,758)
Dividend on Equity Shares & tax on Dividend
(131,61,94,132) farspy TR F T A T (131,68,18,758)
Net cash used in F\inancing Activities
414,17,95,576 4. qaﬁ"]’ qa‘ qa.ﬁ"} quged v fraer aﬁﬂﬁ/(a;:ﬁ') (897,25,36,768)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
15295201591 | 5. apafy & oy & TRt U6 TR TR 1943,69,97,167
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the
period
1943,69,97,167 | 6. ayafyr Ft TS W T TE TR TG 1046,44,60,399
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period
femuft - WWWWW%WWW(M@)WW?@W3 (G9ifere) TeRet yaTe
foreror # Fretfee s iy o STER ST fobe T
Note : Cash Flow statement has been prepared as per the Indirect Method prescribed in AS-3 (Revised) ‘Cash Flow
Statement’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
HE@qUT TrateRd Aol qe oraT-foguitar (31ge 1)
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts (Annexure I)
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I P RISl TaR 15, 372 J1, RS - 226 001 (SR 923T)
®IF: 0522-2288546-50, HherT: 0522-2288455-59

Head Office : SIDBI Tower, 15, Ashok Marg, Lucknow - 226001, Uttar Pradesh
Tel.:0522-2288546-50 Fax:0522-2288455-59

Regional Office  Branch Name a3 Hrafed YT

Ahmedabad Ahmedabad, Baroda, IEASTES SIS, deIeNT, e,
Gandhidham, Jamnagar, SHTR, ARET, ISTPIE, IR,
Morbi, Rajkot, Surat, Vatva gcdr

Bangalore Bengaluru, Hosur, Hubli, SR | ,'E?I'\ﬂ?, W,
Mysuru, Peenya ﬁ?jjx’ =7

Chandigarh Chandigarh, Jalandhar, B TENG, STeER, STRY, Jfe—mT,
Jammu, Ludhiana, Shimla R

Chennai Ambattur, Chennai, EE| HRTR, a9,
Puducherry REER

Coimbatore Coimbatore, Erode, Kochi, Wﬂ;\’ ﬁm@g’ Hrea, ﬁﬁ&'\’ ENIS
Madurai, Tirupur, Trichy 3, wgR,

Faridabad Faridabad, Gurgaon PN ERIEICICH 31@‘03

Guwahati Agartala, Aizawl, Dimapur, NEIEI SR, TSI, SR,
Gangtok, Guwahati, Imphal, TFT@_IEB, TaTETe], $7hI, SR,
Itanagar, Shillong R

Hyderabad Balanagar, Hyderabad, EEEIC dIel TR, geRETE,
Rajahmundry, Vijayawada, NSUSMESEEIS
Visakhapatnam ﬁfﬂ@t@tﬂﬁ

Indore Bhopal, Bilaspur, Indore, TR HIaTe, ﬁ?'l'l'\qﬂ'\’, R,
Nagpur, Raipur YR, XTEER

Jaipur Alwar, Jaipur, Jodhpur, SR TR, SR, ST,
Kishangarh, Udaipur feherTTg, SEIqR

Kolkata Bhubaneshwar, Jamshedpur, PICTRICT IR, SRIGR,
Kolkata, Patna, Ranchi, PIABICT, g1, i,
Rourkela TSRl

Lucknow Agra, Kanpur, Lucknow, AGTS 3RT, PIYR, YT,
Varanasi RO

Mumbai Andheri, BKC, Mumbai Metro, EH] e, Yo TsT-Geil preceiar,
Panaji, Thane aa's‘qgmw, quTST, 30T

New Delhi Bahadurgarh, Dehradun, 73 faeeh J8IgNlG, égg@, JIIEICICS
Ghaziabad, Greater Noida, Iex A, @355',
Kundli, New Delhi, New Delhi 73 faeel, 78 faeel SIR T o9,
RFS, Noida, Okhla, Rudrapur, e, ST, SR

Pune Ahmednagar, Aurangabad, T}f W IR,
Chinchwad, Kolhapur, Nasik, fERras, PleargR, AP,
Pune g@r
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